HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD
FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING
July 22, 2021
5:00 P.M.
Meeting Will Be Conducted Via Zoom

AGENDA

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
The public may observe and/or participate in this meeting in many ways.

OBSERVE:
» To observe, the public may view the televised video conference by viewing KTOP
channel 10 on Xfinity (Comcast) or AT&T Channel 99 and locating City of Oakland
KTOP — Channel 10
» To observe the meeting by video conference, please click on the link below:
When: July 22, 2021 5:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)
Topic: HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD FULL
BOARD MEETING July 22, 2021
Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/|/87086362397
Or One tap mobile :

US: +16699009128,,87086362397# or +13462487799,,87086362397#
Or Telephone:

Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

US: +1 669 900 9128 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 312

626 6799 or +1 646 558 8656 or +1 301 715 8592
Webinar ID: 870 8636 2397

International numbers available: https://usO02web.zoom.us/u/kcql2J6wRg

COMMENT:

There are two ways to submit public comments.

» To comment by Zoom video conference, click the “Raise Your Hand” button

to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on an eligible agenda
item at the beginning of the meeting. You will be permitted to speak during your
turn, allowed to comment, and after the allotted time, re-muted. Instructions on how
to “Raise Your Hand” are available here.

* To comment by phone, please call on one of the above listed phone numbers.
You will be prompted to “Raise Your Hand” by pressing “*9” to speak when Public
Comment is taken. You will be permitted to speak during your turn, allowed to
comment, and after the allotted time, re-muted. Please unmute yourself by
pressing “*6”.

If you have any questions, please email Bkong-brown@oaklandca.gov.

1

000001


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87086362397
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcqI2J6wRg
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129-Raising-your-hand-in-a-webinar
mailto:Bkong-brown@oaklandca.gov

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD
SPECIAL MEETING

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
OPEN FORUM
CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approval of Board Minutes, 6/24/2021 (p. 4-8)
b. Approval of Board Minutes, 7/10/2021 (p. 9-15)
5. APPEALS*
a. T18-0414 & T18-0472, Martin et al v. Zalabak (p. 30-227)
b. L19-0163, Lake 1925 LP v. Tenants (p.228-546)
c. T19-0424, Thornton v. Joyce (p. 547-588)
6. ELECTION OF BOARD VICE CHAIR

A

7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
a. Board Training — Rules of Evidence and Appeals (p. 16-29)

8. SCHEDULING AND REPORTS

a. Discussion about Returning to In-Person Meetings (K.
Friedman)

9. ADJOURNMENT

*Staff appeal summaries will be available on the Rent Adjustment Program’s website and the City Clerk’s
office at least 48 hours prior to the meeting pursuant to O.M.C. 2.20.070.B and 2.20.090

As a reminder, alternates in attendance (other than those replacing an absent
board member) will not be able to take any action, such as with regard to the
consent calendar.

Accessibility: Contact us to request disability-related accommodations, American
Sign Language (ASL), Spanish, Cantonese, Mandarin, or another language
interpreter at least five (5) business days before the event. Rent Adjustment
Program (RAP) staff can be contacted via email at RAP@oaklandca.gov or via
phone at (510) 238-3721. California relay service at 711 can also be used for
disability-related accommodations.

Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir un
intérprete de en Espafiol, Cantones, Mandarin o de lenguaje de sefias (ASL) por
favor envié un correo electréonico a RAP@oaklandca.gov o llame al (510) 238-
3721 o 711 por lo menos cinco dias habiles antes de la reunién.

2

000002


mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov

T ERIEEBIERE, F5T, YIS, S EEMERS BTSRRI AEIEXE
# RAP@oaklandca.gov 2 EE (510) 238-3721 5711 California relay service.

000003


mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov
mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION
BOARD FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING
June 24, 2021

1. CALL TO ORDER

5:00 P.M.

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE
OAKLAND, CA

MINUTES

The Board meeting was administered via Zoom by H. Grewal, Housing and
Community Development Department. He explained the procedure for
conducting the meeting. The HRRRB meeting was called to order at 5:07
p.m. by Board Chair J. Ma {Powers..

2. ROLL CALL

MEMBER STATUS PRESENT | ABSENT | EXCUSED
R. NICKENS Tenant X
R. AUGUSTE Tenant X
H. FLANERY Tenant Alt. X
Vacant Tenant Alt.
S. DEVUONO- Undesignated X
POWELL
A. GRAHAM Undesignated X
J. MA POWERS | Undesignated X
Vacant Undesignated
Alt.
Vacant Undesignated
Alt.
K. FRIEDMAN Landlord X
T. WILLIAMS Landlord X
B. SCOTT Landlord Alt. X
K. SIMS Landlord Alt. X
Staff Present
Kent Qian Deputy City Attorney (for first appeal)

Braz Shabrell

Barbara Kong-Brown

Deputy City Attorney
Senior Hearing Officer

000004



Harman Grewal Business Analyst Il (HCD)
Briana Lawrence-McGowan Administrative Analyst | (HCD)
Mike Munson KTOP

3. OPEN FORUM
a. None

4. CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approval of Board Minutes from June 10, 2021, Full Board Special Meeting
R. Nickens, Jr. moved to approve the minutes. B. Scott seconded.

The Board voted as follows:

Aye: T. Williams, J. Ma Powers, R. Nickens, Jr., B. Scott
Nay: None
Abstain: None

The minutes were approved by consensus.

5. APPEALS
a. T18-0311, Cervantes v. Fong

Appearances: Samantha Beckett

Ms. Beckett appeared on behalf of Xavier Johnson, the tenant
representative, stating that Mr. Johnson was unable to appear due to an
emergency. The owner was not present, and K. Qian suggested that in the
past the Board waited to see if the owner would show up or the Board
could dismiss the case subject to a showing of good cause. T. Williams
suggested that the Board give the owner time to appear. The Board agreed
and moved to hear the next case, returning to consider this case after
hearing the next case.

After hearing the last appeal case, The Board returned to consider this

case.
Appearances: May Fong Owner Appellant
Samantha Beckett Tenant Respondent

Ms. Beckett requested a continuance due to Mr. Johnson’s medical
emergency. She stated she was notified at 1:00 p.m. of Mr. Johnson’s
situation, and no one at Central Legal was prepared to represent the tenant

2

000005



on such short notice.

Ms. Fong stated that no one reached out to her and this case has been
pending since 2019, and she requested that the Board proceed to hear the
appeal.

K. Qian stated the requirements for good cause for a continuance.

Chair Ma Powers moved to grant a continuance based on a determination
of good cause. Member Nickens Jr. seconded.

The Board voted as follows:

Aye: R. Nickens, Jr., J. Ma Powers, B. Scott, T. Williams
Nay: 0
Abstain: 0

The motion was approved.

b. L19-0159, 378 Grand Avenue Associates LP v. Tenants
This case has been postponed.
c. T21-0019, Yu v. Bruins

Appearances, Jane Yu Tenant Appellant
Julia Bruins Owner Respondent

The tenant agreed to a settlement agreement in a prior case. The base rent
was set at $900 and increased to $931 effective December 1, 2020, for an
increase of 3.15%. After the settlement agreement, the tenant filed a
petition to contest the rent increase on the grounds that the increase
violated the City’s moratorium against rent increases in excess of the CPI
adjustment, which was 2.7 % and she did not receive the RAP notice in
three languages. The hearing officer issued an administrative decision
dismissing the tenant petition on the grounds that the tenant agreed to the
rent increase and agreed to a dismissal of the petition with prejudice.

The issues are 1) whether the administrative decision was appropriate
based on the settlement agreement, 2) whether the tenant can contest the
rent increase when she agreed to the increase in the settlement agreement,
and 3) whether the rent increase is prohibited by the City’s moratorium?

The tenant contends that the rent increase of 3.15% is void against public

000006



policy as it is in violation of the City’s moratorium on any rent increase
above the CPI adjustment, which was 2.7%, and the Rent Ordinance trumps
the settlement agreement.

The owner contended that she abided by the process, the hearing officer
knew that the CPI would change on July 1, 2020, and the tenant did not
understand why an agreement would be created and signed if the CPI
would change. The tenant agreed to the increase and it is reasonable to
enforce the agreement that was signed.

Appeal Decision

After questions to the parties and Board discussion, R. Nickens Jr. moved
to remand the case to the hearing officer for a decision on whether the
settlement agreement was valid regarding the rent increase in light of the
City’s moratorium. B. Scott seconded.

The Board voted as follows:

Aye: R. Nickens, Jr., J. Ma Powers, B. Scott, T. Williams
Nay: 0
Abstain: 0

The motion was approved.

6. Information and Announcements
a. Board Training-The Brown Act

Deputy City Attorney B. Shabrell conducted a board training regarding the
Brown Act.

The training covered the following:

Notice to the public of any action taken
Opportunity for public participation
Meeting requirements

What constitutes a prohibited meeting?
What constitutes board business
Agenda requirements

Public Testimony

Remedies for Violations

7. Scheduling and Reports

000007



a. None.
8. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 6:30 p.m.

000008



HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION
BOARD FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING
July 8, 2021

1. CALL TO ORDER

5:00 P.M.

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE
OAKLAND, CA

MINUTES

The Board meeting was administered via Zoom by H. Grewal, Housing and
Community Development Department. He explained the procedure for
conducting the meeting. The HRRRB meeting was called to order at 5:05
p.m. by Board Chair S. Devuono-Powell

2. ROLL CALL

MEMBER STATUS PRESENT | ABSENT | EXCUSED
R. NICKENS Tenant X
R. AUGUSTE Tenant X
H. FLANERY Tenant Alt. X
Vacant Tenant Alt.
S. DEVUONO- Undesignated X
POWELL
A. GRAHAM Undesignated X
J. MA POWERS | Undesignated X
Vacant Undesignated
Alt.
Vacant Undesignated
Alt.
K. FRIEDMAN Landlord X
T. WILLIAMS Landlord X
B. SCOTT Landlord Alt. X
K. SIMS Landlord Alt. X
Staff Present
Braz Shabrell Deputy City Attorney

Barbara Kong-Brown

Barbara Cohen

Senior Hearing Officer
Acting Senior Hearing Officer

000009



Harman Grewal Business Analyst Il (HCD)
Briana Lawrence-McGowan Administrative Analyst | (HCD)
Meadow Holmes KTOP

3. OPEN FORUM

¢ James Vann-Stated that at a prior meeting the Board was not informed
that it was empowered to elect a vice chair.

4. APPEALS

a. T19-0344, Stephenson v. Ramirez

Appearances: Connie Stephenson Tenant Appellant
Phil and Lisa Ramirez Owner Respondents

The tenant filed a petition contesting two rent increases in 2018 and 2019
and alleging decreased housing services. The Hearing Decision denied the
tenant petition, finding that the petition regarding the 2018 increase and
decreased services claim was untimely, and the owner was entitled to a
2019 rent increase based on banking.

The issues are 1) whether the base rent of $1,020 is supported by
substantial evidence and 2) whether banking is permitted when there is a
temporary rent reduction?

The tenant contended that for banking purposes, the base rent in 2008 was
$1,003.00 not $1,020.00, and the rent increases since 2017, in 2018 and
2019, exceeded the allowable amount allowed by the annual CPI
adjustment. The owner was allowed banked increases for years that the
tenant did not have heat. The heat issue was fixed in 2016. The Board
issued an order on May 29, 2014, stating the base rent was $1,020.00 and
lowered it to $969.00. The current rent increases are in conflict with the
order issued by the Board in May 2014.

The owners contended that they justified the rent increases with the Rent
Board and do not have a problem fixing any issues, but the tenant does not
allow access to her unit.

Appeal Decision

After arguments by the parties, questions and Board discussion, K.
Friedman moved to affirm the Hearing Decision based on substantial
evidence. T. Williams Seconded.

000010



The Board voted as follows:

Aye: S. Devuono-Powell, K. Friedman, T. Williams
Nay: R. Nickens, Jr.

Abstain: 0

The motion was adopted..

b. T20-0093, Bolanos v. Olivieri

Appearances: Jack Olivieri Owner Appellant
Gina Fresquez Owner Appellant Representative
Tom Fresquez Owner Appellant Representative
Jill Broadhurst Owner Representative
Miriam Bolanos Tenant Respondent
Samantha Beckett Tenant Representative
Marci Valdivieso Spanish Interpreter

The Spanish interpreter was sworn in by staff.

The tenant filed a petition contesting all prior rent increases and alleging
decreased housing services. The owner filed a response claiming that the
unit was exempt from the Rent Ordinance under Costa-Hawkins. The
Hearing Decision granted the tenant’s petition, invalidating all the rent
increases, and finding that the tenant never received the RAP notices,
the building was not exempt, and the unit was previously used as a
dwelling, with separate mailboxes, separate gas and electric meters. The
Hearing Officer also granted a 5% reduction for decreased housing
services.

The issues are 1) whether the 5% rent reduction for decreased housing
services is supported by substantial evidence and 2) whether the finding
that the property contains two dwelling units is supported by substantial
evidence?

The owner filed an appeal to the decision, contending that the Hearing
Officer’s finding was based on her opinion and lacks foundation. There are
no functioning utilities at this structure. The Hearing Officer relied on the
tax assessor’s information which states the use only for property tax
purposes, not to establish a dwelling unit.

The owner representative further contended that the rear unit was a
storage unit and was used as such since 2006. California Civil Code

000011



81940 defines a dwelling unit as a structure or the part of a structure that
is used as a home, residence, or sleeping place by one person who
maintains a household or by two or more persons who maintain a common
household. The second unit was not used as a sleeping place during this
tenant’s tenancy and does not meet the definition of a sleeping unit. The
Hearing Officer expanded the clear meaning of the definition in the
California Civil Code, without any legal basis to support this expanded
interpretation. The Code states “is used”, not has the potential to be used
as such in the future.

Additionally, the City issued a permit that classified the second unit as a
utility or miscellaneous, not as a dwelling. A copy of the permit was sent to
the RAP. Due to the CO-VID 19 pandemic, the permit process took over a
year and the owner only received permission to remove the second unit
two weeks ago. The City performed a planning commission study, and a
City inspector made a site visit, evaluating the exterior and interior of the
structure.

The owner contended that the subject unit is uninhabitable and is not a
dwelling unit. It is a utility structure and would have to be rehabilitated
under permit.

The tenant representative contended that the Hearing Decision holding that
the unit is subject to the RAP, should be upheld on the following grounds:

1. Any new evidence submitted by the tenant, e.g. the demo permit,
should be disregarded as it is improper under O.M.C. 8.22.120 (F) which
permits new evidence only in limited circumstances. New evidence is not
permitted if evidence in the record is sufficient. See Hobbs v. Bernstein.

2. Exemptions from the Rent Ordinance should be strictly construed.

The subject unit is not separately alienable. The Hearing Officer’s decision
indicated substantial evidence of prior use-separate mailboxes, separate
utilities and the unit was used as a dwelling by the tenant. The Hearing
Officer considered all the arguments and the tenant’s argument was
persuasive. The owners did not meet their burden of proof.

3. The Hearing Decision is consistent with the definition of a dwelling unit
in the Owens case. The definition of a dwelling unit in California Civil Code
81940 is whether a structure was used as a home, residence or sleeping
place. The second unit was used as a residence.

4. When can a dwelling unit stop being a dwelling unit? The Ordinance is
silent on this. The definition of a dwelling unit should not be interpreted to
mean current use and would lead to an absurd result. A duplex does not

4

000012



become exempt because it remains vacant for a short time, and this is
against the purpose of the Rent Ordinance. A dwelling unit stops if it has
been demolished or lawfully removed, such as in an Ellis eviction.

Appeal Decision

After arguments by the parties, questions and Board discussion, Chair S.
Devuono-Powell moved to remand the Hearing Decision to the Hearing
Officer to consider the new evidence regarding the permit. K. Friedman
seconded.

The Board voted as follows:

Aye: S. Devuono-Powell, K. Friedman, T. Williams, R. Nickens, Jr.
Nay: None
Abstain: None

The motion was adopted.

Chair S. Devuono-Powell moved to postpone consideration of whether the
5% rent reduction was supported by substantial evidence pending the
remand decision on the issue of whether the property is a dwelling. R.
Nickens, Jr. seconded.

The Board voted as follows:

Aye: S. Devuono-Powell, K. Friedman, T. Williams, R. Nickens, Jr.
Nay: None
Abstain: None

The motion was adopted.

. T19-0514, Green v. Mosser Companies Inc

Appearances: Morris Green Tenant Appellant
Jackie Zaneri Tenant Representative
Gregory McConnellOwner Respondent Representative

The tenant contested rent increases and decreased housing services. A
Notice of Settlement Conference and Hearing was scheduled. The tenant
participated in a settlement conference with the owner representative and
agreed to a settlement. The Hearing Officer sent a written settlement
agreement memorializing the terms, stating that it settled all issues. The
owner signed the agreement, but the tenant did not sign the settlement
agreement, stating that it was not accurate concerning their agreement, and

000013



stated terms that he did not agree to. The Hearing Officer entered an order
based on the oral agreement of the parties.

The issue is whether the Hearing Officer had the authority to issue an order
based on an unsigned settlement agreement? If so, what are the terms of
the settlement?

The tenant representative contended that the tenant never signed the
settlement agreement. He was unrepresented and thought he was at a
hearing. He agreed to the rent payment and when he received the
settlement agreement it was not what he agreed to. He emailed the Hearing
Officer and refused to sign the agreement. The Hearing Officer entered an
order over his objection.

The settlement agreement must be agreed to by both parties. There is no
agreement when both parties did not agree. If there is no agreement the
matter proceeds to a hearing. An oral agreement is okay but does not apply
here because there is no record of what was said by the Hearing Officer
regarding the settlement terms. This case should be remanded for a
hearing.

the tenant representative stated that the status conference was unrecorded,
and the tenant denied in his declaration stating that he agreed to the
decision. The tenant had a number of claims, some of which were outside
the RAP jurisdiction. He agreed to dismiss certain claims but did not say all
claims were resolved.

The owner representative contended that the tenant claimed items that were
untimely, past 90 days. The owner offered the tenant $500.00 to settle this
matter, as he regards this matter as a nuisance case, where the cost of
defending the case costs more than the value of the case.

The Hearing Officer issued a document for the parties’ signature, called a
status conference, and asked the tenant: “Are you asking for something that
is not included in the settlement agreement?” The tenant responded: Yes.”
‘Do you agree that what was stated was what was agreed?” He said “Yes.”
He said this at the first and second hearing. If the Board sends this case
back why take the time and effort to resolve the case amicably if the tenant
can kill the agreement by refusing to sign it when there is no evidence that
what was in the agreement was not agreed upon?

The Hearing Officer said: “I will find there was a settlement agreement
before me and here are the terms.” This is the Hearing Officer’s decision. If

a party does not sign a settlement agreement it can never be finalized. The
purpose of sending a written agreement is to confirm that this is what you

6

000014



agreed to. The Hearing Officer spoke to the tenant twice about what he
agreed to and he agreed that this was what he agreed to. The tenant had
two bites at the apple. The owner representative requested that the Board
affirm the Hearing Decision.

Appeal Decision

After questions to the parties and Board discussion, T. Williams moved to
remand the case to a new hearing officer for a hearing. R. Nickens, Jr.
seconded.

The Board voted as follows:

Aye: S. Devuono-Powell, K. Friedman, T. Williams, R. Nickens, Jr.
Nay: 0

Abstain: 0

The motion was adopted.

5. Information and Announcements
a. Rent Adjustment Program Updates
B. Cohen reported there are two new RAP employees, Merna Altala, who
will be working on the board packets with Briana McGowan, and someone

who will be starting next Monday.

Due to the lateness of the hour, the updates on the new RAP forms is re-
scheduled to the next Board meeting on September 23, 2021.

6. Scheduling and Reports

a. The Board requested that the office of the Vice-Chair of the Rent Board be
placed on the agenda for the July 22, 2021, Board meeting.

b. K. Friedman asked when in-person meetings will resume, what other boards
are doing, and requested that this item be placed on agenda for the July
22,2021, Board meeting

7. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 8:20 p.m.

000015



Appeal Hearing Outline
[. Appellate Body
A. Full Board
1. Quorum.
a) Four.
b) One of each category of Board member first time
matter comes up.
c) Any four Board members next time matter comes
up.
d) Parties may waive requirement for one of each
category, but not numerical quorum.
B. Appeal Panels
1. Quorum.
a) One of each category on Board member.
2. Should only hear appeals on issues already decided by
the Board or more routine cases.
lI. Appeals
A. Grounds for Appeal (Reg. 8.22.120B):
1. The decision is inconsistent with Rent Law, the

Regulations, or prior Board decisions;

401755

000016



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 2 of 14

2. The decision is inconsistent with other Hearing Officer
decisions;

3. New policy issue;

4. The decision violates federal, state, or local law;

5. The decision is not supported by “substantial evidence”.
6. The Hearing Officer made a procedural error denying
sufficient opportunity adequately present claim or respond to
opposing party; or

7. Owner denied a fair return.

B. Timelines and Deadlines
1. Party must appeal in 15 days after decision + 5 days for
mailing.
a) If appeal is late, staff dismisses.
2. 10 day notice for appeal hearing.
3. Goal of hearing appeal w/i 30 days (give reasons in
writing for each 30 day extension)
4. Postponements of Appeal Hearings
a) Granted by Board or staff.
b) Only for good cause and in the interest of justice.

(1) llIness.

401755

000017



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 3 of 14

(2)Travel plans scheduled before notice of
hearing.
(3)Impractical to appear due to unforeseen
circumstances or prearranged plans.
(4)Difficulty or inconvenience in appearing not
sufficient.
c) Must be verified.
d) Mutual consent by parties.
e) Request must be submitted at earliest possible time
prior to appeal hearing.
C. Appeal submissions.
1. Appeal must be on Board form.
2. Must state reason for appeal.
3. Must serve other parties.
4. Staff reviews for deficiency.
a) For example, failure state reasons for appeal.
b) Staff sends deficiency letter.
c) If not corrected, staff dismisses.
5. Limited to 25 pages (record is 2300).

D. Reconsideration by staff.

401755

000018



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 4 of 14

1. If appeal presents minor, facial error, Hearing Officer may
be asked to review, correct, and issue corrected decision.
a) For example, calculation error.
E. Failure to appear.
1. Appellant -- Board may dismiss.
2. Respondent — Board continues with appeal hearing,
appellate must still put forward case.
F. Conduct of Appeal Hearing
1. Open and recorded.
2. Parties may be represented or assisted.
3. Parties may have translators, but if City is to provide,
request must be made in advance.
4. Presentation.
a) Each side gets 15 minutes, unless Board votes
otherwise.
b) 5 minutes for presentation.
c) 5 minutes for rebuttal.
d) 5 minutes for Board questions.

5. Comments by members of the public not considered.

401755

000019



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 5 of 14

6. Additional documents not provided with packet cannot be
used.
a) Due process concerns, opposing party has a right to
respond.
b) If documents are part of the record, they may be
found in case file and referred to.
7. New evidence.
a) No new evidence may be presented at an appeal
hearing.
b) Exceptions
(1) As proffer of what evidence might have been
presented because party did not have
opportunity to present at hearing and that is
basis of appeal.
(2)As proffer of good cause for failure to appear.
c) Board does not consider evidence, but rather refers
to Hearing Officer if proffer is sufficient.
(1) For example, if evidence is sufficient to

constitute good cause for excuse, it is referred to

401755

000020



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 6 of 14

Hearing Officer to determine veracity. If it is not
sufficient cause, no need to refer.
G. Board’s Decision on Appeal
1. Voting
a) Majority of those present required to overturn
(provided quorum is present).
b) Tie vote or no vote upholds decision.
2. Written Decision
a) Staff prepares written decision; comes back Board
consideration at subsequent meeting only if Board
requests.
b) Decision must include analysis articulating how the
evidence supports the findings and how the findings
support the conclusion.
[ll. Appeal on the record or de novo.
A. On the record.
1. No new testimony taken or documents submitted.
2. Parties allowed to argue and to discuss evidence before

the hearing office, but not to submit new evidence.

401755

000021



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 7 of 14

3. The decisions must be apparent from documents or
findings.
4. Parties can agree on what facts are from hearing below.
5. Staff prepares limited portion of record for Board.
a) Board may review the file at office or at Board
meeting.
6. Record of oral proceedings not available unless:
a) Party transcribes or plays portion of hearing.
b) Board member listens at office or requests copy of
recorded hearing.
B. De novo (new hearing).
1. Board takes new evidence (testimony and or
documentary) on entire case or specific issues.
2. De novo or evidentiary hearings by the Board are not
recommended:
a) Hearing Officers are better equipped to handle
evidentiary hearings.
b) Board would have to make evidentiary rulings.
3. Must be at subsequent hearing to allow other party to

prepare to contest evidence or to submit contrary evidence.

401755

000022



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 8 of 14

4. Witnesses must be sworn.
a) Representatives cannot testify.
IV.Evidence.
A. Decision must be based on preponderance of evidence.
B. Strict rules of evidence don’t apply.
C. Board can accept hearsay, but give it appropriate weight.
1. Out of court statement offered for the truth.
2. One person testifying as to what another person says.
3. Primary issue is whether the testimony is reliable because
it is not direct.
4. Must be other corroborative evidence.
D. Direct and circumstantial evidence.
1. Direct.
a) | saw her eat a piece of cake.
2. Circumstantial.
a) | saw the cake with a slice out and cake crumbs on
her mouth.
E. Documents that are not agreed to as being true and correct
should be attested to or certified.

F. Evaluating conflicting evidence.

401755

000023



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 9 of 14

1. Look at surrounding circumstances.

a) Are there other facts to support one side or the

other.

2. Motivation of the person testifying.
3. Credibility of the person testifying.
G. Proffered evidence (offer of proof).
1. This is the evidence | would have presented or would
present if | have had the opportunity to do so.

a) | can show why | was late.

V. Addressing Appeal Issues.
A. What issues did party appeal on?
B. Should the Board address issues that are apparent, but that

neither party appealed on?

1. For example, when a party plainly missed a time deadline
and the decision is in error on this point, but there is no
appeal on this issue.

C. The Board should assume that issues not brought forward on

appeal that are necessary to support the Hearing Officer’s decision

were correctly decided.

401755

000024



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 10 of 14

1. For example, that the tenant timely filed the petition or
that the landlord gave the proper notices.
D. Substantial evidence.
1. The appellant who claims there was not substantial
evidence supporting the decision has the burden of
producing the evidence presented and demonstrating it was
not substantial.
E. Findings do not support decision or a conclusion.
1. The findings point to an opposition conclusion.
a) Example: The finding states that housing services
were decreased, but the conclusion is that no rent
decrease was granted.
2. There is an analytical gap between the findings and the
conclusion.
a) The findings do not state “why” the conclusion
follows.
b) Example:
(1)“The roof work was not a capital
improvement.” (Why not?).

(2)“The roof work was not a capital improvement

401755

000025



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 11 of 14

because it was just the repair of a small leak and
not a replacement of the roof.”
VI.Burdens of Proof.
A. The party with the burden of proof must present evidence to
meet that burden.
1. If the party with the burden fails to produce competent
evidence, that party loses.
B. Examples of burdens.
1. Landlord.
a) Burden of proving eligibility for rent increase.
b) Exemption.
2. Tenant
a) Rent decrease.
VII. Options for Decisions.
A. Affirm hearing officer.
1. No action is affirmation.
2. Affirm with recalculation.
a) Staff performs recalculation and it becomes Board
decision with or without further review.

B. Reverse hearing officer.

401755

000026



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 12 of 14

1. Make a new decision.

C. Remand to Hearing Officer.
1. Board gives instructions as to what issues to address.
2. Hearing officer may make new decision or keep existing
decision.

VIII. Decision

A. Decisions must be in writing.

B. Decisions should have findings.

C. The Board should respond to all issues raised on appeal.

D. The Board should articulate the reasons for its decision.

E. Board’s decision is final as to City.

F. Decision can only be appealed to court by writ.
1. Court considers only case record.

IX.Types of Cases for Board.

A. Rent
1. Tenant.
a) Rent in excess of CPI.
b) Lack of notice at commencement.
c) Lack of notice with Rent Increase.
d) Decreased housing services.
401755

000027



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 13 of 14

e) Uncured code violations.
f) No timely summary after request.
g) Contests exemption.
2. Landlord
a) Rent increase.
b) Exemption from Rent Law.
(1)Board does deal with Just Cause exemptions.
B. Just Cause for Eviction.
1. Protected status.
a) Senior.
b) Disabled.
c) Catastrophically ill.
2. Time for rehabilitation longer than 3 months.
C. Relocation.
1. Amount of relocation benefits for redevelopment or other
relocation.
a) Not code enforcement relocation.
D. Housing Code
1. Interpretations of housing code.

X. Communications With the Board

401755

000028



Administrative Hearing Outline
Page 14 of 14

A. Ex parte communications.
1. Parties communicating with the Board or Hearing Officer
outside of the appeal process.

B. Non-parties speaking at Appeal Hearings.
1. Brown Act permits the public to speak on any item on the
Board Agenda.
2. Because of due process and fairness considerations, the
Board should not consider comments of non-parties at
appeal hearings.

401755v2

401755

000029



CONSOLIDATED CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT

Case Nos.: T18-0414 & T18-0472
Case Name: Martin et al v. Zalabak
Property Address: 5553 Avenue, Oakland CA
Parties: Chester Martin (Tenant)
Kristen Ponger (Tenant)
Sherry Zalabak (Owner)

Lisa Giampaoli (Attorney for Tenant)
Alana Grice Conner (Attorney for Owner)

TENANT APPEAL:

Activity

Tenant Petitions filed
Owner Response filed
Property Owner filed Submission

Of Tangible Evidence

Property Owner’s filed Supplemental
Statement

Hearing Decision mailed
Tenant Appeal filed in both cases
Tenant Attorney Brief filed

Appeal Decision mailed

Date

August 3, 2018 (T18-0414)
November 9, 2018 (T18-0472)

December 5, 2018 (T18-0414)
February 15, 2019 (T18-0472)

February 15, 2019

April 11, 2019

June 7, 2019
June 27, 2019
January 14, 2020

November 20, 2020

000030



Hearing Decision After Remand mailed
Tenant Attorney Second Brief filed

Tenant Appeal filed

Owner Appeal Response filed

March 9, 2021
Aprl 12, 2021
April 27, 2021

April 29, 2021

000031



{ {
~ CITY OF OAKLAND ;f"f?“f”‘““b" il b
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
P.O. Box 70243
Nl Oakland, CA 94612-0243 :
G 510) 238-3721 '
CITY OF OAKLAND (510) g TENANT PETITION
ut This Yo C e You Can, Failure to provide needed information may
result in your petition being rejected or delayed.
Please print legibly
Your Name Rental Address (with zip code) Telephone:
CHESTER "CHASE" MARTIN 5553 KALES AVENUE
KRISTEN PONGER OAKLAND, CA 94618 E-mail:
Yourv Representative’s Name Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone:
» Email:
Property Owner(s) name(s) Mailing Address (with zip code) . Telephone:
SHERRY ZALABAK 402 VERMONT AVENUE e
BERKELEY, CA 94707
Property Manager or Management Co. Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone:
(if applicable)
Email:
Number of units on the property: 2
Type of unit you rent .- O Apartment, Room, or
(check onc) x House | ‘8 Condominium . Live-Work
Are you current on .
your rent? (check one) ” Yes d No

If you are not current on your rent, please explain. (If you are legally withholding rent state what, if any, habitability violations exist in
your unit.)

I GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Check all that apply. You must check at least one box. For all of the

grounds for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I (We) contest one or more rent increases on
one or more of the following grounds:

(a) The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice | was given was calculated incorrectly.

% | (b) The increase(s) exceed(s) the CPI Adjustment and is (are) unjustified or is (are) greater than 10%.

(¢) Ireceived a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment
b Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the avallable banked

rent increase.

Rev. 731717 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. ' 1

000032




an

- o

(d) No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice of increase(s) I am
contesting. (Only for increases noticed after July 26, 2000.)

x (e) The property owner did not give me the required form “Notlée of the Rent Adjustment Program™ at least
6 months before the effective date of the rent increase(s).

(f) The rent increase notice(s) was (were) not given to me in compliance with State law.

(g) The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-month period.

(h) There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, or there are serious problems
with the conditions in the unit because the owner failed to do requested repair and maintenance. (Complete
Section III on following page)

(i) The owner i3 providing me with fewer housing services than I received prevmusly or is charging me for
sérvices originally paid by the owner. (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing services is considered an
increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent adjustment based on a decrease in housing services.)
(Complete Section 11l on following page)

(j) My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period for-a Capital Improvement had expired.

x (k) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. (The 5-year period
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1, 2014).

X (1) I wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordmance because the exemption was based on
frand or mistake. LOMC 8.22, Article )

(m) The owner did not give me a summary of the Justlﬁcatlon(s) for the increase despite my written request.

(n) The rent was raised illegally after the unit was vacated as set forth under OMC 8.22.080.

IL RENTAL HISTORY: (You must complete this section)

Date you moved into the Unit: N0V - 7—"’ [ 2—0‘ “! Initial Rent: $__ 2,600 /month

When did the owner first provide you with the RAP NOTICE, a written NOTICE TO TENANTS of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program? Date: _Never ___. If never provided, enter “Never.”

Is your rent subsidized or controlled by any government agency, including HUD (Section 8)? Yes '

List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backwards. If
you need additional space, please attach another sheet. If you never received the RAP Notice you can
contest all past increases. You must check “Yes” next to each increase that you are challenging.

Date you Date increase Monthly rent increase | Are you Contesting Did You Receive a

received the goes into effect : this Increase in this Rent Program

notice (mo/day/year) Petition?* Notice With the
(mo/day/year)~ - From To Notice Of
i . Increase?

06/05/18 08/01/18 $2,652 $.4,500 ¥Yes L No {Yes %No

121116 1117 52600 |So652 | UYe ®No | “Yes ®No

$ $ UYes = No ZYes [No

$ $ JYes _No “Yes ZNo

$ $ UYes _No “Yes No

$ $ UYes _No _Yes UNo

Rev. 73117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 2

000033




£

* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent Increase. (0.M.C. 8.22.090 A 2) If
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past, you
have 120 days to file a petition. (0. M.C. 822,090 A 3) :

Have you ever filed a petition for this rental unit?

Q@ Yes
®| No

List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all other relevant Petitions:

HI. DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADE TE HOUSING SERVICES:
Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful
rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housing service, you must
complete this sectlon

Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? : IYes &No \
Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? OYes 8&No
Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental umt? OYes NNo

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (i) on page 2, please attach a
separate sheet listing a description of the reduced service(s) and problem(s). Be sure to include the
following:

1) a list of the lost housing service(s) or problem(s);

2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the semce(s)

3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s); and

4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s).
Please attach documentary evidence if available.

You have the option to have a City inspector come to your unit and inspect for any code violation. To make an
appointment, call the City of Oakland, Code of Comipliance Unit at (510) 238-3381.

IV.VERIFICATION: The tenant must sign:
I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said

in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petition are true copies of the
originals.

Tenant’s Signature Date

Rev. 7731117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 3

000034




PN s

-

Ty

V. MEDIATION AVAILABLE: Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an
agreement with the owner. If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a
hearing is held. If the parties do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case will go to a formal hearing
before a different Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer.

You may choose to have the mediation conducted by a Rent Adjﬁstment Program Hearing Officer or select an
outside mediator. Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If
you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 2383721 to make arrangements. Any fees

charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes will be the responsibility of the parties
requesting the use of their services. :

Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree (aﬁef both your petition and the owner’s response have
been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adjustment Program will not schedule &
mediation session if the owner does not file a response to the petition. Rent Board Regulation 8.22.100.A.

If you want to schedulé our cﬁse for mediation, sign below.

I agre?o have my chLdiated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Officer (no charge). .

!

" Tenant’s Sighature Dat

. IMPORTANT INFORMATI

Time to File

This form must be received at the offices of the Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) within the time limit for
filing a petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance (Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22). RAP staff
cannot grant an extension of time by phone to file your petition. Ways to Submit. Mail te; Oakland Rent
Adjustment Program, P.O. Box 70243, Oakland, CA 94612; In person: Date stamp and deposit in Rent
Adjustment Drop-Box, Housing Assistance Center, Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6" Floor,

Oakland; RAP Online Petitioning System: http:/rapwp.oaklandnet. com/neunon forms/. For more
information, please call; (510) 238-3721.

File Review ,

Your property owner(s) will be required to file a response to this petition with the Rent Adjustment office
within 35 days of notification by the Rent Adjustment Program. When it is received, the RAP office will send
you a copy of the Property Owner’s Response form. Any attachments or supporting documentation from the
owner will be available for review in the RAP office by appointment. To schedule a file review, please call the
Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721. If you filed your petition at the RAP Online Petitioning
System, the owner may use the online system to submit the owner response and attachments, which would be -
accessible there for your review.,

YiI. HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?

Printed form provided by the owner

Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program
Legal services or community organization

Sign on bug or bus shelter

Rent Adjustment Program web site

Other (describe):

]

Rev. 73117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 4

000035




Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue '
Oakland, CA 94618

August 3,2018

Rent AdJustment Program (RAP)
City of Oakland, CA ~
Re: Tenant Petition

To,Whorn' it May Concern:

Chester “Chase” Martin & Kristen Ponger, “Tenants”
Sherry Zalabak, “Landlord” _
Rental Property Address: 5553 Kales Ave, Oaktand, CA 94618

On June 5th, 2018 Landlord dropped off “Sixty Day Notice of Change in Terms of Tenancy’
[Attachment A] raising tenants’ rent 70% from $2,652/month to $4, 500/month as of August 5th,
2018. Landlord’s behavior has been erratic and contradictory over the past 6 months, and no
justification for the rent i increase has beén provided. Tenants Martin & Ponger are choosing to
proactively contest the increase via this petition on the following grounds.

1. Increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is greater than 10% without RAP approval

2. Tenants have never received riotice of RAP |

3. Wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the -

exemption was based on fraud

Key Points: :
e 5553 Kales Avenue is pubhcly listed as a Slngle Family Residence, but has been rented
.as a duplex with two separate units since before current tenants Kristen & Chase signed
a lease for front 1-BR unit in 2014 [Attachment B]
e Tenants entered lease for front unit in November 2014; no RAP notice provided
[Attachment C]
a. Previous tenants were Holly and Steve
e Since 2014, the back unit has had two different sets of tenants paying rent under own
respective leases
‘a. Mike and LeAnne Devol (maiden name Fowlkes); $1 100/month
b. Lindsay Byrd and Isabel Avellan [Attachment D]; $1,400/month
e Landlord raised both front & rear units’ respective rents by 2% in January 2017 with no
RAP notice [Attachment E]
e On March 28, 2018 Landlord states that tenants must vacate the property by July 1,
2018, so that she can make improvements to prepare for sale [Attachment F]
e On April 25, 2018, Landlord urged tenants repeatedly to sign agreement to terminate
lease [Attachment G], misrepresenting document as “extension of tenancy”
[Attachment H]

000036




(,\ » . (M.

¢ Tenants do not have access to back unit but it is currently vacant. Landlord has told
tenants as recent!y as July 2018 that they are restncted from back unit and yard, as
those are a separate unit.

. Tenants have always paid rent on time, cared for the property, maintained and performed
minor upgrades and repairs at their own financial expense. Landlord stated in February
2018 that Martin & Ponger were “the best tenants she's ever had”

Glossary of Attachments:
Tenants are providing the fotlowmg attached documentatlon outlmmg our historical rental
agreement and series of events that led to this petition.

e Attachment A: Sixty-Day Notice of Change in Terms of Tenancy (Rent increase)
Attachment B: E- -mail to back unit tenants announcing vacancy in front unit
Attachment C: Mamn & Ponger Lease Agreement
Attachment D: Byrd & Avellan Lease Agreement
Attachment E: Increase in rent for both units without RAP Notice, Jan. 2017
Attachment F: Landiprd Sfates tenants must leave property to prepare for s
ale
Attachment G: Landlord-Tenant Agreement to Terminate Lease
Attachment H: Urging tenants to vacate and sign lease termination, mlsrepresentmg
document as an “extension”

e Attachment J: Offer of saie—bffproperty with Landlord’s description of secondary unit

Background

in February 2018, landlords of the 5553 Kales Avenue rental property, Sherry and John
Zalabak, invited the tenants, Chase Martin & Kristen Ponger, over to their home in the Berkeley
Hills to discuss the potential purchas'e of their Kales Ave rental property. The property at 5553
Kales includes two separate units: the 1-BR front house that Kristen & Chase have rented since
November 2014, and the rear standalone studio cottage which the landlord refers to as a
“Golden Duplex”. : ‘

After tenants shared the news with the Iandlords that they were expecting the:r first chiid
in July, both parties left the February meeting in agreement that there was no rush to action
necessary and to reconvene in the Fall of 2018 to discuss further.

On Sunday, March 25th at 9am Landlord Sherry showed up to tenant's home
unannounced to with a reaitor friend named Julie Durkee. Landlord proceeded to barge into the
house for an impromptu appraisal of the front unit, while accosting the tenants with questions on
whether they were interested in buying another house down the street to move-in before baby
arrives on July 9.

On March 27th, Tenants (Kristen & Chase) received an email and physical note from
landlord (Sherry) apologizing for her unannounced visit the previous weekend, E-mail stated
that circumstances had changed in respect to her husband’s health, and tenants must vacate
the unit by July 1, 2018 [Attachment F] in order to prepare the property for sale. Alternatively,
landlord gave the tenants 30 days to make an offer to purchase the property. Landlord stated
that tenants must make an offer or move out by July 1st.

000037




[ ' . ) \,sel»,‘

On March 28th Tenants Krlsten & Chase replred to Landlord’s email conﬁrmlng interest
in purchasmg the property, but could not make an offer without the Iandlord first provrdlng an
asking price. Tenants also requested that landlord would reconstder the July 1st vacancy
timeline since thelr baby was due that week.

On March 29th, Landlord dr0pped off a-handwritten note [Attachment J] offering the
property “as is” for $1.3M through a private sale. At this pornt tenants took it upon themselves to
- contact a real estate agent to conduct a comparable evaluation of the property who also referred
tenants to a lawyer, Jean Shrem.

On April 25th, Landlord begins to repeatedly urge tenants to sign a “Landlord-Tenant
Agreement to Terminate Lease” document [Attachment G] without cause. Landiord
misrepresents this as an “extension” [Attachment H] of lease and her offer of sale.

. On May 25th, Tenants email Landlord with a purchase offer while giving notice of their
refusal to sign “Termination of Lease” document.

On June 5th, 2018 Landlord shows up unannounced to drop off “Sixty Day Notice of
Change in Terms of Tenancy” [Attachment A], raising tenants rent 70%, from $2,652 to $4,500
effective August 5, 2018. Tenant Chase Martin was present at the time and approached
Landlord Sherry to discuss the legality of the notice, but was rebuffed by the landlord. Tenant
verbally informed Landiord of intention to file with Rent Board if issue could not be resolved
amicably in private, but as of August 1st no reply received from Landlord.

000038




?rr ._\‘ . ‘ . , (’{"’.4

CITY OF OAKLAND " [[For date stamp.

CITY oF OAKLAND

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM |. .
P.O. Box 70243 I
Oakland, CA 94612-0243
(510) 238-3721

HDEC -5 PH L 2b
PROPERTY OWNER
RESPONSE

Please Fill Qut This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information

may result in your response being rejected or delayed.

CASE, NUMBER T 18-0414

Your Name Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Sherry Zalabak 402 Vermont Avenue o
Berkeley, CA 94707 :
Email:
e
Your Representative’s Name (if any) Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Alana Grice Conner 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor
Fried & Williams LLP Oakland, CA 94612 Email:
Tenant(s) Name(s) Complete Address (with zip ¢ode) Telephone:
Chester "Chase" Martin 5553 Kales Avenue
Kristen Ponger Oakland, CA 94618
Email:

Property Address (If the property has more than one address, list all addresses)
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618

Total number of units on
propetrty
» Single Family Residence

Have you paid for your Oakland Business License? Yes Kl No [ Lic. Number:__ 00182031
The property owner must have a current Oakland Business License. If it is not current, an Owner Petition or
Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.

Have you paid the current year’s Rent Program Service Fee ($68 pér unit)? Yes X No [1 APN48A-7043-40
The property owner must be current on payment of the RAP Service Fee. If the fee is not current, an Owner Petition .
or Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.

Date on which you acquired the building;

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? Yes [0 No K.

10/07 10 _.

Type of unit (Circle One):[House} Condominium/ Apartment, room, or live-work

L JUSTIFICATION FOR RENT INCREASE You must check the appropriate justification(s) -

box for each increase greater than the Annual CPI adjustment contested in the tenant(s) petition.
For the detailed text of these justifications, see Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22 and the Rent

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.

Rev, 3/28/17

000039




i.(’e"\ (ﬂr-l

Board Regulations. You can get additional information and copies of the Ordinance and .- - . -
Regulations from the Rent Program office in person or by phoning (510) 238-3721. i}

HEHT ARl

. ' N P P
You must prove the contested rent increase is justified. For each justification lt’%t‘ed"on" Ehe
following table, you must attach organized documentary evidence demonstratinzﬂ;'& p- n"ﬁ"ﬂmﬂ’é"’htﬁi 2l
to the increase. This documentation may include cancelled checks, receipts, and invoices.
Undocumented expenses, except certain maintenance, repair, legal, accounting and management

expenses, will not usually be allowed.

Date of Banking Increased Capital Uninsured = Debt ~ Fair

Contested (deferred Housing Improvements Repair Service Return
Increase annual Service Costs : Costs
increases)
O | | o - -0 ]
o O o I O [
| B O 0 | ]

If you are justifying additional contested increases, please attach a separate sheet.

II. RENT HISTORY If you contest the Rent History stated on the Tenant Petition, state the
correct information in this section. If you leave this section blank, the rent history on the tenant’s
petition will be considered correct :

The tenant moved into the rental unit on. November 24, 2014 .

The tenant’s initial rent including all services provided was: $_2,600.00 / month.

Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form entitled “NOTICE TO TENANTS OF
RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM” (“RAP Notice”) to all of the petitioning tenants?
Yes X No Idon’t know

If yes, on what date was the Notice first given? QOctober 10, 2018 but unit is exempt
Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes X No

| Begin with the most recent rent and work backwards. If you need more space please attach another sheet.

Date Notice Date Increase Rent Increased Did you provide the “RAP
Given Effective " | NOTICE?” with the notice
(mo./day/year) From To of rent increase?
10/10/18 1271518 | ¥ 2,652.00 $ 4,500.00 Yes  ONo-
12/1/16 Y117 ¥ 2,600.00 ¥ 5652.00 DYes @No
$ $ OYes UONo
$ $ OYes ONo
$ $ OYes 0ONo

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17

000040




HI EXEMPTION

oIy

If you claim that your property is cxempt ftom Rent Adjusbment (Oaﬁ]%ﬁﬂ 1'-Mummpal'Code :
Chapter 8.22), please check one or more of the grounds: WIBDEC-5 Py 1ol )
UL T i .

The unit is a single family residence or condominjum exempted by the Costa Fawldns Rental
Houging Act (California Civil Code 1954,50, et seq.). X{ claiming exemption under Costa-Hlawldns,
pleasc answer the following questions on a separate sheet:

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Cm] Code Seotion 1946)?
Did'the prjor tenant leave aftor being given a notice of mnt inarsase (Civil Code Section 827)?
Was the prior tenant avisted for cause?
. Arethere any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety nodes in the unit or building?
Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominfum that can ba sold separately?
Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when hefshe moved in?
ftheunitisa condomxmum, did you purchase #t? If so: 1) fron whom? 2) Did you purchase the entira
building? :

PN~

Ne b

+

O The rent for the unit is confrolled, regulated or sub«udizcd by a governmental unit, agency of
suthotlty other than the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance,

! The unit was newly constructed and a certifioats of ogeupancy was fssued for it on or after
Jannary 1, 1983,
O On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was » resident of a motel, hotel, or

boarding house less than 30 days,

| The subject nnit is in a building that was rchabilitated at a cost of 50% or more of the average
basic cost of new construoction.

(| The unit is an accommodation in & hospital, convent, monastery, extended care facility,
conyalescent home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated by sn educativnal
nsthtution,

i The unit is Jocated in a building with three or fewer units. The owner oceupies one of the units
continuously as his or her prineipal residence and has done so for at least one year, :

IV. DECREASED HOUSING SERVICES
If the petition filed by your tenant olalims Decreased Housing Serviecs, state your position regerding, the

tenant’s claim(s) of decreased housing serviaes, If you need mote space attach a ssparate shoet, Submit
any documents, photographs or other tangible evidenee that supports your position,

V., VERIFICATION

1 declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that all
statements rade in this Response are true and that all of the documents attaehed hereto

nretrue pies of the o;gx:ilq./.

O?ﬁer’s Signature Date

. TFor more informatien phote (510)-238-3721,
Rev. 3/28/17

000041




(" ! | o (mn

Y
A E
HUMT ARRsT oy

Landlord Narrative

The Tenants’ petition must be dismissed because the Rent Adjustmegft} &grg"g'rpaﬁl&loégﬁ’bhé.’de
jurisdiction. The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code §1954.50 et seq.).
See Attachment A, Property Assessment Information. Furthermore, the Tenants’ petition is
incomplete because the Tenants failed to sign the verification under penalty of perjury which is
required. Nonetheless, if the hearing officer seeks to further review the petition, Landlord
responds as follows:

* To address the issues raised by Tenant in section I. Grounds for Petition, Landlord responds
as follows:

~ (b) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa~Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The CPI
Adjustment does not apply to the rental unit.

(c) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to receive approval from the Rent Adjustment Program for the
contested rent increase. ' '

(d) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to provide the Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP
Notice) form.

(e) The rental unit is exerpt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to provide the Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP
Notice) form. ‘ -

(k) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The limit
for rent increases over 30% over a 5-year period does not apply to the rental unit.

(1) This exemption is based on a State law and there is no fraud or mistake.

000042




f.n‘*‘:n . ‘ (’"\

i

o uY U Sawr e,
ST ARBITHA N 0l

20_1’8 DEC -5 PM 1: 24

L. Justification for Rent Increase

Date of Contested Rent Increase: 10/10/18 effective 12/15/18
Justification: Single Family Home exemption

111, Exemption Attachment

1. Did the prior tenant leave after beihg given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?
No .

2. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section

C827)? ‘

No ‘

3. Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?
No :

~ 4. Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit

or building?
No

5. Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?
Yes , v : ,

6. Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in? :
No '

7. If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? No
If so: 1) from whom? N/A 2) Did you purchase the entire building? N/A

1000043




T % 04T @d EL

£l ’
l‘ k3 G
T, Eoh.date N
di b \d Hut 5‘ e ’! Vrabn

CITY OF OAKLAND
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM AiENDY -9 P4 3 26
P.O. Box 70243 W oo
Oakland, CA 94612-0243
CITY OF OAKLAND 102383721 TENANT PETITION

Please Fill Qut This Form As Completel As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may

result in your petition being rejected or delayed.

Please print legibly '
. Your Name Rental Address (with zip code) Telephone:
‘ CHESTER "CHASE" MARTIN | 5553 KALES AVENUE _ - |

KRISTEN PONGER OAKLAND, CA 94618 B-mail

Your Representative’s Nafne Mailing Address (with zip code) . Telephone:
Email:

Property Owner(s) namé(s) Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone: )

SHERRY ZALABAK 402 VERMONT AVENUE Email:

‘ BERKELEY, CA 94707
. Property Manager or Management Co. Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone:

(if applicable)

Email:

Number of units on the property:

Type of unit you rent
(check one)

K House

Q Condominium

O Apartment, Room, or
Live-Work

Are you current on
_your rent? (check one)

29 Yes

0 No

If you are not current on your rent, please explain. (If you are legally mthholdmg rent state what, if any; habitability violations exist in

your unit.)

I. GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Checkall that apply. You must check at least one box. For all of the
grounds-for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I (We) contest one or more rent increases on

one or more of the following grounds:

(a) The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice I was given was calculated mcorrectly

(b) The increase(s) exceed(s) the CPI Adjustment and is (are) unjustified or is (are) greater than 10%

rent increase.

(¢) Ireceived a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment
_| Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available banked

Rev. 7/31/17

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

000044




a0y

- (d) No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice of increase(s) I am
contesting. (Only for increases noticed after July 26, 2000.)

X (e) The property owner did not give me the required form “Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program” at least
6 months before the effective date of the rent 1ncrease(s)

(f) The rent increase notice(s) was (were) not given to me in compliance with State law.

(8) The increase I am'contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-month period.

| (h) There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, or there are serious problems
with the conditions in the unit because the owner failed to do requested repair and maintenance. (Complete
Section III on following page)

(i) The owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I received previously or is charging me for
services originally paid by the owner. (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing services is considered an
increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent adjustment based on a decrease in housing services.)
(Complete Section III on following page)

(i) My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period for a Capxtal Improvement had expired.

(k) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. (The 5-year period
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1, 2014).

(1) I wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the exemptlon was based on
fraud or mistake. (OMC 8.22, Aticle ])

(m) The owner did not give me a summary of the justification(s) for the increase despite my written request.

(n) The rent was raised illegally after the unit was vacated as set forth under OMC 8.22.080.

II. RENTAL HISTORY: (You must complete this section)

Date you moved into the Unit: NOVEMBER 24, 2014 Initial Rent: $ 2,600 /month

When did the owner first provide you with the RAP NOTICE, a written NOTICE TO TENANTS of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program? Date: November 4, 2018. If never provided, enter “Never.”

Is your rent subsidized or controlled by any government agency, including HUD (Section 8)? Yes No

List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backwards. If
you need additional space, please attach another sheet. If you never received the RAP Notice you can
contest all past increases. You must check “Yes” next to each increase that you are challenging.

Date you Date increase Monthly rent increase .Are you Contesting Did You Receive a
received the goes into effect this Increase in this Rent Program
notice (mo/day/year) Petition?* Notice With the

(mo/day/year) From To ' o Notice Of

‘ ‘ Increase?
11/4/18 01/03/19 $2,652 $4,500 ~XYes ONo XYes ONo
06/05/18 08/01/18 $2 652 $4.500 OYes ¥No OYes XNo
12/116 01/01/17 $2,600 $2,652 OYes  ¥No OYes XNo

' $ $ OYes ONo OYes ONo
$ 5 OYes ONo OYes [ONo
$ $ OYes 0ONo OYes ONo

Rev. 753U17 ,  For more information phone (5 10)/ 238-3721. 2

000045




fmm. : . | fﬂm

* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent increase. (0M.C.8.22.090 A 2) If
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past, you
have 120 days to file a petition. (O.M C.822090A3)

Have you ever filed a petltlon for this rental unit?
% Yes
0 No

List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all other relevant Petitions:
T18-0414 Martin et al v. Zalabak

- III. DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUSING SERVICES:
Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful
rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housing service, you must
complete this section.

Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? - OYes XNo
Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? OYes XNo
. Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental ugit? OYes ¥No

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (i) on page 2, please attach a
separate sheet listing a descnptlon of the reduced serwce(s) and problem(s). Be sure to include the
following:

1) alist of the lost housing service(s) or problem(s);

2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the service(s)

3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s); and

4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s).
Please attach documentary evidence if available.

You have the option to have a City inspector come to your unit and inspect for any code v1olat10n To make an
appointment, call the City of Oakland, Code of Compliance Unit at (510) 238-3381.

1V, VERIFICATION : The tenant must sign:

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said
"in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petltlon are true copies of the
origmals

2 —~_ Wla]1e

Tenant’s Signathre ) . "Date

Rev. 3U17 . For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 3

000046




V. MEDIATION AVAILABLE: Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an
agreement with the owner. If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a
hearing is held. If the parties do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case will go to a formal hearing
before a djfferent Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer. '

You may choose to have the mediation conducted by a Rent Adjustment Program Heanng Officer or select an
“outside mediator. Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If
you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make atrangements. Any fees
charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes will be the responsibility of the partles
requesting the use of their services. :

Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree (after both your petition and the owner’s response have
been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adjustment Program will not schedule a

mediation session if the owner does not file a response to the petition. Rent Board Regulation 8.22.100.A.

If you want to schedule your case for mediation, sign below.
I agree to have W;;cji_ajd by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Officer (no charge).

Vi[a]19

Tenant’s Signature ‘ . Date

VL. IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Time to File

This form must be received at the offices of the Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) within the time limit for
filing a petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance (Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22). RAP staff
cannot grant an extension of time by phone to file your petition. Ways to Submit. Mail te: Oakland Rent
"Adjustment Program, P.O. Box 70243, Oakland, CA 94612; In person: Date stamp and deposit in Rent
Adjustment Drop-Box, Housing Assistance Center, Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6% Floor,
Oakland; RAP Online Petitioning System: http: //rapvm oaklandnet. com/netltlon-forms/ For more
information, please call: (510) 238-3721.

File Review ' '

Your property owner(s) will be required to file a response to this petition with the Rent Adjustment office
within 35 days of notification by the Rent Adjustment Program. When it is received, the RAP office will send
you a copy of the Property Owner’s Response form. Any attachments or supporting documentation from the
owner will be available for review in the RAP office by appointment. To schedule a file review, please call the
Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721. If you filed your petition at the RAP Online Petitioning
System, the owner may use the online system to submit the owner response and attachments, which would be
accessible there for your review.

VII. HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?

Printed form provided by the owner

Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program
Legal services or community organization

Sign on bus or bus shelter

Rent Adjustment Program web site

Other (describe):

b

Rev. 731117 - For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 4

000047




Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue '
Oakland, CA 94618

November 7, 2018

Housing and Community Development Department
Rent Adjustment Program (RAP)
City of Oakland,; CA

Re: Addition to RAP Case no. T18-0414 Martin et al v. Zalabak

" Chester “Chase” Martin & Kristen Pohger, “Tenants”

Sherry Zalabak, “Landlord” :
Rental Property Address: 5553 Kales Ave, Oakland, CA 94618

To Whom it May Concern:
Tenants are filing an additional petition to add to the existing case number T18-0414, filed

August 3rd. Tenants are filing current petition to contest Landlord's second notification of a rent
increase of 70%, raising the rent from $2,652/mo. to $4,500/mo [Attachment AA].

‘Tenants Martin and Ponger are contesting the increase on the following grounds:

1. The increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is unjustified and greater than 10%.

2. lreceived a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the

Rent Adjustment Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI

Adjustment and the available banked rent increase. ' ‘

The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years.

4. | wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the
- exemption was based on fraud or mistake.

w

Key Points: ,

e 5553 Kales Avenue has been rented as a multi-unit property, with two dwelling units with
separate leases since before current tenants Kristen and Chase signed a lease for Unit
Ain 2014

e Tenants entered into a lease agreement in 2014 based on the fact that the property was
a duplex and protected under rent control

¢ Upon signing the lease in 2014, Unit B of the duplex was already leased to Tenants
LeAnne (Fowlkes) and Mike Devol on a separate lease agreement (2011-2017)

e Since 2014, Unit B has had two different sets of tenants paying rent under their own
respective leases '

o 2011-2017: LeAnne (Fowlkes) and Mike Devol [Attachment FF]; $1,070/month
o 2017-2018: Lindsay Byrd and Isabel Avellan [Attachment D]; $1,400/month

000048




Martin/Ponger/Zalabak Petition
November 7, 2018
Page2 of2 .-

Since _the original petition was filed on August 3rd, the following has occurred:

On Monday, August 6th, Tenants Chester Martin and Kristen Ponger notified Landlord Sherry
Zalabak of filed RAP petition [Attachment BB]. On August 8th, 2018 Tenants Chester Martin
- and Kristen Ponger received an email from distressed landlord Sherry Zalabak about the filed
RAP petition, acknowledging the second unit on the property [Attachment CC]. Landiord
proceeded to show up at the tenant’s house unannounced the following day, emotionally
pleading that tenants withdraw the petition and handle this without legal involvement. Tenant

~ Chester Martin agreed and filed to withdraw the petition in-person at office of the City of
Oakland Rent Program later that week [Attachment DD]. Unbeknownst to Martin the
withdrawal was never processed. In September, Tenants proceeded to proactively and
voluntarily pay the legal CPI rent increase of 3.4%, as they believed this was a fair resolution.

Despite Landlord’s request for Tenants not to take legal action, on November 4, 2018 Tenants
Chester Martin and Kristen Ponger'received two letters from Alana Grice Conner of Fried &
Williams Attorneys at Law [Attachment AA, EE]. The first letter notified the tenants that the
landlord is rescinding the original Sixty-Day Notice Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy
[Attachment EE] and Pre-Move Out Negotiations Disclosure Form, which the tenants refused
to accept. The second letter was a new Sixty-Day Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy
[Attachment AA].

Gloséary of Attachments:
Tenants are providing the following attached documentation outlining our historical rental
agreement and series of events that led to this petition.

Attachment AA: Sixty-Day Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy
Attachment BB: E-mail from Tenant notifying Landlord of filed RAP Petition

_Attachment CC: E-mail from Landlord acknowledging second unit on property

Attachment DD: E-mail from Tenant to Landlord stating the withdrawal of RAP petition
Attachment EE: Rescinding Sixty-Day Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy from June
5,2018

Attachment FF: LeAnne Devol’s Bank Statement with proof of rent payment to Sherry
Zalabak

*Please see original petition, case no. T18-0414, Martin et al v. Zalabak for complete
background story and additional information.

000049




o

r | . n

CITY OF OAKLAND | TR,
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAME ##3tTRATION K
P.O. Box 70243 .
Oakland, CA 94612-0243  0I9FEB IS PH 302

510) 238-3721
10 PROPERTY OWNER
RESPONSE

£

CITY oF OAKLAND

Please Fill Out This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information
may result in your response being rejected or delayed. :

CASE NUMBER T 18-0472

Your Name Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Sherry Zalabak . 402 Vermont Avenue A
Berkeley, CA 94707 -
A Email:
Your Representative’s Name (if any) Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Alana Grice Conner 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor
Fried & Williams LLP | Oakland, CA 94612 T
Tenant(s) Name(s) » Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Chester "Chase" Martin 5553 Kales Avenue h
Kristen Ponger Oakland, CA 94618
Email:
Property Address (If the property has more than one address, list all addresses) Total number of units on
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618 ‘ property
. Single Family Residence

Have you paid for your Oakland Business License? Yes Bl No [ Lic. Number:__ 00182031
The property owner must have a current Oakland Business License. If it is not current, an Owner Petition or
Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding, Please provide proof of payment.

Have you paid the current year’s Rent Program Service Fee ($68 per unit)? Yes X No [1 APN:48A-7043-40
The property owner must be current on payment of the RAP Service Fee. If the fee is not current, an Owner Petition

or Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.

Date on which you acquired the buildingf _10/07 /10 .

[s there more than one street address on the parcel? Yes (I No E.

Type of unit (Circle One):[House } Condominium/ Apartment, room, or live-work

L JUSTIFICATION FOR RENT INCREASE You must check the appropriate justification(s)
box for each increase greater than the Annual CPI adjustment contested in the tenant(s) petition.
For the detailed text of these justifications, see Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22 and the Rent

1

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17

000050




%‘-m‘"\

N
('-'-‘!':\

Board Regulations. You can get additional information and copies of the Ordinance and
Regulations from the Rent Program office in person or by phoning (510) 238-3721.

You must prove the contested rent increase is justified. For each justification checked on the
following table, you must attach organized documentary evidence demonstrating your entitlement
to the imcrease. This documentation may include cancelled checks, receipts, and imvoices.
Undocumented expenses, except certain maintenance, repair, legal, accounting and management
- expenses, will not usually be allowed.

Increased

Date of Banking Capital Uninsured Debt Fair
Contested (deferred Housing Improvements Repair Service Return
Increase annual Service Costs Costs
increases ) v
o . O O O O O
O O O O O O
O ' 1 O 1 o O

If you are justifying additional contested increases, please attach a separate sheet.

II. RENT HISTORY If you contest the Rent History stated on the Tenant Petition, state the
correct information in this section. If you leave this section blank, the rent history on the tenant’s
petition will be considered correct '

Th¢ tenant moved into the rental unit on November 24, 2014

The tenant’s initial rent including all services provided was: $_2,600.00 / month.

-Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form entitled “NOTICE TO TENANTS OF
RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?” (“RAP Notice”) to all of the petitioning tenants?
Yes X No - Idon’t know ;

If yes, on what date was the Notice first given? October 10, 2018 but unit is exempt

Is the tenant currerit on the rent? Yes X No

Begin with the most recent rent and work backwards. If you need more space please attach another sheet.

Date Notice Date Increase Rent Increased Did you provide the “RAP
Given Effective NOTICE” with the notice
(mo./day/year) From To of rent increase?
10/10/18 12/15/18 $ 2,652.00 $ 4,500.00 ¥yes ONo
06/05/18 08/01/18 $2,652.00 $4,500.00escinded OYes MNo
12/1/16 U117 $ 2,600.00 $ 2,652.00 OYes ®No
$ $ OYes ONo
$ $ OYes ONo
2

Rev. 3/28/17

For more information phone (510)-238-3721. -

000051




e e

L EXEMPTION

If you claim lhat your propetty is exempt from Rent Adjustment (Oakland Municipal Code
Chapter 8.22), please check one or more of the grounds:

The unit is a single family. residence or condominium'exempted by the Costa Hawkins Rental
Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). If claiming exemption under Costa-Hawkins,
please auswer the following questions on a separate sheet:

Did the plior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?
Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section 827)’7
Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?
Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, Fre or safety codes in the unit or building?
Is the unit 4 single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?
Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?
If the unit is a condominium, did 'you purchase it? 1fso: [) from whom? 2) Did- you purchase the entire
building?

O The rent for the unit is controlied, regulated or subsldlzcd by a governmental unit, agency or
authoruy other than the City of Qakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

| The unit was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was issued for it on or after
January 1, 1983,

0 On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident of a motel, hotel, or
boarding house less than 30 days.

O The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost of 50% or more of the average
basic cost of new construction.

m| The unit is an accomniodation in a hospital, convent, monastery, extended care facility,
convalescent home, non-protit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated by an educational
institution.

O The unit is located in a building with three or fewer units. The owner occupies otie of the uniis
continuously as his or her principal residence and has done so for at least one year.

LV. DECRTASED HOUSING SERVICES

If the petilion fAiled by your tenant claims Decreased Housing Services, state your position tegarding the
- tenant’s claim(s) of decreased housing services. [f you need more space atlach a separate sheet. Submit
any documents, photographs or other tangible evidence that supports your position.

V. VERIFICATION

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of Califoruia that all
statements made in this Response are true and that all of the documents attached hereto
are true copies of the originals.

(T Pebruary 15,2019

Property Dwner’s Signature ' . Date

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17 :




Landlord Narrative

The Tenants’ petition must be dismissed because the Rent Adjustment Program doesn’t have
jurisdiction. The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code §1954.50 et seq.).
See Attachment A, Property Assessment Information. Futthermore, the Tenants’ petition is
incomplete because the Tenants failed to sign the verification under penalty of perjury which is
" required. Nonetheless, if the hearing ofﬁcer seeks to further review the petition, Landlord
responds as follows:

To address the issues raised by Tenant in section I. Grounds for Petition, Landlord responds
as follows:

(b) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The CPI
Adjustment does not apply to the rental unit.

(©) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to receive approval from the Rent Adjustment Program for the
contested rent increase.

(e) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to provide the Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP
Notice) form. ‘

(k) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The limit
for rent increases over 30% over a 5-year period does not apply to the rental unit.

(i) This exemption is based on a State law and there is no fraud or mistake.

000053




1. Justification for Rent Increase

Date of Contested Rent Increase: 10/10/18 effective 12/15/18
Justification: Single Family Home exemption

II1. Exemption Attachment

1. ‘Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?
" No ‘ | :
2. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section
827)? '
No
3. Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?
. No
4. Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit
or building? '
No
5. Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?
Yes .
6. Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?
No : ' '
7. If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? No
If so: 1) from whom? N/A 2) Did you purchase the entire building? N/A

- 000054




O o 1 O R W e

[\ [ NS S ] N [\ N ek ek pewd R Oy T — ek s
ggmm-&wwwo\omﬂmwaumwo

. | "
pTAEIMIN
E\T\fr‘ﬁﬁ 9;: i.\ka M}:“"; R
?I'a%agr x;g'eugonnirf,gBN 182676 RENT BRELRATICH Pidbaers
rie 1ilams - . .
1901 Harrison Street ‘ 019FER 1D PH & RV
Oakland, CA 94612 :

Phone: (510) 625-0100
Fax: (510) 550-3621
aconner@fiiedwilliams.com

Attorneys for Respondent and Owner
Sherry Zalabak

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
' RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

CITY OF OAKLAND
CHESTER “CHASE” MARTIN; CASENO.: T18-0472
KRISTEN PONGER,; , :
‘ : ’ : PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF
Petitioner/Tenants, TANGIBLE EVIDENCE
V. HEARING DATE: MARCH 5, 2019
: TIME: 10:00 A M.
SHERRY ZALABAK;, ' PLACE: 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, STE.
, 5313, OAKLAND, CA 94612 ‘

Respondent/Owner.

I. INTRODUCTION

‘Respondent Sherry Zalabak (“Respondent”) is the owner of the real property commonly known as
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618 (the “Premises™), having acquired it in October 2010 |
following her brother, Stephen Lage’s death. A true and correct copy of the Declaration Re Death of
Life Tenant is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Prior to Mr. Lage’é death, he converted the detached garage |
for use as an ‘ofﬁce and residentiél studio. Ini201 0, Stephen was living in the house and Respondent was
providing full time care and using the studio. After Stephen passed, Respondent rented the house and
moved back home with her husband and rented the studio.

- On or around November 24, 2014 Respondent rented the Premises to Chester “Chase” Martin and
Kristen Ponger (“Petitioners™). A true and correct copy of the lease is attached hereto as Exhibit B. The

“studio” was occupied at the time the Petitioners moved in. Respondent discovered the unit was an

: 1
PROPERTY OWNER'’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVIDENt

1000055




O 0 3 A R WA =

NN DR N NN RN R —m e e om m em e e e
B O A DA BN = S 0V ® a9 R B o = o

unpermitted unit in early 2018. Upon discovering the studio was only permitted for use as an office
space, Respondent pulled a permit and restored the garage to use as an office.

Respondent served a rent increase notice with the Notice to Tenants of the Residential Rent
Adjustment Program attached in 3 languages (English, Spanish, Chinese) on October 10, 2018. A true
and correct copy of the Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

- On November 9, 201.8, Petitidners filed this petition contesting a rent increase on the basis 1) The
increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is unj ustified or is greater than 10%; 2) The Petitioner
received a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment
Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available
banked rent increase; 3) The Respondent did not give the Petitioners the required form “Notice of Rent
Adjustment Program: at least 6 months before the effective date of the rent increase; 4) the proposed
rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years and; 5) Petitioners wish to contest an
exemption from the Rént Adjustment Ordinance because the exemption was based on fraud or mistake.

II. LEGAL ARGUMENT

1. The increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is unjustified or is greater than 10%

The CPI Adjustment does not apply to the rental unit. The rental unit is exempt from rent conﬁol
because it is a single-family residence exempted by the Cosfa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California
Civil Code 1654.50). A true and correct copy of the Alameda County Property Assessment Information
previously submitted to the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program is attached hereto as Exhibit D.
True and correct copies of photographs exhibiting the property is a single-family residence is attached
hereto as Exhibit E. True and correct copies of the Assessor’s Map 48A exhibiting the property as a
éingle-family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit F.

2. The Petitioner received a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval

from the Rent Adjustment Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI |

Adjustment and the available banked rent increase

No approval was required, and no banking was requested. The rental unit is exempt from rent
control because it is a single-family residence exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act

(California Civil Code 1654.50 A true and correct copy of the Alameda County Property Assessment

PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVIDE}

1000056




O o0 1 N W R W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25|

26
27
28

{&n\ \ ‘ («\

Information previously submitted to the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program is attached hereto as
Exhibit D. True and correct copies of photographs exhibiting the property is a single-family residence is
attached hereto as Exhibit E. True and correct copies of the Assessor’s Map 48A exhibiting the property

as a single-family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit F.

3. The Respondent did not give the Petitioners the required form “Notice of Rent Adjustment

Program; at least 6 months before the effective date of the rent increase. 4
Respondent is not required to provide the Notice of the Rent Adjustrnént Program (RAP Notice)
form. The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence exempted by the

Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1654.50). A true and correct copy of the
Alameda County Property Assessment Information previously submitted to the City of Oakland Rent -
Adjustment Program is attached hereto as Exhibit D. True and correct copies of photographs exhibiting
the property is a single-family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit E. Tfue and correct copies of the »
Assessor’s Map 48A exhibiting the property as a single-family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit F.

4. The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years

The limit for rent increases over 30% over a 5-year period .does hot apply to the rental unit. The
rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence exempted by the Costa-
Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1654.50). A true and correct copy of the Alameda_
County Property Assessment Infoﬁnation previously submitted to the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment
Program is attached hereto as Exhibit D. True and correct copies of photographs exhibiting the property
is a single-family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit E. True and correct copies of the Assessor’s
Map 48A exhibiting the property as a single-family residence is attached hereto as Exhibit F.

5. Exemption based on fraud or mistake

The Petitioners allege Respondent;s claim for exemption from rent control is based on fraud or
mistake and wish to contest an exemption. Respondent denies the Petitioner’s claim. This exemption is
based on a State law and there is ﬁo fraud or mistake.

V Respondent became aware of the unpermitted studio being used for residential purposes and stopped
using it, restoring the Premise to a single-family residence by pulling a permit over the counter and

removing the stove in the unpermitted studio. True and correct copies of the Permit Application

3
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVIDE

000057




—

EES (O8] N et () O (e~ ~ () w LAY O8] [\S] — () O (=] ~ () W EEN (98] N

Worksheet and Record Details éxhibiting the removal of the stove and conversion of the studio to an
office is attached hereto as Exhibit G.
IIl. CONCLUSION

Respondent has provided enough eyideﬁce_ to prove the Premises is a single-family residence and
thus any challenge to the rent increase moot. The Rent Adjustment Program does not have jurisdiction
over single-family homes exemptéd by the Costa-Hawkins'Renal Housing Act, therefor Petitioner’s
petition should be dismissed.

Dated: February 15, 2019

By: Alana Grice Conner
Attorneys for Respondent and Owner
Sherry Zalabak

4 .
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVIDENCY

000058




-5’ ~N :{5‘"“‘\

a1
cknowledgement of No blic
State of California }
County of Contra Costa -}

before me, F, Michael Hanson, a Notary Public, personally appeared SHERRY

city, and that by her signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the
rson acted, executed the.instrument.

dndcradriitinisedtbainhed

Tt MICHAEL umsoné

g ? . F . CONT ACOUNTY =
o/ Sigi i My Comm., B(plm!AdeI 2011 }
X, iv-ev-vav‘vv-v PP

Signatafé; Nota:y Public for the State of California

Legal Description

Beginning at a point on the Southern Line of Kales Avenue distant thereon Westerly 166.66 feet from the
intersection thereof with the Western line of Broadway as said avenue and broadway are shown on the Map
hereinafier referred to; running thence Westerly along said line of Kales Avenue, 40 feet; thence at right
angles Southerly 65 feet; thence at right angles Easterly 40 feet, and thence at right angles Northerly 65
feet to the point of beginning. .

Being a portion of Lots 168 and 169, "Map of Wood]awn Park", filed June 28, 1905, Map Book 20, Page
48, Alameda County Records.

SUBJECT TO all covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, rights of way, exceptions, reservations,
servitudes, limitations, uses, licenses, rights, agreements, and other matters of record.

Declaration Re Death of Life Tenant - APN: 048A-7043-040 - Page 2

000059




fold

-

Recorded at the request of:

F. MICHAEL HANSON, Esq.

When recorded return to:

Sherry Diane Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, California 94707

ZALABAKISA

3

*

-

201620955 10/07/2010 62:56 PN

OFFICIAL RECORDS OF ALAMEDA COUNTY '
PATRICK 0'CONNELL
RECORDING FEE: 21.00

AR

I

follows:

APN: 048A-7043-040

and correct,

Dated: October 4, 2010

Mail Tax Statements To:

Sherry D. Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, California 94707

DECLARATION RE DEATH OF LIFE TENANT

1, Sherry Diane Zalabak, declare as follows:

I am of legal age (18 years or older). The decedent described in the attached certified copy of
Certificate of Death as Stephen Allen Lage is the same person as Stephen Allen Lage who is named as a
party in that Gift Grant Deed dated July 21, 2010 executed by Stephen Allen Lage, an unmarried man, to
Sherry D. Zalabak, a married woman as her separate property, which Gift Grant Deed also reserved a life
estate to Stephen Allen Lage, and which Gift Grant Deed was recorded as Document Number 2010201664
on July 21, 2010, in the official records of Alameda County, California, and concerns the real property
situated in the City of Oakland, County of Alameda, State of California, more particularly described as

See the Legal Description section commencing on the following page, the contents of
which are incorporated herein by this reference,

(commonly known as 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, Cal'iform'a)

1 declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true

Declaration Re Death of Life Tenant - APN: 048A-7043-040 - Page |

-

DIANE ZALABAK

000060




O 0 3 O (G TN w N )—‘"

£lana Grice Conner, SBN 182676 WiSAPR I PH 2001
1901 Harrison Street

Oakland, CA 94612

Phone: éS 10) 625-0100

Fax: 510) 550-3621

aconner@friedwilliams.com

Attorneys for Respondent and Owner -
Sherry Zalabak

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM -

CITY OF OAKLAND
CHESTER “CHASE” MARTIN; CASE NO.: T18-0114 & T18-0472
KRISTEN PONGER;
. PROPERTY OWNER’S SUPPLEMENTAL
Petitioner/Tenants, STATEMENT
V. HEARING DATE: APRIL 22, 2019
: TIME: 10:00 A.M.
SHERRY ZALABAK; PLACE: 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, STE.
1 5313, OAKLAND, CA 94612
Respondent/Owner.

Sherry Zalabak (“Respondent”) is the owner of the real property commonly known as 5553 Kales
Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618 (the “Premises”). Owner responds to the hearing officer’s request
regarding the back unit/office and evidence of new construction. The back unit/office is not new
construction. That phrase is defined by O.M.C. 8.22.030 Exemptions, “Dwelling units whigh were
newly constructed and received a certificate of occupancy on or after January 1, 1983..." While work
on the office was done in or around 2009, no certificate of occupancy was ever issued. Therefore, the
office is not “new construction”.

Dated: April 11,2019 FRIED & WILLIAMS LLP

By: Alana Grice Conner
Attorneys for Respondent and Owner
Sherry Zalabak

1
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT

R

000061




sl ; ln
PROOF OF SERVICE BY FIRST-CLASS anI‘EJWR || Pt 2:01

I declare that I am a resident of or employed in the County of Alameda, State of
-California. I am over the age of eighteen years and am not a party this action. My
residence or business address is 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor, Oakland, CA 94612.

On April 11, 2019, I served the attached, concerning the action known as Martin, et al. v.
Zalabak, City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program case no. T18-0114 & T18-0472:

PROPERTY OWNER’S SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT

on the parties herein in said action, by placing the envelope for collection and mailing
following our ordinary business practices. I am readily familiar with this business'
practice for collecting and processing correspondence for mailing with the United States
Postal Service. On the same day that correspondence is placed for collection and mailing,
it is deposited in the ordinary course of business with the United States Postal Service in a
sealed envelope with postage fully prepaid. -

- The envelope was addressed, sealed and placed for collection and mailing, following th1s
business' ordinary business practices, from Oakland, California, as follows:

Chester Martin a.k.a. Chase Martin Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue 5553 Kales Avenue

Oakland, CA 94618 - Oakland, CA 94618

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct, and this declaration was executed on April 11, 2019, at
Oakland, California.

//M%ﬁ

* Marena Peréz

000062




* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the .
existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent increase. (0.M.C. 8.22.090 A 2) If
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past, you
have 120 days to file a petition. (0.M.C.822.090 A 3)

Have you ever filed a petition for this rental unit? . - R E c E IVE D

O Yes

» No . - | FEBRAM
List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all oWE%m%OGMM

11, DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUSING SERVICES:
Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful

rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housing serv1ce you must
complete this section.

Areyou belng charged for services originally paid by the owner? : IYes NNo
Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? OYes WNo
Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? - OYes N No

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (1) on page 2, please attach a

separate sheet listing a descnptlon of the reduced service(s) and problem(s) Be sure to include the
following: .

1) alist of the lost housing service(s) or problem(s);
2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the service(s)
3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s); and
4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s)
Please attach documentary evidence if available.

You have the option to have a City inspector come to your unit and inspect for any code violation. To make an '
appointment, call the City of Oakland, Code of Compliance Unit at (510) 238-3381.

IV. VERIFICATION: The tenant must sign:

. I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said
in this petition is true and that all of the docoments attached to the petition are true copies of the
originals.

W\ A\ 4/@\/\1/&/ 2l

~ Tenant’s Signature Date !

Rov. 13117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. .~ : 3

000063




W 0 3 &0 i h W N =

NN N N N NN NN = e e ek e e e e
00 ~] A G B W NN = O Y 0N YWy W NN = o

™ | A -.

_ RECEIVED
CITY OF 0AKL AN

: EOHT AR T RAT I 5 e i
1él'a.rclla GTicelConner, SBN 182676 _ T ACHTRATION Py
ried & Williams LLP [ o} \
1901 Harrison Street 2I5FEB 15 Py 3: 52
Oakland, CA 94612

Phone: 5510) 625-0100
Fax: (510) 550-3621
aconner@friedwilliams.com

Attorneys for Respondent and Owner
Sherry Zalabak

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

CITY OF OAKLLAND
CHESTER “CHASE” MARTIN; CASE NO.: T18-0414
KRISTEN PONGER; :
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF
Petitioner/Tenants, TANGIBLE EVIDENCE
V. HEARING DATE: MARCH 5, 2019
: TIME: 10:00 AM.
SHERRY ZALABAK; PLACE: 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, STE.
5313, OAKLAND, CA 94612
Respondent/Owner.

I. INTRODUCTION

Respondent Sherry Zalabak (“Respondent”) is the owner of the real property commonly known as
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618 (the “Premises™), >having acquired it in October 2010
following her brother, Stephen Lage’s death. A true and correct copy of the Declaration Re Death of
Life Tenant is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Prior to Mr. Lage’s death, he converted the detached garage
for use as an office and residential studio. In 2010, Stephen was living in the house and Respondent was
providing full time care and using the studio. After Stephen i)assed, Respondent rented the house and
moved back home with her husband and rented the studio. On or around November 24,2014
Respondent rented the Premises to Chester “Chase” Martin and Kristen Ponger (“Petitioners”). A true
and correct copy of the lease is attached héreto as Exhibit B. The “studio” was occupied at the time the -

Petitioners moved in. Respondent discovered the unit was an unpermitted unit in early 2018. Upon

1
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVIDFN- !

00006




O 0 9 O i bW =

N N N N N N N N N — [ — — [ — — — — —
oo ~ (=)} (9] LN (98] N — S \O o] ~ (=)} W EiY (8] N —_ (]

discovering the studio was only permitted for use as an office space, Respondent stopped renting the
unit for residential use moving forward. |

‘On or about June 5, 201 8,‘Respondent served a rent increase notice on the Petitioners; under the
impression the Premises is a single—family residence. A true and correct copy of the 60 Day Notice of
Change in Terms of Tenancy is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

On August 3, 2018 Petitioners filed this petition contesting a rent iricreaée on the basis 1) The

increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is unjustified or is greater than 10%; 2) The Petitioner

received a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment

Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available
banked rent increase; 3) No written notice of Rent Program was given to the Petitioners with the notice
of increase contested; 4) The Respondent did not give the Petitioners the required form “Notice of Rent |
Adjustment Program: at least 6 months before the effective date of the rent increase; 5) the proposed
rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years and; 6) Petitioners wish to contest an
exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the exemption was based on fraud or mistake.

II. | PETITIONER’S PETITION SHOULD BE DENIED

On October 10, 2018, Respondent rescinded the Notice of Change to Terms of Tenancy served on
Petitioners and refunded Petitioners for overpayment by giving a rent credit in the amount of $360.00. A
true and correct copy of the rescission letter and image of the check are attached hereto as Exhibit D.

III. CONCLUSION

Respondent has rescinded the rent increase making any challenge to the rent increase moot. Thus,

Petitioner's petition should be dismissed.

Dated: February 15, 2019

By: Alana Grice Conndf
Attorneys for Respondent and Owner
Sherry Zalabac

.
PROPERTY OWNER’S SUBMISSION OF TANGIBLE EVIDE™ "™

000065




CITY or OAKLAND

DALZIEL BUILDING « 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 - OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034

Housing and Community Development Deparfment‘ . . TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program ' v _ : FAX (510)238-6181.
. e : CA Relay Service 711
HEARING DECISION
CASE NUMBERS: : ‘T18-0414, Martin et. al. v. Zalabak
' ' T18-0472, Martin et al. v. Zalabak
PR‘OPERTY ADDRESS: 5553 Kales Avenue, Oékla,nd,- CA
DATES OF HEARING: March 5, 2019
- ' April 22, 2019‘ :
DATE OF DECISION: . April 30,2019
APPEARANCES: Chester Martin, Tenant
: . Kristen Ponger, Tenant -
Sherry Zalabak, Owner

Alana Grice Conner, Attorney for Owner

SUMMARY OF DECISION

The Tenant’s petitions are dlsmlssed

INTRODUCTION

The tenant filed the initial petition on August 3,2018, T18-0414, which contests a
rent increase effective August 1, 2108, raising thelr rent from $2,652.00 to
$4,500.00, on the following grounds

Rent Increase Exceeds CPI or more than 10%;

No Pre-Approval of Increase;

No Concurrent RAP Notice;

No RAP Notice 6 Months prior to the effective date of the i 1ncrease
Rent Increase exceeds an overall increase of 30% in 5 years.

000066




{4-\ ' . {,.s.x

The tenant filed a second petition on November 9, 2018, T18-0472, which contests
arent increase effective December 15, 2108 raising thelr rent from $2, 652 00 to
$4 500.00, on the following grounds:

,0 Rent Increase Exceeds CPI or more than 10%;

e No Pre-Approval of Increase; |

e No RAP Notice 6 Months prior to the effective date of the increase;
- & RentIncrease exceeds an overall increase of 30% in 5 years.

The owner filed a timely response in T18-0414 and an untimely response in T18-
0472. The owner attended the hearing and was represented. 'The matter proceeded
to hearing on March 5,2019. Subsequently, the undersigned re-opened the matter
for further hearing on the construction of the back unit, including but not limited to
whether the second unit is new construction under the ordinance.

* ISSUE(S) PRESENTED

1. Is the subject unit exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance?

. | EVIDENCE
March 5, 2019 '

Rental History

The tenants moved into the unit November 24, 2014, for $2600.00 per month.
At the inception of their tenancy, it was a multi-unit property. The front unit and
the back unit were rented out to separate tenants, with separate leases.! '

In January 2017, their rent was increased by the CPI, 2%, to $2652.00. They.
believe the back unit was raised by the same amount. They received a notice of
rent increase indicating the rent would be $4,500.00, effective January 3, 2019.
They have paid the uncontested portion of their rent, 2652.00 per month, pendmg
the outcome of their petition.

The tenants were ﬁrst given a RAP Notice on November 4 2018. They liveina
house; they dispute the designation as a single-family residence. When they moved

! The owner property response aclqlowledges that the owner had an unpermitted use of the second unit.

000067




A

{»‘T‘\

in, there was a unit in the back. Subsequently, they removed the stove from the
other unit and applied for a permit to use it as a non-residential space. The stove is
currently being stored in the basement. The tenant claims the owner will put it back
in the unit when she lists the property for sale.

In 2018, the tenants in the rear unit moved. The back unit is unoccupled but they -
do not have access to it. ‘

The owner testified that she received the property as an inheritance in 2010. Her
property is assessed as a single-family residence.? At the time she inherited the
property, the back unit was occupied. In June 2018, she served a rent increase
notice. The petitioners filed a petition with the Rent Adjustment Program. The
owner retained counsel to respond to the petition. Subsequently, she became
aware that the studio un1t was 1mperm1ss1b1e which was conﬁrmed with the permlt
department

After ﬁndlng out that the space was permltted for an office, she returned the space
to non-residential use and removed the stove.’

The owner testified that she does have the original permit for creating the office
space but did not bring it to the hearing. -

- The tenants argued that they rented what was by all intents and purposes a rent-
controlled unit and that the ownet’s unilateral change to comply with the law was
motivated by bad faith.

The property oWner argued that by the removal of the illegal unit restored the .
single-family residence to its proper use and therefore restored its status as an

exempt unit.

April 22, 2019

The undersigned re-opened the hearing to determine if the second unit qualified as
new construction under the ordinance. At the hearing, the tenant provided
documentation from the City of Oakland, which established that there was a
second structure on the property, which was a garage in'the 1930s.*

% Exhibit A, March Hearing. This Exhibit, and all other Exhibits to which reference is made in. th1s Decision, were
admitted into evidence.
3 Exhibit 11, March Hearing,
* Exhibit A, April Hearing.

000068




i | f”’"“

The tenant testlﬁed that there was no permit to convert the garage structure to an
office. The records indicated that in 1993, the new amp circuits went out to the
garage.’

' FINDINGS OF FACT‘AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
Exemption

Costa-Hawkins: The Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act® provides-that a dwelling
or unit which is separately alienable from any other dwelling or unit is exempt

from local rent control, except under certain circumstances.. The Oakland Rent
Adjustment Ordinance specifically states that if a unit is covered under Costa-
 Hawkins, it is exempt from the Ordinance.’

Exceptions to the 'Appli'cation of Costa-Hawkins:

A single-family residence is exempt from local rent control laws unless one or
- more of the following situations apphes :

(1) The tenancy began before J anuary 1, 1996

(3) The prlor tenant was evicted for no cause

(4) The prior tenant vacated after being given a notice of rent increase
(5) There were serious health, safety, fire or building code violations for
which the owner was cited, and which were not corrected for six months
before the start of the current tenancy:

The tenants’ testimony that she initially rented a multi-unit property and that the
tenant in the back unit moved out and that the owner has not allowed subsequent

~ illegal residential use is credited. Accordingly, the subject unit has been restored to
. asingle-family residence. Therefore, the house is exempt from the application of
the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance. Because the subject unit is exempt from
the Ordinance, no other issues raised in the tenant petition can be addressed.

//
//

3 Exhibit B, April Hearing.
6 Civil Code Section 1954.52(2)(3)
7 0.M.C. Section 8.22.030(A)(7)

000069




ORDER
I. Petitions T18- 0414 and T18 0472 are denied.

2. The subject unit is exefnpt,from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance pursuant to
Civil Code §1954.52(a)(3).

3. The unit is not exempt from paymént of the Rent Adjustment Service fee.

4. A Certificate of Exemption for the subject unit w111 be 1ssued when this
Decision becomes ﬁnal

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly
completed appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The
appeal must be received within twenty (20) calendar days after service of the
decision. The date of service is shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the
Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the last day to file, the appeal may be filed on
the next business day. _

Dated: May 31,2019 - | Elar{ Consuella Latybegt
_ ' : Hearing Qfficer
' : Rent Adjust ogram

000070




fr\_

PROOF OF SERVICE

Case Number T18-0414

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the Residential
. Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, California. My business
address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oak]and California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placmg atrue copy in a City of Oakland mail-
collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th

Floor, Oakland California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Hearing Decision

Owner

Sherry Zalabak

402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alana Grice Conner, Fried & Williams LLP
1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

" Tenant o

" Chester Martin
5553 Kales Avenue
Qakland, CA 94618

Tenant

Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue
- Qakland, CA 94618

~ I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described above would be
deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first class postage

thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.

- Ideclare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and correct.

Executed on June 07, 2019 in Oakland, CA.

+

é/ A

Brittni Lothlen

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program _

000071




PROOF OF SERVICE
'Case Number T18-0472_

I'am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the Residential
Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, California. My business
‘ address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California 94612. :

" Today, I served the attached documents listed below by’ placmg a true copy in a City of Oakland mail
collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 Sth
Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
'Hearing Decision

Owner

Sherry Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alana Grice Conner,

Fried & Williams, LLP

1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

Tenant

Chester Martin
5553 Kales Avenue
QOakland, CA 94618

Tenant

Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue
Qakland, CA 94618

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described aboye would be
deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first class postage
thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Callforma that the above is true and correct.

Executed on June 07,2019 in Oakland, CA. /

Brittni Lothlen

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000072




\ - KO /ECH
I | o

CITY OF OAKLAND ' UUH‘@’-/ PH 2: 06 o
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM , }
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 ‘ a
Oakland, CA 94612

(510) 238-3721

APPEAL

. CITY oF OAKLAND

Appellant’s Name

Cheskes Marhn 4 bn&bm 'qu»e/

- Property Address (Include Unit Number)

TR Laleg Az C’Pck\ucv\él A G4l

Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) Case Number

s Lales Ave A | Ne-cidy Tie-o4 2.
Date of Decision appealed

Oalland, CH qYpl®e H %0.2019

Name of Representatlve (if any) Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices)

[1 Owner lﬁ“f‘enan’t :

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed

~ below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation.

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearmg Decision to be updated. (Please clearly
explain the math/clerical errors,)

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

a) , BZ( The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions
of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.).

b) [ The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation,
You must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent.)

c) E(The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation,
You must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

d) [ The decision violates federal, state or local law. (Tn your explanation, you must provide a detailed
statement as to what law is violated.)

e) N/The decision is not supportéd by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must explain why
the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record,)

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.
Rev. 6/18/2018

000073




{rm\ ' - f‘

1} [J X was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s claim. (/n
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the deczszon are not in dispute.) :

g - [ The decnsnon denies the Owner a fair return on my investment. (You may appeal on this ground only
when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically state why you have been’
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supportzng your claim,)

h) [ Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.,)

Submissions to the Board must nof exceed 25 pages from each party, and they must be received by the Rent
Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within- 15 days of filing the appeal. Only the first
25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the Board, subject fo Regulatlons 8.22.010(A)(5).
Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of pages attached:

* You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties or your appeal may be dismissed. ®
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on L)\ 2t 201
I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commerc:1al
carrier, using a service at least as ‘expeditious as first class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid,
addressed to each opposing party as follows: :

AQ@ z-(vozdw,m?’rm
ChSalell | Ryl b adteH

: Ao Coeree Conives |

140! Hardisen Shecdd, 1N Qoo
Oaldaral | O 94 (12

o P~ — 1 6.9% 2019

SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018

000074




o : f,w’-"-.

Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue

QOakland, CA 94618

June 27, 2019

Rent Adjustment Program (RAP)
City of Oakland; CA _
Re: Appeal : o |

Case Number(s):
T18-0414
- T18-0472

Tenant(s):
Chester “Chase” Martin
Kristen Ponger

Landlord:
Sherry Zalabak

Rental Property Address; 5553 Kales Avenue, Qakland, CA 94618
Tenants Cause for Appeal: .
We are appealing the decision on the foliowing grounds:
1. (a) The-decision is inconsistent with OoMC Chapter 8.22.060
' A. Notice at the Commencement of Tenancy
C. Failing to Give Notice

2. (c) The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board
3. (e) The decision is not supported by substantial evidence

Key Points:

1. (a) The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22.060:

- As stated in Case T18-0414, Tenants never received notice of RAP at the
commencement of our tenancy or 6 months prior to rent increase notice (OMC
8.22.060). The property'was then being rented as a multi-unit property (confirmed by
landlord). The first RAP notice was provided on November 4, 2018,

000075



2. (¢) The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board
-~ If an owner can remove an illegal unit from the rental market in order to restore their
property’s status to exempt for the purposes of evading OMC Chapter 8:22, so that the
- owner can then raise the remaining tenant's rent 70%, how does that foster the fair

housing purpose of the program?

3. (e) The decision is not supported by substantial evidence:
- Hearing Decision Summary from Mafch 5th hearing includes assessments confradictory
to factual evidence filed.in tenant petition | '
- Thereis no ewdence that the back unit was eccupied when the owner lnherlted
the property. No proof of occupancy was submitted for. time prior to 2012
- There is no evidence that the owner was unaware of the legal status of the back
unit. The evidence shows the opposite. Owner claims that she had no knowledg_'e
of the legality of the unit until tenants filed a petition. As you can see in Exhibit H
[attached] from T18-0414 petition, which is dated May 25th, 2018 discussion of
the legality of the unit had been raised at this point. This had been discussed
between landlord and tenant on many occasione.
- There is no original permit for the “office”, therefore the owner's application for a
permit to “restore ;co office use” is invalid and the unit is still deemed a residential
- structure. Hearing officer accepted a verbal confirmation from the landlord who
" claimed to have permit at home. She accepted this as ev1dence despite the hard
evidence provided by tenants provmg there is no evidence or record of such
permit. Records obtained from the City of Qakland.

InSummary '

The landlord has strategically used certain tactics euch as removal of the stove to evade rent .
control (The stove remains in the laundry room with the intention of reinstalling it to the back
unit). This rerhains a bad faith rent increase and an attempt to force tenants out of the home. A
single-family dwelling is not exempt and is considered a two-unit building if there is another
residential structure on the same lot, regardless of the legality of the unit. Owners application for
permit to “restore to of_fice'use” is invalid as there is no criginal permit. Therefore, the property

remains as a two-unit property.

000076




£ AR
7292018 T wlt-peim Kales Ave. Fwd: Lense Hxplration and Offer m( wse

i"«w-i Qf"f"l Ji‘ ' ' Chase Martin ST

e re—— e o o Sereman - d e e e e . e eam Lt b mem i e s emial A e et n ek ——— e Cw

Print Kales Ave. Fwd Lease Explration and Offer to Purchase
2 messages

et e ety e et e

Krlsten Pongar ) Mon, Jul 23, 2018 at 11:53 AM
To; Chase Martin

w——-~ Forwarded message ----—---

From: Chase Martin

Date; Fri, May 25, 2018 at 2,08 PM

Subject: Re: Lease Expiration and Offar ta Purchasse
To: Sherry Zalabak o

Cc: kristen Ponger =~ = ot

Hi Sherry,

We have been thinking about you guys and really hope that John is hanging in thers. | am sure you all are dolng everything
you can to make the best out of a difficult situation. We are hoping for the bast.

We appreciate you getting that stained leaf glass back to us, it was a gift with sentimenta) value to us. You can leave it in
our mailbox anytime. The weed whacker you saw was the Black & Decker one that our neighbor loaned us, but the one we
are missing is & nice (also orange) STiHL. whacker that Ron gifted to me when we move Into Kales, and it‘s still missing.
Can you please follow up with Maco about this? Thank yout

As far as planning for the future, | know you are eager to know where we stand on the house. Kristen and | absolutely love.
the Kales house and have cared for it as if it was our own the. past 3.5 years. We are very interested in our ¢ollective dream
of a mutually-beneficial purchasing agresment between the four of us. With that said, we had our reaitor evaluate the house
and give us comps on updated/renovated 18r/1Baths in our neighborhood, which we would bie happy to share with you. Our
realtor's professional review of 17 comps in the area shows a cutrent fair market valus of 750K,

Based on this, knowing the ins and outs of the hause, recognizing that this woutld be a direct sale for you without realtor and
other feas, we would like to purchase the house “as is,” without inspection at 750K. This is taking the current condition of
the house into consideration, knowing that it needs major repairs, as well as the fact that the unit In the back Is not legal and
from a reaitor's point-of-view is considered a liability, rather than an asset. We cannot go higher than this and don't have

room for negotiation. But, we are very flexible to alternative financing arrangements that we've spoken about before such as
a down-payment then renting to buy.

Our baby is due Yo arrlve on July 9th, and as you can imagine we are entirely focused on preparations for the birth. Of
course, ssttiing on an agreement for the Kales house Is also a major priority. Our apologies for not getting back to you
sooner regarding the termination of lease agraement you dropped off. We wanted to let you know that we don't plan on
signing this, but will do our best to woric with you through the details of buying Kales.

We look forward to hearing your thoughts on this. We'd be happy to meet in person to talk more specifically about the
details.

Al the best,

Chase & Kristen

On Thu, May 10, 2018 at 8:13 AM, Sharry Zalabak <sherZ@comcast.nat> wrote:
Hi Chase,
| assumed that the stained glass leaf was left by the tenant. Yes. | have it here and will return it. Re. the two garden
tools you described~—-—Idid see them during our work days thera and Maco did use your red rake but we :Jid not take

them. Did you look in the basement crawl space? When | want bick to water the plants a week after Maco and |
finished } saw the weed-wacker. It was sitting to the left of the crawl-space door in the laundry room. | remember this as

000077




[um—y

N-JE- - T Y T R T T

=2 [ W [\S] —_— S O ©0 ~ [#)Y w = w N _— O

P

Lisa Giampaoli, SBN 291234
Giampaoli Law .
100 Pine Street, Suite 1250

San Francisco, CA 94111 -
Telephone: (415) 890-6529

Attorneys for Tenants/Appellants
Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger

OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT BOARD
CITY OF OAKLAND

RE: 5553 Kales Ave.

CHESTER MARTIN & KRISTEN PONGER
Tenanf-Appellantsa :

v.
SHERRY ZALABAK,

Landlord-Respondent.

INTRODUCTION

HF .-~;.~;~. .

TR0 1L PY 5: 1,2

Consolidated petitions: T18-0414, T18-0472

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF
APPEAL OF TENANT-APPELLANTS
CHESTER “CHASE” MARTIN AND
KRISTEN PONGER

Hearing Date: TBD

Teﬁants appeal the dismissal of their petition for unlawfﬁl rent incfease and the decision
that the Subject Pfoperty was exempt from the RAP as a single family.residence at the time the
rent increase was noticed. Tenants éontend that their unit did not qualify as a SFR because at the
time they entered into.the rental agreement for their unit, and throughout their tenéncy, the
Landlord was collecting rents for two separate dwelling units at the property pursuant to two

separate rental agreements; Landlord never removed the rear cottages from use as living space;

N
~l

N
-]

Landlord never provided Tenants with access to, or use of, the entirety of the property as SFR; and

1000078



D = - B L =X T T e S L N

NN N N N NN e e e e e e b e e e
(= N ¥ L A = T = R - R = T ¥ T L "SI O B S -

Landlord had permanently removed the rear cottages from use as a dwelling space. Tenants further
contend Landlord’s claim of exemption is nothing more than an attempt to evade the RAP and Just

Cause for Eviction protections by raising the rent so high it would force Tenants to vacate,

 allowing the Landlord to sell the property ‘v.acant, as she had repeatedly told them she wanted to

do. The issue at stake here is whether Landlord, based on nothing more than her own unreliable

testimony, can unilaterally claim a SFR exemption from the RAP for a property that Landlord

admits she has rented out as multiple units for years. The answer should be a resounding “no.”

STATEMENT OF FACTS

5553 Kales Ave. (“Subject Property”) is located in the Rockridge neighborhood. The

‘property contains three structures: a Craftsman style cottage with one bedroom, living room,

kitchen and bathroom; a rear studio cottage with a living area, bathroom, and kitchen; and a

second ~100 sq. ft. rear cottage with hardwood floors, windows, a Ioft, baseboard heater and an

|| interior locking deadbolt. (See: 3/5/19 Heaﬁng Exh.1: Photos of interiors of rear cottages at

1| 5553 Kales Ave.) In 2014 Tenant-Appellants (“Tenants”) entered into a two year written rental

agreement with L;indlord-Respondent (“Landlord”) for the one bedroom Craftsman cottage
(hereinafter “subject premises™) for a monthly rent of $2600. (See: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh. 3:
Rental Agreement‘between Sherry Zalabak and Chestér Martin & Kristen Ponger.) At the
time that Tenants entered‘ into the agreement for the Subject Premises, the two rear cottages (“rear
cottages”), weré being rented as a single dwelling unit by Landlérd to Leanne Fowlkes and Mike
Devol, leading Tenants to understand and believe that the Subject Premises was part of multi-unit
property protectéd by rent control. (3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 23:30-23:47; 56:15- 56:23.) A

2% rent increase imposed on both units by Landlord in 2017 was in line with the allowable CPI

"and substantiated Tenants’ belief that their unit was covered by the RAP; (3/5/19 RAP Hearing,

N
~

N
o0

Part 1: 23:47-23:55.) Additionally, Tenants did not have use or access to the rear cottages and

were not permitted to use the rear yard. (3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 56: 56:34-56:40,) When |

-2

000079




O R N Y N R W

Y R BRI R EBE g &I &5 5 & 0 = 3

Ms. Fowlkes and Mr. Devol vacated the rear units in June 2017, Landlord immedivately re-rented
“the rear cettages to arlother couple, Lindsay Byrd and Isabel Avellan. (See: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh.
4: july, 2017 lease agreement between Sherry & John Zalabak an.d Lindsay Byrd & Isabel
Avellan.) On November 14, 2017, Landlord asked' Tenants if they would be interested in
ptlrchasing the Subject Prdperty, stating Tenants could rent out the “rear eottages” for income.
(See: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh. 9: November 14,2017 email from Sherry Zalabak to Kristen
Ponger.) On or around February 28, 2018, Lindsay Byrd & Isabel Avellan vacated the rear
cottages. (3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 55:08-55:.23.) On March 28, 201_8, Landlord gave’
Tenants a letter stating her intent to .sell the Subj.eet Property and demanded Tenants Vacate by
July 1, 2018. (See: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh. 10: March 28, 2018 letter from Sherry Zalabak to
Kristen Ponger and Chase Martin.) On April 25,. 2018, Landlord sent a decument to Tenants
which Landlord represented as a “lease extension,” but which was entitled “Landlord-Tenant |
Agreement to Terminate Lease.” (3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 46:(.)5.-46:12.)1 Tenants‘ would
not sign it. On June 5, 2018, Landlord serVedv Tenants a 60 day notice of a rent increase to $4500.
(See: Tenant Petition T18-0414, Exh. A.)? On August 3, 2018 Tenants filed Tenant petition T18-
0414 for unlawful rent increase. After they filed the petition, Landlord came to Tenants’ home
pleading for them to rescind petition T18-0414, offerirlg to make a new agreement and causing
Tenants to feel bad for landlord and agree to rescind the petition. (3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1:
52:28-52:44). However, for reasons urrknown, the RAP failed to dismiss petition T18-0414.

(3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 2:28-2:40.) At the end of September 2018 Tenants discovered the

! Tenants offered the document as evidence in support of their petition at the March 5, 2019'hearing, but though
there was no objection from Landlord, hearing officer Lambert did not enter the document into the record and

[\
~.

provided no reason for failing to do so.

N
=]

into the record as an exhibit.

UU0UUGU

-3- :

-2 Tenants-provided-a-copy-of the-60-day-notice in-their-petition/response; but-hearing officer Lambert did not-enter it-——



~N N A W

10
11
12

stove from the rear cottage had been placed in the basement laundry room of the Sub_|ect Property
(3/5/19 RAP Hearmg recordmg, Part 1: 27:56- 28 00) (See also: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh. 1, p. 3,
photo of stove in laundry room.) Shortly thereafter tenants received from Landlord a new 60
Day Notice of change in terms of tenancy increasing the rent from $2652 to $4500. The neW
notice was dated Oetober ld, 2018, less than two weeks after the stove had been removed from the
reaf cottage. Tenents filed petition T1 870472 for unlawful rent increase. Landlord then filed a
response eentending fhat the Subject Premises was a single family residence exempt from the
RAP under the state Costa Hawkins Act. |

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The first RAP hearing on Tenants petitions was held March 5, 2019 with hearing officer

Elan Consuela Lambert (“Lambert”).' Tehants, Landlord and Landlord’s counsel were present.

13 . ‘ L . . . -
|| Mike Devol, former tenant of the rear cottages initially attended with the intent to testify as a
14 - S |
witness for Tenants, but had to leave before having the opportunity to do so.? Tenants did not have
15 . . ' '
P legal representation. Tenant Petitions T18-0414 and T18-0472 were based on two separate rent
17 increase notices but only the second rent increase notice was still in effect at the time of the
18 || hearing.*
19 Lambert confirmed that Tenants were not served a RAP notice upon commencement of
, 20 | their tenancy. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 1: 17:19-7:29.) Tenants testified that Landlord rented the
21 ' BT '
rear cottages separately from the subject premises throughout Tenants® possession of the subject
22 _ . ’ o -
premises, offering as evidence photos of the interiors of the rear cottages,’ a copy of a 2017 lease
23 .
24 agreement for the rear cottages between Landlord and tenants Lindsey Byrd & Isabel Avellan,®
25 ,
2% 3 The March 5, 2019 Hearing Sign In Sheet is in the RAP record.
4-Botir Tenant Petitions and Landlord responses included copies of the Rent Increase Notices, but for
27 reasons unknown, they were not entered into the hearing record.
- 5 See March 5, 2019 Hearing Exhibit 1.

6 See March 5, 2019 Hearing Exhibit 2.

000081




O 0 NN A L A W

5 W N —_ o O R ~3 (@) W - o N — (]

and communications from Landlord stating Tenants could rent out the rear cottages for income if
they bought .the subject pro~perty._7 (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 1: 24:46-34:15.)

Tenants furfher testiﬁéd that on F ebfuary 28, 2018 the rear cottages became vacant and on
March 28,2018 Landlord sent them a letter stating they would have to move out because ‘s.he
wanted to sell the subject property. (3/5/19 Heari'ng,‘ Part 1: 39:27-40:11; 55:08.) When Tenants
testified that they believed Landlord sought a 70% rent increase to force them out an.d sell the
property vacant _for maximum profit, Lambert asked Tenant if there was anything in the law that
préventé that. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 1: 40:12.)> Tenants testified that Landlofd had repeatedly
made it clear she wanted them out so she cduld séll the Property vacant, and that landlord had only
removed the stqvé‘from the rear cottage in order to claim it Was no longer a dwelling unit and
therefore exempt from the RAP. Tenants further testified that the stove was still in the laundry
room at the subject property and they believed she planned to simply put in back in the rear unit
when it Beneﬁted her. (3/5/19 RAP Hearling,vPart 1: 56:‘0‘5- 57:15.) Tenants contended that
Lmdlord’s decision to stop fénting out the ‘rear cottagés was an action over which they had no
control and which should not qhange their status under the RAP.

. Landlord freely admitted that she rented out the rear cottages for residential use from the .
time she inherited the Subject Proﬁerty in 2010 uriﬁl February 2018. (3/5/19 RAP Hearing
recording, Part 2: 4:05-4:19.) Landlord, a long-time Bay Area property owner and landlord,
alleged that she did not know that the rear cottages were not legal until after Tenants filed their
first RAP petition (T18—04‘14). (3/5/19 Hearing, fart 2: 6:55- .7:09 and 13:17-13:32.) Landlord
testified that upon learning that the rear cottages were illegal, she sought to remove them from use

as dwelling fmits, offering as evidence a permit application worksheet she had filled out herself .

and allegedly submitted to the City of Qakland Planning and Building Department. (3/5/19

7 See: March-5;-2019-Hearing -Exhibit-9;-also see-March-5;-2019-Hearing Exhibit-51ocated-in the RAP file——
folder. \

-5-

‘000062



38}

10

11

12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

O [~} ~3 ) (%1 -+ W

|| Hearing, Part 2: 19:28-19:48.) The application worksheet identified the subject property as 2

existing residential units that Landlord was proposing to reduce to 1 unit, and states the purpose is

to “return from habitable space to office space.” (See: 3/5/19 Hearing Exh. 11: Zalabak Permit

, Applicaiion Worksheet.) Landlord testified that the rear cottage was permitted for use as an

office and she had reverted it back to that use. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 19:37-19:49.) When
Tenant asked Landlord if she had the original permit stating that rear unit Was an office space,
Landlord said she did, and then referred back to the Permit Application Worksheet she had filled
out herself. (3/5/1? Hearing, Part 2: 19:58-20:03.) Lamben then referenced the repeated use of
the term “returned” in Landlord’s Permit Application Worksheet as evidence that the rear unit had
been permitted for use as an office.t (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 20:20-21:49.) When Tenant noted
that the application had been filled out by' tﬁe Landlord who was only surr;rlising the unit had been
permitted for use as an .ofﬁce, Lambert stated “No, [Landlord] testified that there was a permit for
it to be an office originally.” (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 21:44-21:56.) When Tenant again asked if
the Landlord actually had the permit, Laﬁdlord’s counsel stateci Landlord was not responsible for
pulling the permit, telling Tenant that if he wanted a copy of the pérmit, he could get it from the
city. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 2v1:57-22:07.)-Landlord then stated she did have thé permit, but that
she did not i;ring it to the hearing. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 22:07-22:10.) | |

Lambert later reiterated that “[the permit applidation worksheét] goes to show that [the rear
cottage] is no longer é residential unit. It’s an office space...it’s ofﬁci_aily with the city an office
space.” (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 30:19-30:32.) At no time did Lambert issue an order or
otherwise require Landlord to provide a copy of the alleged office space permit.

Tenants argued that removing the stove from the rear cottage and placing it in the laundry

room was not evidence that Landlord had removed the cottage from use as a dwelling unit, but

simply a temporary step to evade rent control. (3/5/19 Heai'ing, Part 1: 57:00-57:09.)

L)
> -]

8 «Returned” as in reverted.

000083




o e N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23
| "
25
26

Landlord claimed that upon restoring the rear cottages to non-habitable space, they were no

longer rentable units, and that allowing the continued rental of illegal units was against public

policy because it would put tenants at risk. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 39:39- 40:10.) Landlord

admitted sﬁe had rented out the illegal cottages in violaﬁon of thé léw, but argued that by ceasing'
hef illegal 6onc_iuct, 'the property reverted back to a single family home. (3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: '
41:12-41:27.) Landlord went on to claim that the pro_pérty was now being used as a single family
home by Te.nants,9 but did not provide any evidence that Tenants had access or use of the entire
property. (3/5/15 Hearing, Part 2: 41:51-42:19.)

When Tenants érgued that. Landlord had temporarily stopped renting the rear unit solely to
circumvent rent control and the Just Cause ordinance, Lambert told Tenants that Landlbrd’s
motivation for complying with the law was not at issue, saying violation of Just Cause was not a
subject for the hearing. (3/5/19 Hearing,’Part 2: 45:00-45:37.) Tenants reiterated that Landlord
was well aware that the rear cottageé were illegal for at least ten months and did not take any
action to corﬁply with the law until after Tenants filed their ﬁrst petition at theJRAP. (3/5/19
Hearing, Part 2:> 46:50-47:16.) |

At no time did Lambert require Landlord to provide any evidence other than Landlord’s

“own testimony that Landlord had actually removed the rear cottages from residential use or that

the rear cottagés were permitted for use as an office.

On April 22, 2019, é “good cause” hearing took place at the order of Lambert to ascertain
whether the subject property might be subject to a new construction exemption. (4/22/19 Hearing,
1:30-1:47.) Tenénts submitted as evidence a 1940’s parcei map they obtgined from the Oakiand

Building Department which showed two structures existed on the Subject Property. (4/22/19

?lLe. suggesting that Tenants had been given use of the entire Subject Property, which was not the case.

[N
o0

000084




O 0 NN W A WON e

[\ N N NN N N — — — [ — — — —_— —_ —_
N wh =~ W [\ — [ O oo ~ N wn =N (O8] N o [

'Hearihg, 3:’15-3:38.)' (See: 4/22/19 Hearing Exh. A- 1940’s Pércel Map of the 5500 bl_dék of
Kales Ave.) Tenants testified that they learned from the building records that the larger rear |
céttage had existed as a garage since the 1940,&' (4/22/19 Hearing, 5:37—5:39.) Tenants further
testified that they obtained from the Building Department the entire permit history for the Subject
Property going back to the 1940’s, and that there was no record of a pen:hit to use the garage as an
office space. ( 4/22/19 Hearing, 9:25-10:00.) Tenants submitted copies of all the building records
as evidence. (See: 4/22/19 Hearing Exh. B- Building Records for 5553 Kales Ave. from 1940’s
to 2019.)T¢nants pointed out fhat Landlord had testified under oath that she had a permit for use
of the rear coﬁage as an office, but since no such permit existed, Landford’s credibility was at
issue. (4/22/19 Hearing, 10:00-10:32.) Lambert and Landlord did not diépute the discrepancy, but
Lambert said she did not know that the Landlord’s [lying under oath] had any impact. (4/22/ 1§
Hearing, 11:42-11:46.) When Tenant m.ade anotﬁer layman’s attempt to put Landlord’s |
credibility at issue, Lambert obfuscated on the topic, turning it into a personal joke without |
formally addressing Tenants’ request for notice of Landlord’s. lack of credibility. (4/22/19
Hearing, 12:10-12:24.) | | | | |
Landlord’s counsel later stated severai times the previous owner of the subject property' :
was Landlord’s brother and that it was the “brother” that created and initially rented out the rear
cottages; Landlord’s counsel offered to have Landlord testify in support of her claims. (4/22/19
Hearing, 17:56-18:32.) Lambert said the Landlord’s testimony was not necessary. (4/22/19
Hearing, 19:00-19:10.) When Tenants then sought to have the Landlord state under oath that she
was claiming the former owner of the property was Landlord’s brother, Lambert would not allow

Tenan to ask the Landlord the question. (4/22/19 Hearing, 21:45-21:59.) Tenants informed

|| Lambert that the former owner was not the Landlord’s brother, and when Lambert asked how

Tenants knew that, Tenants provided a copy of the obituary of the former owner, Stephen Lage,

“which mentioned the names of family members, including sister Deborah Lage, but made no

-8-

000085




& W

O 0 NN W

10

11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21
2
23
24
25
26

mention of Sherry Zalabak. (4/22/19 Hearihg, 22:06-22:20). Lambert acknowledged thé obifuary,
but then asked Tenants why it mattered.' (4/22/19 Hearing, 22:22—12:24). Tenants responded
that it mattered b_eqéuse it showed Landlord had repeatedly lied and lacked all éredibility. (4/22/19
Hearing, 2:24-22:46.) Lambert said she un&erstood the ar'gurhent Tenénts were “attempting to
make,” but that there was nothing about Landlord’s testimony that would conﬁadict the “_operaitjvé
facté” of the case. (4/22/19 vHearing, 22:47-24:24). Lambert went on to state that the removal of
the stO\}e from the rear cottages was also not aﬁ operative fact but a detail used to show Landlérd
had removed the rear cottag.es from illegal use, not “the thing which allows [Landlord] to raise
[Tenants’] rent.”(4/22/19 Hearing, 31:10- 31:43.) Lambert concluded the hearing with an
explanation that the presenée of a stove is not an operative fact fo.r determination of a dwelling
unit, but rather the residential use of a structure that mattered. (4/22/19 Hearing; 31:53-32:_30.)_

Lambert then proceeded to issue a decision bésed on Landlord’s testimony that she had
removed the rear cottagevs from residential use, despite the absolute lack of evidence from
Landlord that she had done so, énd despite the substantial evidence that Landlora had no

compunction about providing false testimony under oath.
L THE RAP HAS JURISDICTION TO HEAR THE APPEAL

* The final decision in the underlying petitions was served by mail on June 7, 2019.
Appellants timely filed their appeal dn June 27, 2019 pursuant to O.M.C. 8.22.120.
| The RAP can and must consider this appeal because “[i]n general, a party must exhaust
administrative remedies before resorting to the courts.” (Coachella Valley Mosquito and Vector
Control Dist. v. California Public Employment Relations Bd. (2005) 35 Cal.4th 1072, 1080.)

“[Aln administrative remedy is exhausted only upon ‘termination of all available, nondhplicative

27
28

1 Though she acknowledged the information in the 6bituary, Lambert did not enter the obituary into the
record. '

12 Thereby implying that Landlord’s removal of the stove was not sufficient to remove the unit from
residential use. ’

-9-

000086




administrative review procedures.”” Id. (citing to Cdlifornia Correctional Peace Officers Assn. v.

1
5 || State Personnel Bd. (1995) 10 Cal.4th 1133, 1151.)
3 | Here the RAP has issued a decision for which Tenants have ample grounds to appeal.
4 | Tenants must exhaust all administrative remedies before resorting to the courts. Tenants must
S therefore be afforded ihe opportunity to exhaust all administrative remedies before filing a writ.
6 A. Landlord’s Arguments that the RAP Does Not Have Authority to Hear the
7 ‘ Appeal are Moot. '
8 Landlord argues that the Rent Adjustment Board does not have jurisdiction to hear this
9 appeal because: 1) the Subject Property is a single family residence exempt from the RAP; -and 2)
190 Tenantsihave vacated the Subject Property. Both of these arguments fail.
1; Landlord’s clairn that the Rent Board lacks jurisdiction to hear an appeal of an exemption
13 because the unit is~ exempt is ridiculously circular. More to the point, RAP regulation
14 i} 8-22.030(C)(1)(c) specifically entitles Tenants to appeal a decision granting an exemption. While a
15 || SFR exemption pursuant to Costa'Hawkins'might inake 'sense where the lancllord represented, and
16 1l the tenants believed, that the rental ag.reement was for a single familyliome, this is not that
7 situation. Here the landlord, by her own'admission, has profited for years from renting rnultiple
iz units at the subject property. iA property’s legal designation as a single family residence does not
20 create an unappealable blanket exemptien where the landlord knowingly rented out the property as
21 || @ multi-unit dwelling any more than a commercial space knewingly rented out by the landlord for
22 |l residential use is automatically exempt and unappealable. (See Wofsy v. Tenant 1.12-0051; Also
23 || see Rose v. Polanski, T05-0233.)
24, As for moving out-Tenants could and would have mainteiined possession of the unit if they
‘ = had not been faced with the risk of owing many months of a huge rent differential while waiting
;; for the RAP hearings and decision. They filed their pelition November 2018, and the decision was
28 issued at the end of May 2019. Thongh they filed their appeal in June, they knew it would be

-10 -




[um—y

[N T NG T NG T NG N NG T N N N e e T s T s T e S e S SOy W G U
SN W b W NN = OO NN R W N e o

O 0 N N Ut AW N

months before their appeal was heard, and they simply could not afford risking the possibility of
owing .a year or more of rent differential if they lost the appeal.

Tenants filed a timély appeal citing valid grounds while still in possession of the subjlect
premises. Tenants should not be forced to choose between exercising their legal rights or risking a
major financial burden as a result of scheduling matters outside their control. Tenants have done

their due diligence and ask that the Rent Board do the same by hearing their appeal.
IL. GROUNDS FOR APPEAL

Tenants submit their appeal pursuant to RAP Regulation 8.22.120(B)(3-5), and Q.M.C.

8.22.030(B)(1)(B) (exemption based on fraud or mistake.) |

A. OM.C. 8.22.120(B)(3) The Decision Raises a New Policy Issue That Has Not

'Pre_viously‘ Been Decided by the Board

The RAP acknowledged that this is a new issue not previously decided by the Board
when it rescheduled the appeal hearing in this matter to have it heard by the full board. This issue
is of significant importance to Oakland Tenants, as there are likely thousands of tenants living in
properties recorded as single family homes but wﬁich actually have one or more illegal units.

The rental of illegal units is commonplace in the Bay Area, including Oakland. And the| -
RAP, the Just Cause for Eviction ordinance, and the Tenant Protection Ordinance all recognize
and provide protection for tenanté living in illegal units, as evidenced by the definition of “coyered

units” under O.M.C. 8-.22.020:

“Covered Unit" means any dwelling unit, including joint living and work quarters,
and all housing services located in Oakland and used or occupied in consideration
of payment of rent with the exception of those units designated in Section 8.22.030
A. as exempt.”

Oakland Planning Code §17.09.040 defines “dwelling unit” as:

...a room or suite of rooms including only one kitchen, except as otherwise

NN
=N |

provided ifr Section 17.102.270, and designed or occupied as_separate [iving
quarters for one person or family; [reference to boarding house omitted.]

-11 -
, 000088




W

o 0 N3y

1| Tenants vacated.

A review of the exemptions under 8.22:030 makes no mention of illegal or unpermitted
units. Yet when illegal units are located in a property recorded as a Single Family Property, such
is the case here, all tenants in the property are at risk eaph time one unit becomes vacant, as the
landlord can simply claim exemption under Costa Hawkins and impose a huge rent increase for
the remaining tenants, which often results in pushing out the existing tenants, allowing th/e
landlord to re-rent the units at new, market rents, or sell thé property vacant. The failure to uphold
the RAP in these situations gives landlords a loophole to circumvent both the RAP and Just ACause.

Recognizing this problem, San Francisco amended its planning code in’ 2016 to fequire a
landlord to legalize an illegal dwélling unit whenever feasible.!3 The effect of the amendment has
been to hold landlords accountable and protect tenants from losing their housing. s.an Francisco
also amended its Tenant Harassment Ordinance in 2018 to include rent increases imposed in bad
faith on tenants in units exempt from rent control but covered by the Just Cause Ordinance.'*

That said, while these additional protections have not yet been enacted in Oakland, 1;he
present case need not rely on them because landlord has not provided substantial, or any, evidence
that she has rerﬁoved the rear cottages or ceased rentirig them out. In faét, when Tenants vacated
the property, the rear studios appeafed to be exactly the same as they had throughout Tenants’ 5

year tenancy and there is no reason to believe Landlord did not simply re-rent the units once

B. O.M.C. 8.22.120(B)(4) The Decision Violates Federal, State, or Local Law

The Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance states: “[a]Jmong the purposeé of this Chapter

are providing relief to residential tenants in Oakland by limiting rent increases for existing

tenants;” O.M.C. 8.22.010(C). Tenants rented a cottage in a multi-unit prbpei’ty. When Landlord

decided not to re-rent the rear cottages, whatever her motive, it did not change Tenants status as

13 See San Francisco Planning Code §317.
14 See San Francisco Administrative Code §37.10A(.)

-12--




- - Y YR A T

10
11

12

13
14

15

16
17
18
19
20
21

2

23
24
25
26

allowing a Landlord to unilaterally change the status of aﬁ 'existing tenahcy in order to claim an
exemption where one did not previously exist. In fact, an attempt by a landlord to do just thét was
shot dovyn by the California Court of Appeals in Burien v. Wiley (2014) 230 Cal. App. 4“_1 1039.1In
Burien a rent controlled apamnent building was converted to condominiums and the owner then
claimed that the propefty waé exempt from rent control under Costa Hawkins, first as
condominiﬁm, and when tha'lt.failed, as new construction. In analyzing the legislative history of the
Costa Hawkins Act, the Court noted the Act had been amended in 2002 specifically to close a
loophole abused by landlords who had been applying for condo Coﬂversion permit simply to claim
an exemption from rent control, and then never going through with the conversion. Id. at 1046-
1047. The Court also found that the landlord’s claim for new construction exémption based on the
issuance of a new certificate of occupancy for a pre-existing unit did nothing to further the purpose

for which the new construction exemption was created, i.e. to encourage the creation of new .

housing, and therefore landlord’s request for exemption should be denied. Id. at 1049.

While the situation in the present case is distinguishable, the principle is the same- in
order to claim an exémption, the purpose of the exemption should be met. Here .it is not. The
Iexemption -fo.r single fémily homes ‘under béth the Oakland RAP and Costa Hawkins was meant to
preserve “mom and pop” investments, not to protect a landlord that rents out illegal units, and then
when caught, uses the exemption to her advantage to impose a giant rent.increase on the Ténants
whol caUght her.

Similarly, in DaVinci Group v. SF Rent Board (1992) 5 Cal.App. 4™ 24, landlord
sought a new construction exemption for a building that had been tenant occupied prior to the

issuance of a certificate of occupancy. The court affirmed a decision of the Rent Board denying

27

—ng-

the landlord’s petition to exempt his property from the Rent Ordinance, stating that the

“Ordinance’s “explicit mandate is to protect tenaiits, especially from éxcessive rent increases” |

-13 -

000090




(citing Fox v. San Francisco Rent etc. Bd. (1985) 169 Cal. App.3d at p. 656) to such an extent that

1
5 |I a policy which removes such protectibn from tenants already in occupancy is contraindicated. Id.
3 at 31. While this case is also distinguishéble in that it deals with a new construction ekemption
4 || rather than an exemption for a single family residenge, the bésic tenet applies- tenénts already in
> place and protected by rent control ordinances should not be divested of such protections by a
¢ landlord’s unilateral decision to claim a new status for the property. In citing to the rent board
Z decision they upheld, the Court reiterated: “To permit landlords to rent 6ut illegal units but to
9 avoid the obligations imposed .by the Ordinance is contréry to the purpose and intent of the
| 10 || Ordinance." Id. at 31. This could not be more true than in the present case where Landlord has
11 |t rented out an illegal unit for 8 or more years, and now when confronted with her wrongdoing,
12 || 'seeks to have protections for tenants rémoved s\o that she can profit further; an exemption under
3 these circumstances “is contrary to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance.”
i: C. O.M.C. 8.22.120(B)(5) The Decision is Not Supported by Substahtial Evidence
6. Hearing decisions must be supported By sqbstantial cvidencé. (RAP Hearing Officer
17 Policies and Procedures Manual, p. 7.) “Substantial evidence means that the evidence must be of
18 {| ponderable legal significance...Jt must be reasonable in nature, credible, and of solid value; it must
19 |l actually be substantial proof of the essentials that the law fequire_s in a particular case.” Id.
20 paraphrasing In Re Alcala, 222 Cal. App. 3d 345.
21 Landlord provided no evidence of pénderable legal significance to support her
Z contention that she has ceased rentirig the rear cottages for residential use. The only
4 documentation Landlord offered as evidence was a permit appliéation she had filled out herself, iq
25 (| which she claimed she planned to revert the rear cottage to its “legal use” as an office.!* Having
26 |l filled it out herself, the application was self-serving and of no solid value or legal significance.
27
78 13 The application also only claims to revert a single structure, though Landlord has been réiting oiit both |

rear cottages for residential use.

-14 -




0 W |\

Landlord’s only other evidence was her testimony, which, as Tenants demonstrated with records
from the building department, was not in the least bit credible.!® Tenants also provided tangible
evidence to show that Landlord lied about her relationship to the former owner, evidence which

the hearing officer then failed to enter into the record.!” While Landlord’s relationship with the

> former owner may not have substantive relevance to the matter at hand, the fact that Landlord lied
about the relationship is relevant to show she lacks credibility.
7 v ] _
2 * And finally, hearing officer herself stated that the absence of a stove was not
9 determinative of residential use of a unit,'®therefore the mere fact that Landlord placed the stove
10. || from the rear cottage in the laundry room of the Subject Property is no more persuasi\}e. of
11 {| Landlord’s intent to cease residential use of the rear cottages than it is of her intent to simply place:
12 |l it back in the cottages, as Tenants have argﬁed.
13 | . o - "
‘ Landlord’s lack of documentary evidence of legal significance or solid value coupled
14 ' ' : " _
with her false testimony would lead a reasonable person to conclude that Landlord lacked
15 , _ : ' o
16 credibility, making it unreasonable for the hearing officer to accept as true Landlord’s testimony -
17 that she had refnoved the réaf cottages from residential use.
18 With nothing but unreliable testimony to support her position, Landlord has failed to
19 || provide any substantial evidence that would lead a reasonable person to believe she had
2 permanently ceased renting out the rear cottages for residential use.
21 D. O.M.C. 8.22.120(B)(6) The Hearing Officer Made a Procedural Error That
22 Denied Tenants Sufficient Opportunity to Adequately Respond to the
23 Opposing Party. _ _
Y The hearing officer failed to give Tenants the opportunity to impeach Landlord with
her false testimony despite Tenants’ repeated protestations about Landlord’s false statements made
25 ' :
_26 -
1 See: 4/22/19 Hearing, Exh. B- Building Records for 5553 Kales Ave. from 1940°s to 2019; and
27 4/22/19 Hearing: 9:25-10:00. )
- 17 4/22119 Hearing, 22:06-22:20

13 4/22/19 Hearing, 31:53-32:30

-15-

000092




)

under oath. Hearing officer then made a decision that relied almost entirely on .andlord’s

1
o || unreliable testimeny.
3 Hearing officer also permitted Landlerd to submit as evidence a permit application
4 |l Landlord had filled out herself, ‘kthough Tenants 'attemr)ted to object to the submission by pointing
> out the application proved nothing other than Landlord had filled out a form.
6 When Terlants sought to show that Landlord did not possess the perniit she alleged she
Z || had, hearing officer stated Landlord’s‘ testimony was sufficient to prove she had the permit and did
g || not require Landlord to produce it.!” When Tenanrs later showed no permit existed, hearing ofﬁeer
10 |l said existence of the permit was not material to the case, though hearing officer had repeatedly
11 || referred ro the permit application as evidence that Landlord had removed the rear cottages from
12 ) residential use.2 When Tenants provided the obituary of former property owner Stephen Lage to
13 impeaeh' Landlorri on her claim that Mr. Lage was her brother, hearing officer acknowledged on .
E Vthe record that she was reviewing something from ’ferrant, but 'never‘stated What she was
6 reviewing and never entered the obituary into the record.2! ‘
17 No matter what the Landlord said, hearing officer justified it. When Tenants tried to
18 || impeach Landlord-and demonstrate she lacked credibility, their attempts were ignored, disrnissed
19 Il or denied.
| 20 The RAP is meant to make to make the system more accessible to Oalrland residents
21 that do not have the means to obtain leéal counsel. Tenants, who have no legal experience and
Z were not represented by counsel, did their best to have their laymen’s 'objectrons acknowledged
Y and demonstrate Landlord lacked eredibility. But instead of acknowledging and allowing Tenants’
95 [I objections and impeachment examination, hearing officer instead leetured fhem on legal
26
27 19 3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 21:57-22:10.
- 20 3/5/19 Hearing, Part 2: 20:20-21:49

21 4/22/19 Hearing, 22:06-22:24

-16 -

000093




terminology while ignoring the substance of Tenants’ arguments. In doing so, hearing officer

1
9 || denied Tenants sufﬁcientv opportunity to respond to opposing party
,3 | _ | .
E. 0.M.C.8.22.030(B)(1)(b) (exemption based on fraud or mistake.)
_ : Tenants submit that the Landlord’s claim for exemption was based on fraud. Landlord
6. claimed that the rear cottages were not legal or habitable, and therefore she had removed them
7 I from residential use. However, after Tenants moved oﬁt, Landlord advertised the Subject
8 || Property for rent. In the ads (listed 'oﬁ numerous'websites), she referred to the rear cottages as
9 Il “outside bedrooms” and a “gﬁest retreat.” While this may _constitute “new evidence,” the fact
,10 that Landlord claimed she had removed the.units from use as dwelling spacé, and tﬁen
1 subsequentlvy advertised the cottages as dwell_ing space is evidehce that the Landlord lied in the
z hearing when she said she had removed the rear céttages from residential use. |
14 Tenants have the right to contest the exémption based on Fraud or Mistake after the fact.
| 15 || (Sherman v. Michelsen T16-025 8.) Here it is only logiqal that post facto evidence Be provided,
16 as Landlord was clearly not going to rent out the rear cottages before the RAP decision was
17 issued, as doing so wouid jeopérdize her case. . | |
18 CONCLUSION
;Z Pursuant to the foregoing, there is no basis for a finding the subject property was exempt
21 from the RAP while Tenants were still in possession. For the reasons» above, Tenants fespectfully '
99 || request that Landlord’s request for exemption from the Rent Adjustment Program be denied and
23 || Tenant Pet_itioners’ petitioris for unlawful rent increases be granted or remanded for furthér |
24 consideration.
25 Dated: January 13, 2026
26 - Giampaalj Law
27 - ZaM %M
5 LISA GIAMPAOLI

Attorney for Tenants/Petitioners

-17 -

000094




RECENVED
SITY DF DARL AN
RENT ARBITRA T”’ N PRGN

CITY OF OAKLAND

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Hi9gUNE] PH 2: 06

Oakland, CA 94612
: 510) 238-3721 : .
CITY oF OAKLAND (510) APPEAL
Appellant’s Name 4

I Owner [f+Eenant

Property Address (Include Unit Number)

Chesky Machn ¢ fo&.ﬁ‘m "Pm@-e/
S5 Lahﬁ,ﬁ#t—ﬁbx4@mﬁ<uﬁ oL

Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices)
ISR Lales Ave
Oallland, C¥ qHipl®

Case Number

Ne-ciidy Tie-o4F2.

| Date of Decision appealed
4,30.20]9

Name of Representative (if any)

Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices)

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As parf of the appeal an explanation must
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed -
. below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation.

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearmg Decision to be updated. (Please clearly

explain the math/clerical errors.)

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

a) . &(The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions
of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description zs inconsistent.).

b) [0 The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation, '
you must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent.)

c) d The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (7n your expldnatz'on,
you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

d) [ The decision violates federal, state or local law. (In your explahation, you must provide a detailed

statement as to what law is violated,)

R 5 'W{Theﬂecision"i'sm)t supporte‘d‘by substantial evidence. (/n your explanation, you must explain why

the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.)

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018

000095



f) O I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s claim. (n
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not in dispute.)

g) [ The decisioh denies the Owner a fair return on my investment. (You may appeal on this ground only
when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically state why you have been ‘
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supportzng your claim.)

h)  [J Other. (In your explanaz‘zon, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.)

Submissions to the Board must not exceed 25 pages from each party, and they must be received by the Rent
Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within 15 days of filing the appeal. Only the first
25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A)(5).
Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of pages attached:

¢ You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties or your appeal may be dismissed. ®
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on Jone 724 2019,

I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commerCIal
carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid,
~ addressed to each opposing party as follows: :

T | ey Zadebal
Address Yo x&n«\mﬂ‘“ M
: e.Zi , FB,L('M"‘A\\ C]Ar ciq%»}_

Name

}Ar\a..M\C}rkf\z_e. Conines”

A — .
= 1ol Harrisen Sheeek, 14PN Qleor

City, S Zip ‘
1 tafe 1 C&\.‘{.\M{ ¢ ﬁ,("{{gl’?;..

Ol P~ — | 6.93 2014

SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018

000096



I
#

. Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue

. Oakland, CA 94618
“June 27, 2019

Rent Adjustment Program (RAP)
- City of Oakland, CA
Re: Appeal

Case Number(s):
T18-0414
T18-0472

Tenant(s):
Chester “Chase” Martin
Kristen Ponger

~Landlord:
Sherry Zalabak

Rentai Property Address: 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618
Tenants Cause for Appeal:
We are appealing the decision on the following grounds:
1. (a) The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22.060
A. Notice at the Commencement of Tenancy
C. Failing to Give Notice

2. {c) The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board
3. (e) The decision is not supported by substantial-evidence

Key Points:

1. (a) The decision is inconsiétent with OMC Chapter 8.22.060:
- As stated in Case T18-0414, Tenants never received notice of RAP at the

- commencement of our tenancy or 6 months pfior to rent increase notice (OMC

8.22.060). The property'was then being rented as a mu!tﬁiilgift‘propertyA (confrmedby

000097



2, (c) The decision raises a new policy issue that hés not been decided by the B'o_ard
- If an owner can remove an illegal unit from the rental market in order to restore their
property’s status to exempt for the purpoées of evading OMC Chapte\r 8.22, so that the
owner can then raise the remaining tenant's rent 70%, how does that foster the fair

housing purpose of the program?

3. (e) The decision is not supported by substantial evidence:
- Hearing Debision Summary from March 5th hearing includes assessments contradictory
to factual evidence filed in tenant petition | ‘
- Thereis no ewdence that the back unit was occupied when the owner mhented
the property. No proof of occupancy was submitted for time prior to 2012
- There is no evidence that the owner was unaware of the legal status of the back
unit. The evidence shows the opposite. Ownér claims that she had no knowledge
of the legality of the. uni.t until tenants filed a petition. As you can see in Exhibit H
[attached] from T18-0414 petition, which is dated May 25th, 2018 discussion of
the legality of the unit had been raised at this point. This had been discussed
- between landlord and tenant on many occasioné.
- There is no original permit for the “office”, therefore the owner's application for a
permit to “restoré to office use” is invalid and the unit is still deemed a residenﬁal
- structure. Hearing officer accepted a verbal confirmation from the landlord who
~ claimed to have permit at home. She accepted this as evidence despite the hard
evidence provided by tenants provinAg there is no evidence or récqrd of such
permit. Records obtained from the City of Oakland.

In Summary

The landlord has strategically used certain tactics such as. removal of the stove to evade rent
control (The stove remains in the laundry room with the intention of reinstalling it to the back
unit). This remains a bad faith rent increase and an attempt to force tenants out of the home. A
single-family dwelling is not exempt and is considered a two-unit building if there is another
residential structure on the same lot, regardless of the Iegality of the unit. Owners application for

permit to ‘restore to office use” |s invalid as there is no orlglnal perm|t ‘Therefore, the property

remams as a two dmt proper“ty

000098



702912018 ’ . o f il - l’ring Kulgs Ave. Fwid: Lense Expiration and Offer m-"f ase

N] Grmail - | | Chase Martin <chagemartins@gmall.com>

Print Kales Ave Fwd Lease Explration and Offer to Purchase
2 messages

Krlsten Ponger< , o E - ‘ Mon, Jul 23; 2018 at 11:53 AM
To: Chase Martin - ' .

------- Forwarded maseane -
From: Chase Martin_ _ »
" Date; Fri, May 25, 2018 at 2;08 PM
Subject: Re: Lease Explrahon and Offer to Purchase
To: Sherry Zalabak - ‘ > : :
Cc; kristen Ponger —

Hi Sherry,

We have been thinking about you guys and really hope that John is hanging in there. | am surs you all are doing everything
you. can to make the best out of a difficult situation. We are hoping for the best.

We appreciate you getting that stained leaf glass back to us, it was a gift with sentimental value to us. You can Ieave itin
our maiibox anytime. The weed whacker you saw was the Black & Decker one that our neighbor [oaned us, but the one we
are missing is a nice {also orange) STIHL whacker that Ron gifted o me when we move inta Kales, and rt‘s still m:ssmg
Can you pleass follow up with Maco about this? Thank yout

- As far as planning for the future, | know you are eager to know where we stand on the house, Kristen and |-absolufely love.
the Kales house and have cared for it as if it was our own the past 3.5 years. We are very interested in our cellective dream
of a mutually-beneficial purchasing agreament between the four of us. With that said, we had our reattor evaluate the house
and give us comps on updated/renovated 1Br/1Baths in our neighborhood, which we would be happy to share with you Our
realtor's professional review of 17 comps in the area shows a cutrent fair market value of 750K.

. Based on this, knowing the ins and auts of the houss, recognizing that this would be a direct sale for you without realtor and
other fees, we would like to purchase the house “as is,” without inspection at 750K. This is taking the current condition of
the house into consideration, knowing that it needs major repairs, as well as the fact that the unit in the back is not legal and
from a realtor's paint-of-view iz considered a liability, rather than an asset. We caniot go higher than this and don't have
room for negotiation. But, we are very flexible to alternative financing arrangements that we've spoken about before such as
a down-payment then renting to buy.

Our baby is due to arrive on July Sth, and as you can imagine we are entirely focused on preparations for the birth. Of
coursé, settling on an agreement for the Kales house Is also a major priority. Qur apologies for not getting back to you
sooner regarding the termination of lease agreemsnt you dropped off. We wanted fo let you know that we don't plan on
signhing this, but will do our best to work with you through the detaﬂs of buying Kales,

We lock forward to hearing your thoughts on this. We'd be happy to meet in parson to talk more specifically about the
details.

All the best,

Chase & Kristen

‘On Thu, May 10, 2018 at 8:13 AM, Sharry Zalabak <sherZ@comcast.nat> wrote:

‘Hi Chase,

| assumed that the stained giass leaf was left by the tenant. Yes. | have it here and will return it. Re. the two garden
tools you described——I did see them during our work days there and Maco did use your red rake but we Jid not take
them. Did you look in the basement crawl space? When ! went back to water the plants a wesk after Maco and |
finished | saw the weed-wacker. 1t was sitting to the left of the crawl-space door in the laundry room. | remember this as

it - mall gougleconymailin 0 Mui=2 &ik=9ch 790206105 er-Mmbnw DAINO_oxn.dobl=gail fe_ 180724 [4_ pd&vien =p(&c:u:KaIus‘}.‘..’Ol’hnﬁtisﬁmb:glﬁth.. s

i



sy

y

CITY OF OAKLAND

CITY OF OAKLAND
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
P.0. Box 70243 |
Oakland, CA 94612-0243
(510) 238-3721

| For date stamp.

00 -5 Ph oL 2L
PROPERTY OWNER

RESPON SE

Please Flll Out This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information

may result in your response being rejected or delayed.

CASE NUMBER T 18-0414

Your Name . Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Sherry Zalabak 402 Vermont Avenue ‘
Berkeley, CA 94707 —
Email:

Your Representative’s Name (if any) Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Alana Grice Conner 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor (510) 625-0100
Fried & Williams LLP Oakland, CA 94612 Email:

» aconner@friedwilliams.com

Tenant(s) Name(s) Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:
Chester "Chase" Martin 5553 Kales Avenue
Kristen Ponger Oakland, CA 94618 .

’ Email:

Property Address (If the property has more than one address, list all addresses)
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618

Total number of units on
property
Single Famﬂy Residence

Have you paid for your Oaklahd Business License? Yes KI No [I Lic. Number:

00182031

The property owner must have a current Oakland Business License. If it is not current, an Owner Petition or
Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.-

Have you paid the current year’s Rent Program Service Fee ($68 per unit)? Yes Kl No [J APN:48A-7043-40

The property owner must be current on payment of the RAP Service Fee. Ifthe fee is not current, an Owner Petition _
or Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.

Date on which you acquired the building:

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? Yes 1 No K.

_10/07/10 .

Type of unit (Circle One):[House} Condominium/ Apartment, room, or live-work

T L JUSTIFICATION FOR RENT INCREASE  You must check the appfopriate justification(s) -

box for each increase greater than the Annual CPI adjustment contested in the tenant(s) petition.
For the detailed text of these justifications, see Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22 and the Rent

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.

Rev. 3/28/17

1

000100



PR
AN Lt

f L

Board Regulations. You can get additional information and copies of the Ordinance and - .
Regulations from the Rent Program office in person or by phoning (510) 238-372:1_.\ Uiy

You must prove the contested rent increase is justified. For each justification, lbcked on the
following table, you must attach organized documentary evidence demonstratmagﬂyt; En"hﬂelﬂent{: 2h
to the increase.. This documentation may include cancelled checks, receipts, and invoices.
Undocumented expenses, except certain maintenance, repair, legal, accounting and management
expenses, will not usually be allowed. :

Date of Banking Increased Capital Uninsured Debt - Fair
Contested (deferred Housing Improvements Repair Service Return
Increase annual Service Costs Costs
increases ) .
O o O O O o
O O O o O
N O O 0 N m)

If you are justifying additional contested increases, please attach a separate sheet.

IL. RENT HISTORY If you contest the Rent History stated on the Tenant Petition, state the
correct information in this section. If you leave this section blank, the rent history on the tenant’s
petition will be considered correct :

The tenant moved into the rental unit on Nox)ember 24 2014

The tenant’s initial rent including all services provided was: $_2,600.00 / month.

Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form entitled “NOTICE TO TENANTS OF
RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?” (“RAP Notice”) to all of the petitioning tenants?
Yes _ X No I don’t know

If yes, on what date was the Notice first given? October 10, 2018 but unit is exempt
Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes X No

Begin with the most recent rent and work backwards. If you need more space please attach another sheet.

Date Notice Date Increase Rent Increased Did you provide the “RAP
Given Effective : NOTICE?” with the notice
(mo./day/year) From To of rent increase?
10/10/18 12/15/18 $ 5.652.00 $ 4,500.00 Yes - ONo
12/1/16 11/17 ¥ 2.600.00 ¥ 2652.00 OYes @No
$ $ OYes [ONo
. 1 $ $ 0-Yes O No
$ $ OYes 0ONo

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17

000101



L EXEMPTION

If you claim that your propetty is exempt from Rent Adjustment (Oa]c]aﬁd : Mummpal Code
Chapter 8.22), please check one or more of the grounds: 20 NEP L :
HEOEC -5 Py e 2y
13 The unit is a single family residence or condominjum exempted by the Cosia Hawkins Rental
Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). If claiming exemption under Costa-Hlawkins,
plense answer the following questions on a separate sheet: -

Did the pnm tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (le Code Bection 1946)7

Did the prior tenant leave aftet being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section 827)?

Was the prior tenant evieted for cause?:

Are there any outstanding violations of building: hnusmg, fire or safety rodes in the unit or buildi mg‘7

Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separutely?

Did the petltmnmg tenant have roommates when hefshe moved in?

If the unit is a condummlum did you purchase it? If so: 1) fiom whom? 2) Did you purchase the entire

building?

N

Neusw

i The rent for the unit is controlled, regulated or subsidized by a governmental unit, agency or
guthority other than the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Qrdinance,

- The unit was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was issued for it on or after
meum'y 1, 1983,

O On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident of a motel, hotel or
hoarding house less than 30 days, :

| The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost of 50% or more of the average
basic cost of ew constroction,

mi The unit 15 an aceommodation in & hospital, convent, monastery, extended care facility,
convalescent home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated by an educational
1nst1tutlon.

oI The unit 15 Jocated in a building with three or fewer units, The owner oceupies one of the units
continuously as his or her prineipal residence and has done so for at least one year, :

IV. DECREASED HOUSING SERVICES

If thie petition filed by your tenant claims Deereased Housing Serviecs, state your position regarding, the
tenant’s claim(s) of decreased housing sarvices, If youneed more space attach a séparate sheet, Submit
- any documents, photographs or other tangible evidenee that supports your position,

v, VERIFICATION

X declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that all
statements made in this Response are frue and that all of the documents aftached hereto

nrc true pies of the originals. '
eyl Lo / S IS SRRy /a T AY
‘X// (Z/(/'-v L. i

Pré) operty Ovzﬁer 5 ngnature ' Date

; For mora information phone (510)-238-3721,
Rev. 3/28/17

000102



Landlord Narrative

The Tenants’ petition must be dismissed because the Rent Adjustmeiﬁfifg Pl bramdodn tihie
jurisdiction. The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code §1954.50 et seq.).
See Attachment A, Property Assessment Information. Furthermore, the Tenants” petition is
incomplete because the Tenants failed to. sign the verification under penalty of perjury which is
required. Nonetheless, if the hearing officer seeks to further reV1eW the petltlon Landlord
responds as follows:

To address the issues raised by Tenant in section I. Grounds for Petition, Landlord responds
as follows

~ (b) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (Cahforma Civil Code 1954.50). The CPI
Adjustment does not apply to the rental unit.

(c) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to receive approval from the Rent Adjustment Program for the
contested rent increase. '

(d) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to provide the Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP
Notice) form. |

(e) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The
property owner is not required to. provide the Notice of the Rent AdJustment Program (RAP
- Notice) form.

(k) The rental unit is exempt from rent control because it is a single-family residence .
exempted by the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50). The limit
for rent increases over 30% over a 5-year period does not apply to the rental unit..

(1) This exemption is based on a State law and there is no fraud or mistake.

000103



11/14/2018 Search Results - Assessor - Alameda County
ALAMEDA COUNTY, CA f Skip County Header

aCQOV-fW g ATIA(‘T—TMEN'F A

: TTET &
ONLINE SERVIDES o : Assessor's Office | Treasurer-Tax Collector | New Query *° RERCA
PROPERTY ASSESSMENT INFORMATION Assr:%}j@ﬁ;tprgﬁs o1
. R S K 2 (;

2018 - 2019 Assessment Information

B Parcel Number: 48A-7043-40
W Assessor’s Map: (Map image Is not to Map_ isclaime
scale)
B Use Code:
B Description P
@ Land . 1$152,004.00 -
B Improvements : $354,677.00
W Fixtures . 0
® Household Personal Property 0
& Business Personal Property 0
8@ Total Taxable Value ‘ $506,681.00 -
Exemptions
& Homeowner 0
& Other ' 0
B Total Net Taxable Value . $506,681.00
Additional Asgsessment Information | Property Tax Information
Adobe Acrobat Reader is required to view the. maps. Click here to download.
@l Alameda County © 2018 + All Rights Reserved » Legal / Disclaimers * Accessibility
i

000104 2,

hitps://iwww.acgov.org/MS/prop/index.aspx



o —J

' : A 2O
CITY OF OAKLAND - 2018 BUSINESS TA)" "ECLARATION (Green) 4 / 6
BUSINESS TAX RENEWAL

510-238-3704

2018 REMEWALTAY
Renew & Pay Onllne @ HTTPS /ILTSS. OAKLANDNET com,

l\(,-

Dellnquent lf pald/postmarked after March 1, 2018

| - TTE
SECTlQN:l - BUSINESS INFORMATION
1. ACCOUNT NUMBER: ' 00182031 2, TAXRATE:- ~ $13.95 per _$i,o‘o.o - ¥ lND,USTRY CODE: M
4 Malllng Address: : ) . R . Checkthefollowmg appl:cablebox{es)
m E ZAI‘ABAK SHERRY D~ ) EI .4’a‘._'- lf you are making changes to lmes 4—12 see enclosed |nstructlons ; . .
- 402 VERMONT AVE . Q 4b Clalrning a Small Buslne-is Exempilon total gross recelpts must be $3 100 or less
E . BERKELEY, CA 94707-1722 ' ' . - andyou MUSTsubmrta Forin 45q€l’ it/ jirs. ovfiublirs: dfffasostdt. © - .
l . ® o _ . Notei 'lhls exemptmn must be claimed rbefore March 1 2018 to quahfy - :
l:l et you dlscontlnued/sold your - b sinéss of " rental” property in 2017 or 2018: Complete
) Sectlons lland mn Retum slgned declaratlon wrth total payment ) .
) o Q- 44 R_é',qué'st apportlonment “of your grOSS - recéipts, * Complete . worksheet in the
5. Business Name: - ZALABAK SHERRY D : o enclosed lnstructlon #13 (onlylndusﬁ'yCodesA B,C,0; 'E, /G, lT&Zmayapply) )

6. Business Location: . 5553 KALES AVE, OAKLAND, CA 54618-1506 _ ‘ o
' ' 8. Email Address: SHERZ@COMCAST.NET

7. Buslneés Phone Number: - (510) 292-8628
9. State Contractor’s Llcehse'Nu_mber: : ‘ S 10. Ownership Type: . Sole Proprietorship
" 11. 1st Owner’s Name: Sherry D Zalabak . 12.2nd Owner's Name:

. SECTION Il - CALCULATE THE 2018 TAXES DUE:  Please include dollars and cerits (e.g. $1,000:00) % ﬁZP w%‘” Y~ \2 e

13. 2018 TAX BASE (2017 Gross Rental Incorhe) : 13.% O00O IF oAD AFI’ER M ARci, 2015,
14, 2018 TAX BUE, {Multiply Line 13 by 01395 OR enter $13,95, whichever is 14.5 - z Z 5 P . e'na'l '(bn'tax)
greatar) S : . ) ADD 10% (rl pald between
15, PENALTY DUE (see box at right if paying after 3/1/2018) ' 15.% o . 3/2/2018 and 5/ 2b18) OR

ADD 25% (if pald afler 5/1/2018)

16. INTEREST DUE (see box atrlghtifpaylngafter3/1/2018) : : / 165 | . ' B
17. PRIOR AMOUNT DUE (Go to HTTPS://LTSS.0AKLANDNET.COM for the miost 7 T { o o

¢ , : ,
current balance due) | 17.$ o 570-18

. . ¢ , .
18. RECORDATION AND TECHNOLOGY FEE . - _ 18s 200
19, State Mandated DisabllityAccess and Education Revolving Fund ' 19.$ 4.00 L
20. TOTAL-AMCUNT'DUE {Add Lines 14-19) . 20.>$
PAYME'NT} OPTIONS - YOU CAN NOW PAY ONLINE ! 5 K o
ONLINE: VISA, MasterCard, Discover or eCheck at HTTP@://LTSS.OAKLANDNET.COM

Enter youraccount number: 00182031 and ydur per'so‘nali'zed PIN: 775859
BY MAIL: Send one check per account made payable to “Oakland Business Tax.” DO NOT SEND CASH. -
IN. PERSON: Cash Check or VisA, MasterCard or Discover (see reverse for hours & hohdays)

- - - L
. e
SECTION i - HOW TO CLOSE YOUR ACCOUNT . Was this business or rental property sold or thie activity permanently discontinied? E
To close your account ‘complete Section fi apd remlt any applicable payment due. Check Box 4c (above) and complete Line 1 ar 2 (belowl-:
1. Business or Rerital Property in Oakland was L b - Toi close the accaunt, this declaration must be completed, signed and
discontinued on: . ) A A returneri, with any payment that is due, on or before March 1, 2018.

D If you would like to apt out of’ paper correspondence please check the box and update your emall address on Llne 8 above.

1 hereby declare, under penalty of pe::lury, that the Informatlon contained herein is to the best of my knowledge true and complete

Signed: ' : : 4 - Phone: ._ ) Date:
Renew & Pay online @ HTTPS:/LTSS.OAKLANDNET.COM

Printed 1/5/2018:1Cl:50 am 06/6”1% \}‘4'7’ l‘)“}<ﬁ/l\/~"‘”’} ZAUATENIC ?’/2///5/ 0001 05 , 3




B s = e

Skip to main content

Check Details

AANLA 0 AR UM LV L W TT M ARG G\ VAT A ML) LU S Y S UALLIAGL v,

723

Check Number v
Date Posted 02/23/18
Check Amount $424.50
| .
JOBN ZALABAK I/
SHERI ZALABAK ﬁ& 2_ i 2@ )I/QIIII T
Pasrtoﬂm QJM "Q# ﬂﬁé}Mﬂ | $ ‘fz%w

Order of

neTilargacom

M/géw?’/

iy =fpo 2 & 5 oo
AR

8“»11"

For your security, information like account numbers, signatures, and the ability to view the backs of

checks have been removed from the images.

You can see full or partial fronts and backs of the images by using the link at the top of the window.

= Equal Housing Lender

of 1

000106015, ¢.11 7



VEUS Fargo

Check Details | o o
Check Number ‘ » 722
Date Posted ‘ _ 02/26/18
Check Amount : 1 $68.00

Ce mpanypmk
JOHN ZALARAK

DR  faeog o dp A

e ("w LOHLEOD s g2
Stk = Clap A dﬁg[/% o .

nes R |
—sossac=o— | RAAE

For your security, information like account numbers, signatures, and the ability to view the backs of
checks have been removed from the images.
You can see full or partlal fronts and backs of the images by using the link at the top of the window.

PXOVR A M b mrnrd

= Equal Housing Lender

of 1

o 5
0001 0274/2018, 6:11 PM

nreps://connect.secure. welisrargo.cony/accounts/ mquiry/summary/der.,

LT T -~
P P
f - {



A S S A
H;“.:‘»-‘;‘:: H

WIGDEC =5 P 1y: oL,

1. Justification for Rent Increase

Date of Contested Rent Increase: 10/10/18 effective 12/15/18
Justification: Single Family Home exemption

1II. Exemption Attachment

1. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?
No _

2. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section
827)?
No :

3. Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?
No '

4. Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit
or building? :
No : »

5. Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?
Yes , . ’

6. Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?
No

7. If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? No
If so: 1) from whom? N/A 2) Did you purchase the entire building? N/A

000108



I8 0414 Rl

CITY OF OAKLAND

CITY OF OAKLAND

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

P.O. Box 70243

Oakland, CA 94612-0243
- (510)238-3721

A F or datp,stamp

: I Fa TR
Jrad IOV R

TENANT PETITION

Please Fl!l QOut Thls Form As Completely As You Can. Fallure to provide needed information may
- result in your petltlon being rejected or delayed.

Please print legibly ‘
Your Name Rental Address (with zip code) Telephoxie:
CHESTER "CHASE" MARTIN 5553 KALES AVENUE
KRISTEN PONGER OAKLAND, CA 94618 E-mail: R
Your Representative’s Name | Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone: |
Email:
Property Owner(s) name(s) Mailing Address (with zip code) Teilgp_ho_ng:
SHERRY ZALABAK 402 VERMONT AVENUE E
: BERKELEY, CA 94707 L -
Property Manager or Management Co. Mailing Addresé {with zip code) Telephone:
(if applicable) ’
Email:

.Number of units on the property: 2

Type of unit you rent C U Apartment, Room, or
(check one) ' x House J Condomlmlum Live-Work

Are you current on

your rentﬂcheck one) x Yes Q No

If you are not current on your rent, please explain, (If you are legally withholding rent state what if any, habltablllty violations exist in

your unit.)

I.. GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Check all that apply. You must check at least one box. For all of the

grounds for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I (We) contest one or more rent increases on
one or more of the following grounds:

(a) The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice I was given was calculated incorrectly.

X[ (b) The increase(s) exceed(s) the CPI Adjustment and is (are) unjustified or is (are) greater than 10%.

rent increase.

(c) Ireceived a rent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment
% Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI AdJustment and the available banked

Rev. 7/31/17

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

000109




x (d) No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice of increase(s) | am
contesting. (Only for increases noticed after July 26, 2000.)

X (e) The property owner did not give me the required form “Notice of the Rent Adjustment Program” at least
6 months before the effective date of the rent increase(s).

(f) The rent increase notice(s) was (were) not given to me in compliance with State law.

(g) The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-month period.

(h) There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, or there are serious problems
_with the conditions in the unit because the owner failed to do requested repair and maintenance. (Complete
Section III on following page)

(i) The owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I received previously or is charging me for
services originally paid by the owner. (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing services is considered an
increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent adjustment based on a decrease in housing services.)
(Complete Section 111 on following page)

(j) My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period for a Capital Improvement had expired.

(k) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. (The 5-year period
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1, 2014).

x

(1) I wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the exemptlon was based on
fraud or mistake. (OMC 8.22, Article I)

(m) The owner did not give me a summary of the Justlﬁcatlon(s) for the increase despite my written request.

(n) The rent was raised illegally after the unit was vacated as set forth under OMC 8.22.080.

II. RENTAL HISTORY: (You must complete this s_ection)

Date you moved into the Unit: NOV. l"‘ ] LU‘ !‘! Initial Rent: $§ 2,600 /month

When did the owner first provide you with the RAP NOTICE, a written NOTICE TO TENANTS of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program? Date: _ Never . Ifnever provided, enter “Never.”

Is your rent subsidized or controlled by any government agency, including HUD (Section 8)? Yes

List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backwards. If
you need additional space, please attach another sheet. If you never received the RAP Notice you can
contest all past increases. You must check “Yes” next to each increase that you are challenging.

Date you | Date increase Monthly rent increase 1 Are you Contesting Did You Receive a
received the goes into effect : this Increase in this Rent Program
notice (mo/day/year) _ _ Petition?* Notice With the
(mo/day/year)- From To : - Notice Of
: Increase?
06/05/18 08/01/18 - | $2,652 $ 4,500 #€Yes _No . LYes %No
1211/16 1117 2600 |3 2652 UYes  {No ~Yes  XNo
$ $ UYes _No ZYes ©No
$ $ JYes No Yes No
$ $ EHYes— = No “Yes TUNo
b b UYes _No ~Yes No
Rev. /3117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. 2

000110




* You have 90 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent increase. (O.M.C.822.090 A 2) If
you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contesting but have received it in the past you
have 120 days to file a petmon (OM.C.8.22 090 A3

Have you ever ﬁled a pet_xtlon for this rental unit?

Q Yes
® No

List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit and all other relevant Petitions:

II. DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUSING SERVICES:

Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful
rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housing service, you must
complete this section. .

. Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? = . - JYes NNo

Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? TYes NNo
Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? OJYes WNNo

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (i) on page 2, please attach a
separate sheet listing a description of the reduced service(s) and problem(s). Be sure to include the
following:

1) alist of the lost housing service(s) or problem(s);

2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the service(s)

3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s); and -

4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost service(s) or problem(s).

Please attach documentary evidence if available.

You have the option to have a City inspector come to your unit and inspect for any code violation. To make an
appointment, call the City of Oakland, Code of Compliance Unit at (510) 238-3381.

IV.VERIFICATION: The tenant must sign:
I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said

in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petition are true copies of the
originals. '

Tenant’s Signature - ' :  Date

{ — -

Rev. 73117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. : 3

000111



V. MEDIATION AVAILABLE: Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an
agreement with the owner. If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a
hearing is held. If the parties do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case will go to a formal hearing
before a different Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer.

You may choose to have the mediation conducted by a Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer or select an

outside mediator. Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If

you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees

charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes will be the responsibility of the parties
requesting the use of their services.

Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree (after both your petition and the owner’s response have
been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adjustment Program will not schedule a
mediation session if the owner does not file a response to the petition. Rent Board Regulation 8.22.100.A.

If you want to schedule your case for mediation, sign below,

I agrepo have my ca.lejlted by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Officer (no charge). -

lt

“Tenant’s Slghature Dat

VL. IMPORTANT INFORMATIO

Time to File

This form must be received at the offices of the Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) within the time limit for
filing a petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance (Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22). RAP staff
cannot grant an extension of time by phone to file your petition. Ways to Submit. Mail to: Oakland Rent
Adjustment Program, P.O. Box 70243, Oakland, CA 94612; In person: Date stamp and deposit in Rent
Adjustment Drop-Box, Housing Assistance Center, Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6® Floor,
Oakland; RAP Online Petitioning System: http:/rapwp.oaklandnet.com/petition-forms/. For more
information, please call: (510) 238-3721.

File Review

Your property owner(s) will be required to file a response to this petition with the Rent Adjustment office
within 35 days of notification by the Rent Adjustment Program. When it is received, the RAP office will send
you a copy of the Property Owner’s Response form. Any attachments or supporting documentation from the
owner will be available for review in the RAP office by appointment. To schedule a file review, please call the
Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721. If you filed your petition at the RAP Online Petitioning
System, the owner may use the online system to submit the owner response and attachments, which would be
accessible there for your review.

ViI. HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?

Printed form provided by the owner
Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program
Legal services or community organization

Signonbusorbus sheiter
Rent Adjustment Program web site
Other (describe):

ey

Rev. 731717 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. _ 4

000112




Chester Martln & Kristen Ponger '

August 3, 2018

Rent Adjustment Program (RAP)
City of Oakland, CA
~ Re: Tenant Petition

" To Whom it May Concern:

Chester “Chase” Martin & Kristen Ponger, “Tenants”
Sherry Zalabak, “Landlord”
‘Rental Property Address: 5553 Kales Ave, Oakland, CA 94618

On June 5th, 2018 Landlord dropped off “Sixty Day Notice of Change in Terms of Tenancy”

[Attachment A] raising tenants’ rent 70% from $2,652/month to $4,500/month as of August 5th,

2018. Landlord’s behavior has been erratic and contradictory over the past 6 months, and no

justification for the rent increase has beén provided. Tenants Martin & Ponger are choosing to

~ proactively contest the increase via this petition on the following grounds.

1. Increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is greater than 10% without RAP approval

2. Tenants have never received notice of RAP

3. Wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the
exemption was based on fraud '

Key Points:

e 5553 Kales Avenue is pubhcly listed as a Smgle Family Residence, but has been rented
as a duplex with two separate units since before current tenants Kristen & Chase signed
alease for front 1-BR unit in 2014 [Attachment B] |

e Tenants entered lease for front unit in November 2014; no RAP notice provided
[Attachment C] ‘

a. Previous tenants were Holly and Steve

e Since 2014, the back unit has had two different sets of tenants paying rent under own

respective leases
‘a. Mike and LeAnne Devol (malden name Fowlkes); $1,100/month
b. Lindsay Byrd and Isabel Avellan [Attachment D]; $1,400/month

e Landlord raised both front & rear units’ respective rents by 2% in January 2017 with no
RAP notice [Attachment E] '

o On March 28, 2018 Landlord states that tenants must vacate the property by July 1,
2018, so that she can make |mprovements to prepare for sale [Attachment F]

e On April 25, 2018, Landlord urged tenants repeatedly to sign agreement to terminate
lease [Attachment G], misrepresenting document as “extension of tenancy”
[Attachment H]

000113



e Tenants do not have access to back unit but it is curr,e'ntly vacant. Landlord has told
tenants as recently as July 2018 that they are restricted from back unit and yard, as -
those are a separate unit. :

e Tenants have always paid rent on time, cared for the property, maintained and performed
minor upgrades and repairs at their own financial expense. Landlord stated in February
2018 that Martin & Ponger were “the best tenants she’s ever had”

Glossary of Attachments:
Tenants are providing the following attached documentation outllnmg our historical rental
agreement and series of events that led to this petition. :
Attachment A: Sixty-Day Notice of Change in Terms of Tenancy (Rent Increase)
Attachment B: E-mail to back unit tenants announcing vacancy in front unit
Attachment C: Martin & Ponger Lease Agreement
. Attachment D: Byrd & Avellan Lease Agreement
Attachment E: Increase in rent for both units without RAP Notlce Jan. 2017
Attachment F: Landlord states tenants must leave property to prepare fors
ale ‘ :
Attachment G: Landlord-Tenant Agreement to Terminate Lease
Attachment H: Urglng tenants to vacate and sign lease termlnatron misrepresenting
document as an “extension”
e Attachment J: Offer of sale- -of-property with Landlord’s descrlptlon of secondary un|t

Background:

In February 2018, landlords of the 5553 Kales Avenue rental property, Sherry and John
Zalabak, invited the tenants, Chase Martin & Kristen Ponger, over to their home in the Berkeley
Hills to discuss the potential purchase of their Kales Ave rental property. The property at 5553
Kales includes two separate units: the 1-BR front house that Kristen & Chase have rented since
November 2014, and the rear standalone studio cottage which the landlord refers to as a
“Golden Duplex”. S

After tenants shared the news with the landlords that they were expecting their first child
in July, both parties left the February meeting in agreement that there was no rush to action
necessary and to reconvene in the Fall of 2018 to discuss further.

On Sunday, March 25th at 9am Landlord Sherry showed up to tenant’s home
unannounced to with a realtor friend named Julie Durkee. Landlord proceeded to barge into the
house for an impromptu appraisal of the front unit, while accosting the tenants with questions on
whether they were interested in buying another house down the street to move-ln before baby
arrives on July 9.

- On March 27th, Tenants (Krlsten & Chase) received an email and physical note from
landlord (Sherry) apologizing for her unannounced visit the previous weekend. E-mail stated
that circumstances had changed in respect to her husband’s heaith, and tenants must vacate

the unit by July 1, 2018 [Attachment F] in order to prepare the property for sale. Alternatively,
landlord gave the tenants 30 days to make an offer to purchase the property Landlord stated
that tenants must make-an-offer or move out by July 1st. '

000114



On March 28th, Tenants Krlsten & Chase replled to Landlord s email confirming interest
in purchasmg the property, but could not make. an offer without the landlord first providing an
asking price. Tenants also requested that landlord would recons:der the July 1st vacancy
timeline since their baby was due that week.

On March 29th, Landlord dropped off a handwritten note [Attachment J] offering the
property “as is” for $1.3M through a private sale. At this point tenants took it upon themselves to
contact a real estate agent to conduct a comparable evaluation of the property who also referred
tenants to a lawyer, Jean Shrem.

On April 25th, Landlord beglns to repeatedly urge tenants to sign a “Landlord- Tenant
Agreement to Terminate Lease” document [Attachment G] without cause. Landlord
misrepresents this as an “extension” [Attachment H] of lease and her offer of sale.

On May 25th, Tenants email Landlord with a purchase offer while giving notice of their
refusal to sign “Termination of Lease” document. ' :

On June 5th, 2018 Landlord shows up unannounced to drop off “Sixty Day Notice of
- Change in Terms of Tenancy” [Attachment A}, raising tenants rent 70%, from $2,652 to $4,500
effective August 5, 2018. Tenant Chase Martin was present at the time and approached
Landlord Sherry to discuss the legality of the notice, but was rebuffed by the landlord. Tenant
verbally informed Landlord of intention to file with Rent Board if issue could not be resolved
amicably in private, but as of August 1st no reply received from Landlord.

000115



'OF CHANGE IN TERMS OF TENANC
[Civil Code Section 827]

TO: CHASE MARTIN, KRISTEN PONGER,

and all other persons claiming a right to possession of the premises described below

PREMISES 5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618 .
(hereinafter the “Subject Premises.”)

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that 60 days following service of this Notice on you, the

terms of your tenancy for the Subject Premises will be changed, pursuant to California Civil Code
Section 827, as follows:

This new monthly rent represents the fair market rental value of the premises. Your new monthly
rent shall be due and payable as of August §, 2018.

Please continue to make your monthly rent payments to your Landlord accdrding to the terms of
your lease agreement. '

QZZ(%O >

Zalabak, Landlord

’.

000116




e i

/

4/ ;GA(TLV(_{— (J\age_,
| Jh«\— NoT SQURE. /¢ ‘/M/k) 7@7’ \——(/K’\r——v E - PU €

o Ogﬂdmﬁ é\a/uz_,, oh Ll ez _

I'm sorry if | created any upset on Saturday as the timing of our ongoing discussions was
intended to be leisurely.

We always planned to give you as much time as you needed to evaluate buymg Kales. Recent
gvents have changed our time Ilne

HiKristen and Cha

John 8 health is forcing us to make some unintended and difticuit choices. | know that both of |
our lives are in a period of drastic change, both good and bad (just like real life). We would love
for you to have the house. Just knowing that folks we like are there is comforting to me.

The upsetting reality is that As you -
can imagine | am emotionally attached to Kales and the neighborhood, as | know you are,
which is why | thought you might want to see the other Kales house. | was there to verify
comps, as a comp on the same stteet is the ideal comp. Julie Durkee contacted me late Friday
night when she found about comp. But in retrospect | realize that my inviting you guys may
have been upsstting and | apologize. v

Let's see if we can work something out among us. Please get back to me within 30 days with an
offer or let me know if you are not going to pursue one by then' April 27th, 2018.

| am trying to gnve you as much Iead time as possible: but need to Iet you know that |
oty by July 1, -

Please feel free to call me or e-mail me anyﬁmé with your questions.

- Fondly, Sherry. Zalabak

000117



and

Landlord: g/*g KK \/ 71‘:[-!\’73 A -

[N ” . N qé
Tenant Clie 2R CHAsE “ WV \artin) ~ A 2 L 2o( i
enant; 5
: . .
- agree thac the fease they entered into for the time period of

2 205 for premisesst 5552 Kires /q/z

‘°W r pre

pALLPND mu@z,u(k Pho] § - ¢ ZOW
NovemBer | 201¥ f/hm VoT 0n) ey

wiﬂ terminate on

| TW. Op‘ﬁo ;0
Additional conditions gt fafrgtifaian Sikdate: “Ten) AN :{6 06:\)% £
Ip _purchase. Proper T v au

Landlord scgnarure

 SHRR Y ZAkm%A—;q

Print name

Tenant 1’s signature ‘Date
 ¥rint name

enant 2's signature Date

Tint name

mant 3 signature

nename

Landlord-Tenant Agreement to Terminate Lease
wwivnolo.com e




Appeal Attached Page

The ruling for T19-0272 and T19-0325 reads a restitution for decreased housing services valued
at $25,110.00. This amount is uneconomical. That is greater than the cash flow from operations
for the entire year, and would the exceed the budgeted cash flow for the next year. This would
leave the operation of the property at a loss, and it would require a decrease in services for the
other tenants at this property.

Additionally, from time to time units turn over and for an older building the units require
significant capital expenses to completely refurbish the units. No income inhibits the ability of
the property to generate any return on investment and generates no funds to pay to make
necessary repairs and maintenance. Stretching the negative consequences over time as
suggested in the decision only prolongs tha financial impact. Such a decision may force the
decision to shut down the property and cease provxdmg affordable housing units to the market
to stop the negative financial losses. . ~ /

T19-0272 refers to a rent increase that does not abide by local and state laws. This increase,
which was effective April 1, 2019, was rescinded and voided. Case T19-0325 refers to a rent
increase that was effective July 1, 2019. This too was rescinded and voided.

The tenant had been provided an RAP Natice in a previous year, related to case T16-0526. In
addition, the tenant had filed a petition leading to case T1 6-0526, making the tenant aware of
their rights and opportunities to petition any changes in rent and services. This only leaves
services provided to the tenant to be in question..

Conversations and inquiries were made with the tenant; Ms. Jeffers, after the notifications of

- petitions to the rent increase and alleged decrease in services were received. The tenant was
asked if there were any outstanding items that needed repair or maintenance, and the tenant
had clearly informed the management company that there were no items remaining. At the time,
a contractor was painting the cabinets per the ten_aht’s, request. This does not coincide with what
the tenant is claiming to be the current condition per.the aforementioned cases. The deferred
rent recovery itemizes repairs that have already been made.to the property to the satisfaction of
the tenant. Those rent reductions are punitive because there are no outstanding items
according to the tenant, and therefore no.reason to reduce the rental income further.

The decision is unnecessarily punitive since all the items claimed by the tenant had already
been resolved to the tenant’s satisfaction before the hearing. .

Page 1

000119



CITY OF OAKLAND

DALZIEL BUILDING » 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 « OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034

Housing and Community Development Department : TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program . : FAX (510)238-6181
CA Relay Service 711

Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board (HRRRB)
APPEAL DECISION .
CASE NUMBER: T1 8-0414 & T18-0472, Martin et al. v Zalabak
APPEAL HEARING: September 10, 2020 |
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 5553 Kale Avenue, Oakland, CA

APPEARANCES: - Lisa Giampaoli Tenant Representative
: Alana Grice Conner Owner Representative

Procedural Background

The tenants filed a petition August 3, 2018, contesting a monthly rent increase from
$2,652.00 to $4,000.00 purportedly effective August 1, 2018. The tenant and the owner
representatives appeared at the Hearing on January 27, 2020.

The owner filed a timely response to the petition, claiming that the subject property was
exempt from the Rent Adjustment Program as a single-family residence based on the
Costa-Hawkins Act.

The tenants filed a second petition on November 9, 2018, alleging the claim but
eliminating the claim of no concurrent notice with notice of the rent increase because

- they received a RAP notice on November 4, 2018, with a second notice of rent increase
from $2,652.00 to $4,500.00.

The owner filed an untimely response to the tenant petition on February 15, 2019, again
claiming an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, as a single-family
residence.

The hearing officer denied the tenants’ petition on the grounds that the subject property
was exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance pursuant to Civil Code

§1954.52(a)(3).

Grounds for Appeal

~The tenants appealed the hearing decision on the fowlril?owing grounds:

000120




1. The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations,
or prior decisions of the Board.

2. The decision raises a nev'v' policy issue that has not been decided by the
Board. ‘

3. The decision is not supported by substantial evidence.

Additionally, the tenants contended that (1) they never received the RAP notice
at the inception of their.tenancy or 6 months prior to the rent increase notice, and first
received the RAP notice on November 4, 2018, and the property was rented as a multi-
family property, (2) if an owner can remove an illegal unit from the rental market to
restore the property to exempt status, and raise a tenant’s rent by 70% how does this

foster the fair housing purpose of the RAP?, (3) there is no proof that the back unit was
- occupied when the owner inherited the property. No proof of occupancy was submitted

prior to 2012. The owner claimed she had no knowledge of the legality of the back unit
until the tenants filed a petition. Exhibit H to the T18-0414 petition dated May 25, 2018,
indicates a discussion of the legality of the unit had been raised and has been
discussed with the owner on many occasions. There is no original permit for an office
and the owner’s application to restore the unit to office use is invalid, and the unit is still
a rental unit. ‘

Appeal Decision

The tenant representative argued that the hearing officer relied on the owner’s
unreliable testimony that she removed the illegal rear unit from residential use. The
tenants were forced out and the owner has posted subsequent ads for the property for
rent as a 1+ bedroom including the illegal unit as a “plus” 1

The tenant representative further argued that the hearing officer did not admit
several tenant documents, failed to note there was no permit for the office in the back
unit, and the owner committed fraud when she said she removed the illegal unit from

" residential use.

The owner representative argued that the landlord served two notices,
the first notice was in error and was rescinded. The hearing officer held two hearings to
investigate the former occupants’ claims. There were several questions about the
circumstances of their occupancy and the tenants in the rear unit moved out. A permit
was pulled for electricity in the rear unit. The “plus” can be used as an office and the
tenants are not permitted to introduce new evidence on appeal.

The owner representative also stated that Board cases have held that deference
should be paid to the hearing officer’s findings, and the hearing officer in this case

weighed the credibility of the witnesses and determined the weight of the evidence. The

000121




Rent Board cannot condone illegal conduct. The owner found that the unit was illegal
and removed: it from the rental market.

After arguments and rebuttal made by both parties, Board questions to the

~ parties and Board discussion, Board Chair R. Stone moved to remand to the hearing
officer, with direction to re-issue the hearing decision, considering Da_Vinci Group v.
San Francisco Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Board (1992) 5 Cal.
App.4th 24 and Owens v. City of Oakland Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation
Board (2020) 49 Cal.App.5th 739, with specific consideration of the testimony of the
property as a multi-unit dwelling. R. Auguste seconded.

The Board voted as follows:

Aye: T. Hall, R. Auguste, A. Graham, R. Stone, 8. Devuono-Powell, T.
- Williams, K. Friedman

Nay: None

Abstain: None

The motion was approved by consensus.

Chnnee Franklin Minor
prugram Manager -

rogram
1 ¢ D/Rent Adjustment Prog Y, /70 /747
CHANEE FRANKLIN MINOR . DATE
BOARD DESIGNEE
CITY OF OAKLAND

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND
RELOCATION BOARD

000122




PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Numbers: T18-0414 & T18-0472

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the Residential Rent
Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, California. My business address is
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, S5th Floor, Oakland, California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of Oakland mail
collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, S5th Floor,
Oakland, Callfornla, addressed to:

Documents Included
Appeal Decision

Owner

Sherry Zalabak

402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative :
Alana Grice Conner, Fried & Williams LLP
1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

Tenants:

Chester Martin -

44 Belle Avenue

San Rafael, CA 94901

Kristen Ponger
44 Belle Avenue
San Rafael, CA 94901

Tenant Representative

Lisa Giampaoli, Giampaoli Law
100 Pine Street Suite 1250

San Francisco, CA 94111

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described above would be
deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first class postage
thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and correct.
Executed on November 20, 2020 in Oakland, CA. /

//,/'///,,///ﬁ

Brittni Lothlen
Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000123



1 ' N

CITY OF OAKLAND For date stamp.
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Oakland, CA 94612 HBOEC 12 P 4= 20
(510) 238-3721

LANDLORD PETITION

FOR CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION
(OMC §8.22.030.B)

Please Fill Out This Form Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may result
in your petition being rejected or delayed. Attach to this petition copies of the documents that prove
your claim. Before completing this petition, please read the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, section
8.22.030. A hearing is required in all cases even if uncontested or irrefutable.

Section 1. Basic Information l Jq OOL i) O @,\ \)/U

Your Name | Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone

Sherry Diane Zalabak 402 Vermont Avenue

Day:
Berkeley, CA 94707 &

510-292-8628

Your Representative’s Name Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone
Alana Grice Conner 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor Day:
Fried & Williams LLP Oakland, CA 94612 v

510-625-0100

Property Address Total number of units in bldg
or parcel.
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618 SFR
Type of units (circle Single Family Residence Condominium Apartment or Room
one) SFR)
If an SFR or condominium, can the Wit be sold and
deeded separately from all other units on the property? Yes ' No
Assessor’s Parcel No.  048A-7043-040

Section 2. Tenants. You must attach a list of the names and addresses, with unit numbers, of all tenants
residing in the unit/building you are claiming is exempt. -

Section 3. Claim(s) of Exemption: A Certificate of Exemption may be granted only for dwelling units that
are permanently exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

New Construction: This may apply to individual units. The unit was newly constructed and a
certification of occupancy was issued for it on or after January 1, 1983.

Substantial Rehabilitation: This applies only to entire buildings. An owner must have spent a
minimum of fifty (50) percent of the average basic cost for new construction for a rehabilitation
project. The average basic cost for new construction is determined using tables issued by the Chief
Building Inspector applicable for the time period when the Substantial Rehabilitation was completed.

Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption, rev. 3/21/17

1
000124




Single-Family or Condominium (Costa-Hawkins): Applies to Single Family Reside i
condominiums only. If claiming exemption under the Costa-Hawkins Rentgx‘-{g}gqﬂsplgf, é\c%(fllv "
- §1954.50, et seq.), please answer the following questions on a separate sheet: S Te ik 20

1. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?

2. Did the prior tenant leave after being a notice of rent increase under Civil Code Section 8277

3. Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?

4. Are there any outstanding violations of building, housing, fire, or safety codes in the unit or
building?

5. 1Isthe unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?

6. Did the current tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?

7. If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? If so: 1) from whom? 2) Did you purchase
the entire building?

8. When did the tenant move into the unit?

I (We) petition for exemption on the following grounds (Check alf that apply):

New Construction

Substantial Rehabilitation

X Single Family Residence or Condominitm
(Costa-Hawkins)

Section 4. Verification TFach petitioner must sign this section.

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that
everything I stated and responded in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached
to the petition are correct and complete copies of the originals.

%7 : @Z/‘/‘——/’t_’, December 12, 2018

Owner’§/Signa ure Date
Owner’s Signature Date

Important Information

Burden of Proof The burden of proving and producing evidence for the exemption is on the Owner. A
Certificate of Exemption is a final determination of exemption absent fraud or mistake.

File Review Your tenant(s) will be given the opportunity to file a response to this petition within 35 days of
notification by the Ront Adjustment Program. You will be sent a copy of the tenant’s Response. Copies of
attachments to the Response form will not be sent to you. However, you may review any attachments in the
Rent Program Office. Files arc available for review by appointment only, For an appointment to review a file,
call (510) 238-3721. Please allow six weeks [rom the date of filing for notification processing and expiration
of the tenant’s response time before scheduling a file review.

Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption, rev. 3/21/17 2

000125




REHT AR

E0EC 12 PH 4 20

Section 2. Tenants

Chester “Chase” Martin Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue 5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618 Oakland, CA'94618

Section 3. Claim(s) of Exemption

Single-Family or Condominium (Costa-Hawkins)

. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?
No '

. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section
827)?

No

. Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?

No

. Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit
or building?

No

. Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?

Yes

. Did the current tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?

No
. If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? No
If so: 1) from whom? N/A 2) Did you purchase the entire building? N/A

. When did the tenant move into the unit?

November 24, 2014

000126




11/14/2018 . Search Results - Assessor - Alameda ;‘/’-\!pty

(" ~,
ALAMEDA COUNTY, CA : Skip County Header

acgova@fg ATTACHMENT ;:Nf‘;;é"_z

HEHT ARBITRA i

ONLINE SERVIDES Assessor's Office | Treasurer-Tax Collector | New Query,
PROPERTY ASSESSMENT INFORMATION "QEELEEERLLR g (T IIT8

2018 - 2019 Assessment Information

M Parcel Number: 48A-7043-40

B Assessor's Map: (Map image is not to Map_ Disclaimer

scale) —_——

M Use Code; 1100

W Description :lllr(l:%le family residential homes used as

B Land $152,004.00

® Improvements $354,677.00

B Fixtures : 0

B Household Personal Property 0

# Business Personal Property 0

M Total Taxable Value $506,681.00
Exemptions

B Homeowner - |0

B Other 0

® Total Net Taxable Value $506,681.00

Additional Assessment Information | Property Tax Information

Adobe Acrobat Reader is required to view the maps. Click here to download.

@ Alameda County © 2018 » All Rights Reserved » Legal / Disclaimers  Accessibility,

000127

https:/iwww.acgov.org/MS/prop/index.aspx




\O o] ~ (@) ()] =N W N [y

N N NN N NN N N = e b e e e e e e

pC/EL

- e
/ RECEIVED
CITY OF GAKL AND
RENT ARBITRATION PROGHAN

Alana Grice Conner, SBN 182676 .
Fried & Williams LIP 019 JUL 25 PH 2:53

1901 Harrison Street
Oakland, CA 94612
Phone: (510) 625-0100
Fax: (510) 550-3621
aconner@friedwilliams.com
Attorneys for Petitioner and Owner
Sherry Zalabak
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
CITY OF OAKLAND
SHERRY ZALABAK; CASE NO.: L19-0040
Petitioner/Owner REQUEST FOR HEARING
CONTINUANCE _
V. «
HEARING DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2019
CHESTER “CHASE” MARTIN; TIME: 10:00 A.M.
KRISTEN PONGER; PLACE: 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA,
STE. 5313, OAKLAND, CA 94612
Respondents/Tenants.
Petitioner Sherry Zalabak, owner of 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618, requests a
hearing continuance for Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption filed on December 12,

2018. Petitions T18-0414 and T18-0472 concern the same property and parties. A hearing
decision was issued on May 31, 2019 in those cases and the Hearing Officer ordered a
Certificate of Exemption to be issued once the decision became final. An appeal was filed by
the tenants. A hearing on the appeal has not been set. To conserve administration resources for
Petition L.19-0040, Petitioner requests a continuance of the hearing on the Landlord Petition for
Certificate of Exemption.

Once the hearing decision for T18-0414 and T'18-0472 becomes final, a Certificate of

Exemption will be issued therefore negating the need for a hearing on Petition 1.19-0040 and

1
REQUEST FOR CONTINUANCE 000128




N e T = O S

NN NN N NN N N e e e i e e e e e
> I B e N Y N S =N« - RN B e U T N O N =)

this Petition will be dismissed.

Dated;

( ™ (=

RECEIVED
CITY OF OAKLARD
RENT ARBITRATION FROGRAM

July 25, 2019

By: Alana Grice Connet,
Attorneys for Petitioner and Owner
Sherry Zalabak

2
REQUEST FOR CONTINUANCE

000129




Costa, Robert

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Marena Perez <mperez@friedwilliams.com>
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 1:04 PM

Costa, Robert

Alana Conner

L19-0040, T18-0414 & T180472 - hearings set

[EXTERNAL] This email orlglnated outs1de of the Clty of Oakland. Please do not chck hnks or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and expect the message.

Hello Mr. Costa

We have a landlord petition for certificate of exemption hearing scheduled for February 25, 2020. An
appeal was filed by the tenants for tenant petitions T18-0414 & 7180472 concerning the same
property and parties. The appeal hearing was recently re-scheduled for March 12, 2020.

Will landlord petition L19-0040 hearing also be postponed? Depending on the results of the appeal, a
Certificate of Exemption may be issued therefor negating the need for a hearing on Petition L19-

0040.

Please update us at your earliest.

Thank you,

Marend Perez
Paralegal

Fried
&Williams:

Attornays at Law

1801 Harrison Street, 14" Floor 625 Market Street, 4 Floor
Dakland, CA 94612 San Francisco, CA 94105
Tel 510-625-0100 Tel 415-321-0100
Fax 510-550-3621 Fax 415-762-543%
www, friedwilliams.com

This e-mail message is intended only for named recipients. It contains information that may be
confidential, privileged, attorney work product, or otherwise exempt from disclosure under
applicable law. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. If you
have received this message in error, then be advised that any review, disclosure, use,
dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of this message or its contents is strictly prohibited.
Please notify Fried & Williams LLP immediately if you have received this message in error, and
delete the message. Non-clients please note: any email sent after business hours will not be
viewed or responded to until the next business day. This transmission by itself does not
constitute the formation of an attorney/client refationship. Thank you.

b% Please don't print this e-mail unless you really need to.

000130




lsECEveD
gy ST UF GAKE AN
RENT F‘&f(B”RA‘%‘J;‘f I,";R\I.—.im,{. 3

WIIAUG 15 PH [:2)

CITY OF OAKLAND

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland, CA 94612
»(510) 238-3721

CASE NUMBER L {4~ O04O

TENANT RESPONSE TO
CLAIM OF PERMANENT EXEMPTION

Please Fill Qut This Form Completely.  Failure to provide needed information may result in
Your response being rejected or delayed.
Your Name Complete Address (with Zip Code) | Telephone

Ohesur Mov Fn S,%%AZZM Steeek |20\ HB-FHY)
Liswn Porlger | BRETS) 0 qz. | V1906476

Your Representative's Name Complete Address (with Zip Code) | Telephone

Number of Units on the parcel: &

The unit I rent is: QS a house an apartment a condo
Rental History:

Date you entered into the Rental Agreement for this unit: &O\{ ZQl ':!

Date you moved into this unit: \ l Z-"‘ l IL‘

Are you current on your rent? Y~ Yes No Lawfully Withholding Rent
If you are lawfully withholding rent, attach a written explanation of the circumstances.

Exemption Contested:
For the detailed text of the exemptions, see Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22 and the Rent

Board Regulations on the City of Oakland web site. You can get additional information and copies
of the Ordinance and Regulations from the Rent Program office in person or by phoning (510)
238-3721.

The property owner has the burden of proving the right to exemption for the unit. Explain below
why you believe your landlord’s claim that your unit is exempt is incorrect.

REV.7.12.2019

000131




~

RECEIVED
A L”YUF(KHL AN
RENT ARBITRATIOR FROGHRAM

Please list the date you first received the Notice to Tenants of thelRkRidBtlaDR &M Aldj@stment

Program (RAP Notice):

List all increases your received. Begin with the most recent and work backwards. Attach
most recent rent increase notice. If you need additional space please attach another sheet.

Date Notice Given Date Increase Rent Increased Did you receive a
(Mo/Day/Yr) Effective NOTICE TO
TENANTS with the
From notice of rent increase?
u_ﬂ 12 [Joa] 19 SZ1ST sa,':’oo Yes ¥ No
(12 &lou 18 S Z,bSL [ Suf, <o | Yes No_x.
1zlo\I Lo \_ o[ 1+ $2,600 | $2,S2 Yes No o
j $ $ Yes No
$ $ Yes No
$ $ Yes No
$ $ Yes No
Verification

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that all
statements made in this Response are true and that all of the documents attached hereto are
true copies of the originals.

O 8/157/19

Tenant's Signature Date

VD oo pe <o |14
Tendnt's Qignature d Date ! |
Important Information

This form must be received at the Rent Adjustment Offices by the date and time limits prescribed
by Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22. The offices are located at City of Oakland, Rent
Adjustment Program, Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza Suite 5313, Oakland, CA
94612. The mailing address is PO Box 70243, Oakland, CA 94612-0243. For more information,
please call: 510-238-3721.

You cannot get an extension of time to file your Response by telephone.

File Review
You should have received with this letter a copy of the landlord petition.

Copies of attachments to the petition will not be sent to you. However, you may review these
in the Rent Program office. Files are available for review by appointment ONLY.

For an appointment to review a file call (510) 238-3721.

REV.7.12.2019

000132




CECEIVED / | RECEIVED
-\:xr!?t()cétﬁi,z\{ﬁ;z..m o : CCHY OF GAKLANG
KENT ARBITRATION PROGRAM RENT ARBITRATIOR PROGIAM ,
’ ' Chest N@ng jsten Ropger:
J019AUG 15 PM 1:33 - 30 SIS PR 5T
o o | Apt. A | -

‘Oakland, CA 94612
August 15, 2019
" Rent Adjustment Program (RAP)
City of Oakland, CA

Re: Contesting Landlord Petition for Certificate of EXemptibn

Case Number:
L19-0040

Tenant(s):
- Chester “Chase” Martin

Kristen Ponger

Landlord:
Sherry Zalabak

Rental Property Address: 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618
Tenants Cause for Contesting this Petition:

5553 Kales Avenue has been rented as a multi-unit pfoperty, with two dwelling units with
separate leases since before tenants Kristen and Chase signed a lease for Unit A in 2014.
Therefore, it is not exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

Please refer to RAP cases T14-0414 and T14-0472, Martin et al v. Zalabak., for all tenant's -

submitted appeal information and evidence. These petitions are still open as we, the tenants,

have appealed the decision.

000133




]

v ()

CITY OF OAKLAND For dato samp. i
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM iy ARaITitA A
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 ' o
Oakland, CA 94612 1018 DEC 12 PH 4: 28
(510) 238-3721
. LANDLORD PETITION
FOR CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION
‘ (OMC §8.22.030.B)

Please Fill Out This Form Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may result
in your petition being rejected or delayed. Attach to this petition copies of the documents that prove
your claim. Before completing this petition, please read the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, section
8.22.030. A hearing is required in all cases even if uncontested or irrefutable.

Section 1. Basic Information_ 1 /’q “OO‘L" O @/\‘QJU

Your Name
Sherry Diane Zalabak

“Complete Address (with zip code)

402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Telephone

Day:
510-292-8628

Your Representative’s Name Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone
Alana Grice Conner 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor Day:
Fried & Williams LLP Oakland, CA 94612 5106250100
Property Address Total number of units in bldg
or parcel.
5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618 SFR
Type of units (circle Single F esidence Condominium Apartment or Room
one) SER)
If an SFR or condominium, can the Mrritbe sold and
deeded separately from all other units on the property? Yes ' No
g
Assessor’s Parcel No.  048A-7043-040

Section 2. Tenants. You must attach a list of the names and addresses, with unit numbers, of all tenants
residing in the unit/building you are claiming is exempt.

Section 3. Claim(s) of Exemption: A Certificate of Exemption may be granted only for dwelling units that
are permanently exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

- New Construction: This may apply to individual units. The unit was newly constructed and a
certification of occupancy was issued for it on or after January 1, 1983.

Substantial Rehabilitation: This applies only to entire buildings. An owner must have spent a
minimum of fifty (50) percent of the average basic cost for new construction for a rehabilitation
project. The average basic cost for new construction is determined using tables issued by the Chief
Building Inspector applicable for the time period when the Substantial Rehabilitation was completed.

Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption, rev. 3/21/17 1

000134




e L O !
: i : Applies to Single Fan}lgiljlf h’éé‘fgéﬁé\éé andm«a, A
condominiums only. If claiming exemption under the Costa-Hawkins RentgfjHqusing 90%5:11\/.. S
§1954.50, et seq.), please answer the following questions on a separate sheet: - e

1. Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?

2. Did the prior tenant leave after being a notice of rent increase under Civil Code Section 8277

3. Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?

4. Are there any outstanding violations of building, housing, fire, or safety codes in the unit or
building?

5. Isthe unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold sepazately?

6. Did the current tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?

7. If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? If so: 1) from whom? 2) Did you purchase
the entire building?

8. When did the tenant move into the unit?

I (We) petition for exemption on the following grounds (Check all that apply):

New Construction

Substantial Rehabilitation

X Single Family Residence or Condominium
{Costa-Hawkins)

Section 4. Verification Tach petitioner must sign this section.

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that
everything I stated and responded in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached
to the petition are correct and complete copies of the originals.

) _ December 12, 2018
Date

Owner’s Signature Date

Important Information

Burden of Proof The burden of proving atid producing evidence for the exemption is on the Owner, A
Certificate of Exemption is a final determination of exemption absent ﬁaud or mistake.

Tile Review Your tenant(s) will be given the opportunity to file a response to this petition within 35 days of
notification by the Rent Adjustment Program. You will be sent a copy of the tenant’s Response, Copies of
attachments to the Response form will not be sent to you. However, you may review any attachments in the
Rent Program Office. Files arc available for review by appointment only. For an appointment to review a file,
call (510) 238-3721, Please allow six weeks from the date of filing for notification processing and expiration
of the tenant’s response time before scheduling a file review.

Landlord Petition for Cerlificate of Exemption, rev, 3/21/17 2

000135




N VR

( . (
CITY or OAKLAND

DALZIEL BUILDING « 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 « OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034

Housing and Community Development Department - TEL (510) 238-3721

Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510)238-6181
CA Relay Service 711

Re: Case#L19-0040 Coronavirus (COVID-19) - Rescheduling of June 2020 Hearings
To the Parties:

The Rent Adjustment Program will resume hearings on June 1, 2020. However, due
to the continuation of the shelter-in-place orders imposed by the County and the
Governor, Hearings that are scheduled June 1, 2020 to June 30, 2020, will not be in-
person hearings, but will be conducted remotely.

There is an appeal pending that may affect your case. Therefore, your case will be
postponed.

An Amended Notice of Hearing with your new hearing date will be sent to you as
soon as the Board hears and makes a decision on the appeal. We apologize for any
inconvenience but believe this is the most responsible action at this time.

Thank you for your understanding. If you have any questions you may contact me at
RCosta@OaklandCA.gov email address.

Sincerely,
Aert F Costa B
City of Oakland

Housing and Community Development Department
Rent Adjustment Program

000136




- PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number 1.19-0040

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5 Floor, Oakland,
California 94612.

Today, I served the attached HEARING POSTPONEMENT NOTICE by placi'ng..a true copy
of it in a sealed envelope in City of Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below
date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5t Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Owner: _
Sherry Diane Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative:

Alana Grice Conner.

Fried & Williams LLP

1901 Harrison Street, 14™ Floor
QOakland, CA 94612 '

Tenants:

Kristen Ponger & Chester Martin
533 22" Street, Apt. #A
Oakland, CA 94612

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of
business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true
and correct. Executed on May 26, 2020 in Oakland, California.

. e
Robert F. Costa
Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000137



CITY OF QAKLAND

Housing and Community Development Department TEL (510) 238-3721

Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510)238-6181
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 TDD (510) 238-3254

Oakland, CA 94612

NOTICE OF SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE AND HEARING

File Name: Zalabak v Tenants
Property Address: 5553 Kales Avenue Oakland, CA 94618
Case Number: L19-0040

The Hearing Officer will conduct a Settlement Conference to attempt to resolve this matter. The
Settlement Conference in your case will begin on:

Date: June 8, 2020
Time: 10:00AM
Place: 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Ste. #5313, Oakland, CA 94612

If the Settlement Conference is not successful, the Hearing will begin immediately after the
Settlement Conference.

Order to Produce Evidence

+All proposed tangible evidence, including but not limited to documents and pictures, must be
submitted to the Rent Adjustment Program not less than seven (7) days prior to the Hearing. Black
out all sensitive information on the documents you submit, like bank or credit card account numbers
and Social Security numbers. Proposed evidence presented later may be excluded from
consideration. The Hearing Officer can also use the official records of the City of Oakland and
Alameda County Tax Assessor as evidence if provided by the parties for consideration.

Request to Change Date

A request for a change in the date or time of Settlement Conference and Hearing ("continuance")
must be made on a form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The party requesting the
continuance must try to get an agreement for alternate dates with the opposing parties. If an -
agreement cannot be reached, check the appropriate box on the form. A continuance will be granted
only for good cause.

Hearing Record

The Rent Adjustment Program makes an audio recording of the Hearing. Either party may bring a
court reporter to record the hearing at their own expense. The Settlement Conference is not
recorded. Ifthe settlement is reached, the Hearing Officer will draft a Settlement Agreement to be

signed by the parties.

Inspections
During the Hearing, the Hearing Officer may decide to conduct an inspection of the subject unit(s).

The inspection may be conducted on the same day as the Hearing or scheduled for a later date
selected by the Hearing Officer or mutually agreed upon by the parties present at the Hearing. No
testimony will be taken at the inspection.

000138




Representatives
Any party to a Hearing may designate a representative in writing prior to the Settlement Conference
or on the record at the Hearing.

Interpreter ,
The Hearing must be conducted in English. The Rent Adjustment Program will provide interpreters

on request providing the request is made at least 7 days in advance of the scheduled Hearing. Any
party may also bring a person to the Hearing to interpret for them. The interpreter will be required
to take an oath that they are fluent in both English and the relevant foreign language and they will

fully and to the best of their ability interpret the proceedings.

Failure to Appear for Hearing

If the petitioner fails to appear at the Hearing as scheduled, the Hearing Officer may either conduct
the Hearing and render a decision without the petitioner’s participation, or dismiss the petition. If
the respondent fails to appear at the Hearing as scheduled, the Hearing Officer may either issue an
administrative decision without a Hearing, or conduct the Hearing and render a decision without the
respondent’s participation.

Accessibility

This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request disability-related accommodations or to
request an ASL, please email sshannon@oaklandnet.com or call (510) 238-3715 or California relay
service at 711 at least five working days before the meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented
products to this meeting as a courtesy to attendees with chemical sensitivities.

Service Animals/Emotional Support Animals
The City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program is committed to providing full access to qualified
persons with disabilities who use service animals or emotional support animals.

If your service animal lacks visual evidence that it is a service animal (presence of an apparel item,
apparatus, etc.), then please be prepared to reasonably establish that the animal does, in fact,
perform a function or task that you cannot otherwise perform.

If you will be accompanied by an emotional support animal, then you must provide documentation
on letterhead from a licensed mental health professional, not more than one year old, stating that
you have a mental health-related disability, that having the animal accompany you is necessary to
your mental health or treatment, and that you are under his or her professional care.

Service animals and emotional support animals must be trained to behave properly in public. An

animal that behaves in an unreasonably disruptive or aggressive manner (barks, growls, bites,
jumps, urinates or defecates, etc.) will be removed.

000139




——
S

PROOF OF SERVICE,
Case Number 1.19-0040

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland,
California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa
Plaza, Suite 5313, Sth Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Notice of Settlement Conference and Hearing

Owner

Sherry Diane Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alana Grice Conner, Fried & Williams LLP
1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

Tenant(s)

Chester Martin Kristen Ponger

533 22nd Street Apt. # A - 533 22nd Street Apt. # A
Oakland, CA 94612 Oakland, CA 94612
Chester Martin Kristen Ponger

5553 Kales Avenue 5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618 Oakland, CA 94618

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of
business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true
and correct. Executed on February 21, 2020 in Oakland, CA.

Raveh-8mith

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000140




CITY OF OAKLAND

Housing and Community Development Department ~ TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510) 238-6181
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 TDD (510) 238-3254

Oakland, CA 94612-2034

AMENDED NOTICE OF HEARING

File Name: . Zalabak v Tenants

Property Address: 5553 Kales Avenue Oakland, CA 94618

Case Number: L19-0040

The Hearing in your case will begin:

Date: February 25, 2020

Time: 10:00AM

Place: 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Ste. #5313 QOakland, CA 94612

The Hearing is public and will continue from day to day until completed.

Order to Produce Evidence

All proposed tangible evidence, including but not limited to documents and pictures, must be
submitted to the Rent Adjustment Program not less than seven (7) days prior to the Hearing. Black
out all sensitive information on the documents you submit, like bank or credit card account
numbers and Social Security numbers. Proposed evidence presented later may be excluded from
consideration. The Hearing Officer can also use the official records of the City of Oakland and
Alameda County Tax Assessor as evidence if provided by the parties for consideration.

Request to Change Date

A request for a change in the date or time of Hearing ("continuance™") must be made on a form
provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The party requesting the continuance must try to get an
agreement for alternate dates with the opposing parties. If an agreement cannot be reached, check
the appropriate box on the Request. A change will be granted only for good cause. A second
request for a change of date will be granted only for exceptional circumstances.

Hearing Record
The Rent Adjustment Program makes an audio recording of the Hearing. Either party may brlng a
court reporter to record the proceedings at their own expense.

_ Inspections
During the Hearing, the Hearing Officer may decide to conduct an inspection of the subject unit(s).

. The inspection may be conducted on the same day as the Hearing or scheduled for a later date
selected by the Hearing Officer and mutually agreed upon by the parties present at the Hearing.
The inspection will be recorded but no testimony will be taken.

000141




Representatives ,
Any party to a Hearing may designate a representative in writing or on the record at the Hearing.

Interpreter
The Hearing must be conducted in English. Any party may bring a person to the Hearing to

interpret for them. The interpreter will be required to take an oath that they are fluent in both
English and the relevant foreign language and they will fully and to the best of their ability
translate the proceedings. The Rent Adjustment Program will provide interpreters on request
providing the request is made at least 7 days in advance of the scheduled Hearing.

Failure to Appear for Hearing

If the petitioner fails to appear at the Hearing as scheduled, the Hearing Officer may either conduct
the Hearing and render a decision without the petitioner’s participation, or dismiss the petition. If
the respondent fails to appear at the Hearing as scheduled, the Hearing Officer may either issue an
administrative decision without a Hearing, or conduct the Hearing and render a decision without
the respondent’s participation.

Accessibility

This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request disability-related accommodations or to
request an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or Spanish interpreter, please email
sshannon(@oaklandnet.com or call (510) 238-3715 or California relay service at 711 at least five
working days before the meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting as
a courtesy to attendees with chemical sensitivities.

Esta reunion es accesible para sillas de ruedas. Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con
discapacidades, o para pedir un intérprete de en espafiol, Cantones, Mandarin o de lenguaje de
sefias (ASL) por favor envié un correo electronico a sshannon@oaklandnet.com o llame al (510)
238-3715 o 711 por lo menos cinco dias habiles antes de la reunion. Se le pide de favor que no use
perfumes a esta reunidn como cortesia para los que tienen sensibilidad a los productos quimicos.
Gracias.

SR EAWmEHARE, TEBEHBERE, FiE, EEIEJEEE, BrE B EERT, BT
BT 2B T/EREED sshannon@oaklandnet.com BREXE (510) 238-3715 B¥, 711 California
relay service, FMREREREMm - SIME VAEHCEM D B,

Service Animals/Emotional Support Animals
The City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program is committed to providing full access to qualified
persons with disabilities who use service animals or emotional support animals.

If your service animal lacks visual evidence that it is a service animal (presence of an apparel item,
apparatus, etc.), then please be prepared to reasonably establish that the animal does, in fact,
perform a function or task that you cannot otherwise perform. :

If you will be accompanied by an emotional support animal, then you must provide documentation

000142




. a

on letterhead from a licensed mental health professional, not more than one year old, stating that
you have a mental health-related disability, that having the animal accompany you is necessary to
your mental health or treatment, and that you are under his or her professional care.

Service animals and emotional support animals must be trained to behave propetly in public. An

animal that behaves in an unreasonably disruptive or aggressive manner (barks, growls bites,
jumps, urinates or defecates, etc.) will be removed.

000143




PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number 1.19-0040

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland,
California 94612

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa
Plaza, Suite 5313, Sth Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Amended Notice of Hearing

Owner

Sherry Diane Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
‘Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative
“Alana Grice Conner, Fried & Williams LLP
1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

Tenant(s)
Chester Martin Kristen Ponger
533 22nd Street Apt. # A 533 22nd Street Apt. # A
Oakland, CA 94612 Oakland, CA 94612
Chester Martin Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue 5553 Kales Avenue

Oakland, CA 94618 Oakland, CA 94618

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would-be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of
business.

- I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Cahforma that the above is true
and correct Executed on February 04, 2020 in Oakland, CA. ~

| Raven S\rhrth/‘

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000144




CITY OF OAKLAND

Housing and Community Development Department TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program ‘ FAX (510) 238-6181
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 TDD (510) 238-3254

Oakland, CA 94612

AMENDED NOTICE OF SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE AND HEARING

File Name: Zalabak v Tenants
Property Address: 5553 Kales Avenue Oakland, CA 94618
Case Number: L19-0040

The Hearing Officer will conduct a Settlement Conference to attempt to resolve this matter The
Settlement Conference in your case will begin on:

Date: February 24, 2020
Time: 10:00AM
Place: 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Ste. #5313, Oakland, CA 94612

If the Settlement Conference is not successful, the Hearing will begin immediately after the
Settlement Conference.

Order to Produce Evidence

All proposed tangible evidence, including but not limited to documents and pictures, must be
submitted to the Rent Adjustment Program not less than seven (7) days prior to the Hearing. Black
out all sensitive information on the documents you submit, like bank or credit card account numbers
and Social Security numbers. Proposed evidence presented later may be excluded from
consideration. The Hearing Officer can also use the official records of the City of Oakland and
Alameda County Tax Assessor as evidence if provided by the parties for consideration.

Request to Change Date

A request for a change in the date or time of Settlement Conference and Hearing ("continuance")
must be made on a form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The party requesting the
continuance must try to get an agreement for alternate dates with the opposing parties. If an
agreement cannot be reached, check the appropriate box on the form. A continuance will be granted
only for good cause.

Hearing Record

The Rent Adjustment Program makes an audio recording of the Hearing. Either party may bring a
court reporter to record the hearing at their own expense. The Settlement Conference is not
recorded. If the settlement is reached, the Hearing Officer will draft a Settlement Agreement to be
signed by the parties.

Inspections
During the Hearing, the Hearing Officer may decide to conduct an inspection of the subject unit(s).

The inspection may be conducted on the same day as the Hearing or scheduled for a later date
selected by the Hearing Officer or mutually agreed upon by the parties present at the Hearing. No
testimony will be taken at the inspection.

000145




e
N\
—ri,

Representatives
Any party to a Hearing may designate a representative in writing prior to the Settlement Conference
or on the record at the Hearing.

Interpreter
The Hearing must be conducted in English. The Rent Adjustment Program will provide interpreters

on request providing the request is made at least 7 days in advance of the scheduled Hearing. Any
party may also bring a person to the Hearing to interpret for them. The interpreter will be required
to take an oath that they are fluent in both English and the relevant foreign language and they will

fully and to the best of their ability interpret the proceedings.

Failure to Appear for Hearing

If the petitioner fails to appear at the Hearing as scheduled, the Hearing Officer may either conduct
the Hearing and render a decision without the petitioner’s participation, or dismiss the petition. If
the respondent fails to appear at the Hearing as scheduled, the Hearing Officer may either issue an
administrative decision without a Hearing, or conduct the Hearing and render a decision without the
respondent’s participation.

Accessibility

This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request disability-related accommodations or to
request an ASL, please email sshannon@oaklandnet.com or call (510) 238-3715 or California relay
service at 711 at least five working days before the meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented
products to this meeting as a courtesy to attendees with chemical sensitivities.

Service Animals/Emotional Support Animals
The City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program is committed to providing full access to qualified
persons with disabilities who use service animals or emotional support animals.

If your service animal lacks visual evidence that it is a service animal (presence of an apparel item,
apparatus, etc.), then please be prepared to reasonably establish that the animal does, in fact,
perform a function or task that you cannot otherwise perform.

If you will be accompanied by an emotional support animal, then you must provide documentation
on letterhead from a licensed mental health professional, not more than one year old, stating that
you have a mental health-related disability, that having the animal accompany you is necessary to
your mental health or treatment, and that you are under his or her professional care.

Service animals and emotional support animals must be trained to behave properly in public. An

animal that behaves in an unreasonably disruptive or aggressive manner (barks, growls, bites,
jumps, urinates or defecates, etc.) will be removed.

000146




;" PROOF OF SERVICE N
‘ Case Number L19-0040 ‘

;

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland,
California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa
Plaza, Suite 5313, Sth Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: '

Documents Included
Amended Notice of Settlement Conference and Hearing

Owner

Sherry Diane Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alana Grice Conner, Fried & Williams LLP
1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

Tenant(s)

Chester Martin

533 22nd Street Apt. # A
Oakland, CA 94612

Chester Martin
5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618

Kristen Ponger
533 22nd Street Apt. # A
Oakland, CA 94612

Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of
business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that-the above is true
and correct. Executed on October 04, 2019 in Oakland, CA. (
.
Raven Smith U \

Oakland Rent Adjustment Progrﬁrb 0147




PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number L.19-0040

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5t Floor, Oakland,
California 94612. '

'Today, I served the attached TENANT RESPONSE by placing a true copy of it in a sealed
envelope in City of Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250
Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5™ Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Sherry Diane Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Alana Grice Conner

Fried & Williams LLP

1901 Harrison Street, 14 Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of
business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true
and correct. Executed on August 16, 2019 in Oakland, California.

s

Roberto F. Costa
Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000148




CITY OF OAKLAND

Housing and Community Development Department ' TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510) 238-6181
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 TDD (510) 238-3254

Oakland, CA 94612-2034

NOTICE OF HEARING

File Name: Zalabak v Tenants

Property Address: 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618

Case Number: L19-0040

The Hearing in your case will begin:

Date: October 21, 2019

Time: 10:00AM

Place: 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Ste. #5313, Qakland, CA 94612

The Hearing is public and will continue from day to day until completed.

Order to Produce Evidence ,

All proposed tangible evidence, including but not limited to documents and pictures, must be
submitted to the Rent Adjustment Program not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the Hearing.
Black out all sensitive information on the documents you submit, like bank or credit card account
numbers and Social Security numbers. Proposed evidence presented later may be excluded from
consideration. The Hearing Officer can also use the official records of the City of Oakland and
Alameda County Tax Assessor as evidence if provided by the parties for consideration.

Request to Change Date

A request for a change in the date or time of Hearing ("continuance") must be made on a form
provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The party requesting the continuance must try to get an
- agreement for alternate dates with the opposing parties. If an agreement cannot be reached, check
the appropriate box on the Request. A change will be granted only for good cause. A second
request for a change of date will be granted only for exceptional circumstances.

Hearing Record
The Rent Adjustment Program makes an audio recording of the Hearing. Either party may bring a
court reporter to record the proceedings at their own expense.

Inspections
During the Hearing, the Hearing Officer may decide to conduct an inspection of the subject unit(s).

The inspection may be conducted on the same day as the Hearing or scheduled for a later date
selected by the Hearing Officer and mutually agreed upon by the parties present at the Hearing.
The inspection will be recorded but no testimony will be taken.

000149




Representatives
Any party to a Hearing may designate a representative in writing or on the record at the Hearing.

Interpreter
The Hearing must be conducted in English. Any party may bring a person to the Hearing to

interpret for them. The interpreter will be required to take an oath that they are fluent in both
English and the relevant foreign language and they will fully and to the best of their ability
translate the proceedings. The Rent Adjustment Program will provide interpreters on request
providing the request is made at least 7 days in advance of the scheduled Hearing.

Failure to Appear for Hearing

If the petitioner fails to appear at the Hearing as scheduled, the Hearing Officer may either conduct
the Hearing and render a decision without the petitioner’s participation, or dismiss the petition. If
the respondent fails to appear at the Hearing as scheduled, the Hearing Officer may either issue an
administrative decision without a Hearing, or conduct the Hearing and render a decision without
the respondent’s participation.

Accessibility
This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request disability-related accommodatlons or to

request an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or Spanish interpreter, please email
sshannon@oaklandnet.com or call (510) 238-3715 or California relay service at 711 at least five
working days before the meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting as
a courtesy to attendees with chemical sensitivities.

Esta reunion es accesible para sillas de ruedas. Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con
discapacidades, o para pedir un intérprete de en espafiol, Cantones, Mandarin o de lenguaje de
sefias (ASL) por favor envié un correo electronico a sshannon@oaklandnet.com o llame al (510)
238-3715 o0 711 por lo menos cinco dias habiles antes de la reunion. Se le pide de favor que no use
perfumes a esta reunién como cortesia para los que tienen sensibilidad a los productos quimicos.
Gracias.

ERBHESHAEARNE, SEREWHBIESE, FiE, HGILTE, BENBENERYE, BE
EEATAET/EXEER sshannon@oaklandnet.com B EE (510) 238-3715 B}, 711 California

relay service, FEMREREFEMR - SMETREEHEE D R,

Service Animals/Emotional Support Animals
The City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program is committed to providing full access to qualified
persons with disabilities who use service animals or emotional support animals.

If your service animal lacks visual evidence that it is a service animal (presence of an apparel item,
apparatus, etc.), then please be prepared to reasonably establish that the animal does, in fact,
perform a function or task that you cannot otherwise perform.

If you will be accompanied by an emotional support animal, then you must provide documentation

000150




on letterhead from a licensed mental health professional, not more than one year old, stating that
you have a mental health-related disability, that having the animal accompany you is necessary to
your mental health or treatment, and that you are under his or her professional care..

Service animals and emotional support animals must be trained to behave properly in public. An

animal that behaves in an unreasonably disruptive or aggressive manner (barks, growls, bites,
jumps, urinates or defecates, etc.) will be removed.

000151




o~
N

.
“

CITY OF OAKLAND

Housing and Community Development Department TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510) 238-6181
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 TDD (510) 238-3254

Oakland, CA 94612-2034

July 17, 2019

Tenant

Chester Martin
5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618

Tenant

Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618

The Rent Adjustment Program received the petition(s) attached to this letter on December 12,
2018. Your Landlord(s) is/are petitioning for a Certificate of Exemption from the Rent Adjustment
Ordinance (Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22). For details please see the attached copy of the
petition.

Your case has been assigned Case No. L19-0040
The case title and file name is Zalabak v Tenants
The Analyst assigned to your case is Robert Costa at (510) 238-2079

IF YOU WANT TO CONTEST THIS PETITION, YOU MUST FILE A WRITTEN
RESPONSE TO THE ATTACHED LANDLORD PETITION FOR CERTIFICATE OF
EXEMPTION WITHIN THIRTY-FIVE (35) DAYS FROM THE DATE OF MAILING OF
THIS NOTICE OR A DECISION MAY BE MADE AGAINST YOU. THE RESPONSE
MUST BE FILED ON THE PROPER FORM AND MUST BE RECEIVED AT THE CITY
OF OAKLAND'S RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM OFFICE ON OR BEFORE THE
DUE DATE. '

EXEMPTION

The landlord may prove an exemption from the application of the Oakland Rent Adjustment
Ordinance. The exemptions are found in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance (O.M.C. Section
7.22.030). Permanent exemptions under the Rent Adjustment Ordinance include units constructed
after January 1, 1983 (new construction) and single family houses exempt under the Costa

000152




Hawkins Rental Housing Act. See the Ordinance at the Rent Adjustment Program website for a
complete list of exemptions and details:

Additional Requirements

In order to contest this petition a tenant must:

1. Be current on his/her rent; and
2. File a timely response to the Rent Adjustment Program on the Tenant Response form.

If you wish to review all documents filed, you are entitled to review the file at the Rent Adjustment
Program Office. Copies of attachments to the petition will not be sent to you. However, you
may review these in the Rent Program office. Files are available for review by appeintment
ONLY. For an appointment to review a file call (510) 238-3721.

If you have questions not answered by this notice, please contact the Residential Rent Adjustment
Office at (510) 238-3721 between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.

000153




<' N ("' ~\
PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number L19-0040

| am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. | am not a party to the-
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. | am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakiand,
California 94612.

Today, | served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza,
Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included

Tenant Notification of Property Owner Petition for Certificate of Exemption Filed
Copy of Owner Petition for Certificate of Exemption

Tenant Response Form

Notice of Hearing

Tenant

Chester Martin
5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618

Tenant

Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue
Oakland, CA 94618

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence
for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described above
would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first
class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and
correct. Executed on July 17, 2019 in Oakland, CA.

Maxine Visaya
Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000154




CITY OF OAKLAND

Housing and Community Development Department
Rent Adjustment Program

250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Oakland, CA 94612-2034

July 17, 2019

Owner

Sherry Diane Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alana Grice Conner

Fried & Williams LLP

1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

Dear Petitioner:

The Rent Adjustment Program has received a petition filed by you.

Your case has been assigned Case No. L19-0040.
The case title and file name is Zalabak v Tenants.
The Analyst assigned to your case is Robert Costa at (510) 238-2079.

TEL (510) 238-3721
FAX (510) 238-6181
TDD (510) 238-3254

The tenants who are affected by the Certificate of Exemption will be notified of your petition and
will have the opportunity to submit a written response. If any responses are filed, they will be
mailed to you. However, we only send the actual response and not any accompanying

documentation,

If you wish to review all documents filed, you are entitled to review the file at the Rent Adjustment

Program Office. Files are available for review by appointment ONLY. For an appointment to

review a file call (510) 238-3721.

If you have questions or need additional information, please contact the Rent Adjustment Program

at (510) 238-3721.

000155




- PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number L19-0040

| am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. | am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. | am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland,
California 94612.

Today, | served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza,
Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Landlord Notification Letter of Request for Cert|f|cate of Exemptlon Petition Filed
Notice of Hearing

Owner

Sherry Diane Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alana Grice Conner

Fried & Williams LLP

1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

| am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence
for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described above
would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first
class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and
correct. Executed on July 17, 2019 in Oakiand, CA.

@\ Y

Maxine Visaya
Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000156




. ACTIVITY LOG o

HCD - Rent Adjustment Program

DATE

N\ ACTIVITY INITIAL
57019 | Rt O |
21419 | Gee NonceD W ,
|oalie | Moited Avanded Norve of Sek\onest Lonlece arel |
 Neanrs v ol @ortins w{Pos (W
2o Wail 2 Anarcud e o i@mm 2l (CM.P@ w|_pos LR
o120 \MMMW"WMVQS}Q%ﬂMW%4UY%Wymeaﬂd4%W%%fw ‘;121?

all \ZBMQA v«/] o5

000157




DALZIEL BUILDING -« 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 « OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034

Housing and Com'munity Development Department TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program ‘ FAX (510)238-6181

CA Relay Service 711

HEARING DECISION AFTER REMAND

CASE NUMBERS: T18-0414, Martin et al v. Zalabak
T18-0472, Martin et al v. Zalabak
L19-0040, Zalabak v. Tenants

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA

DATES OF HEARING: March 5, 2019, and April 22, 2019

DATE OF DECISION: April 30, 2019

DATE OF APPEAL September 10, 2020
HEARING: v

DATE OF APPEAL November 20, 2020
DECISION:

DATE OF REMAND March 4, 2021
DECISION:

PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

The tenants, Chester Martin and Kristen Ponger, filed two separate petitions contesting
arent increase effective August 1, 2018 (T18-0414) and a rent increase effective
December 15, 2018 (T18-0472).t Although the owner withdrew the rent increase
effective August 1, 2018, the tenants declined to withdraw their initial petition. The
petitions were consolidated and a hearing was conducted by Rent Adjustment Program
Hearing Officer Elan Lambert on March 5, 2019, and Apr11 22, 2019. On April 30, 2019,
the Hearing Officer issued a decision denying the tenants’ petitions on the basis that the
unit was a single family residence exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance
pursuant to California Civil Code Section 1954.52(a)(3).

The tenants then filed an appeal, which was heard by the Housing, Residential Rent and
Relocation Board (HRRRB) on September 10, 2020. The Board remanded the case to
the Hearing Officer “with direction to re-issue the hearing decision, considering Da

! Although the petition filed by the tenants in T18-0472 actually provides an effective date of January 3, 2019, the
response filed by the owner provides an effective date of December 15, 2018.

p

000158




Vinci Group v. San Francisco Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Board
(1992) 5 Cal.App.4th 24 and Owens v. City of Oakland Housing, Residential Rent and
Relocation Board (2020) 49 Cal.App.5tt 739, with specific consideration of the
testimony of the property as a multi-unit dwelling.”

On December 12, 2018, the owner filed a Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption
(L19-0040) regarding the subject property. The case was originally set for hearing on
October 21, 2019, but the hearing was continued several times. Case L19-0040 was
ultimately combined with Cases T18-0414 and T18-0472 because they raise the same
issues. The combined cases were set for hearing on January 25, 2021.

On January 11, 2021, an Order Reassigning Hearing Officer and Canceling Hearing
was issued, reassigning the joint cases to the undersigned Hearing Officer and stating
that the decision would be issued “based on the written evidence and testimony
previously provided, and consideration of the California Court of Appeal decisions cited
by the Oakland HRRRB.”

ISSUES

1. Is'the unit exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because it is a single family
residence or condominium that can be sold separately?

2. Is the unit exempt from the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance because it is a s1ngle
family residence or condominium that can be sold separately?

3. Is the unit exempt from the Rent Program Service fee?

EVIDENCE

As the original Hearing Decision explained, the tenants moved into the unit in
November 2014. At the inception of their tenancy, it was a multi-unit property. The
front unit and rear unit were rented out to separate tenants, with separate leases.
Tenants Martin and Ponger lived in the front unit. On the last day of February 2018, the
tenants in the rear unit moved out voluntarily.

The current owner acquired the property as an inheritance in 2010. The rear unit was
occupied at the time she acquired the property. After the tenants filed their initial
petition (T18-0414), the owner retained counsel and subsequently learned that the rear
unit could not legally be rented out as a separate unit. She then removed the stove from
that unit and discontinued renting it out as a separate residential unit after the rear unit
tenants moved out in February 2018.

/1]
/1]

2

000159




FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Is the subject unit exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because
it is a single family residence or condominium that can be sold
separately?

The Rent Adjustment Ordinance exempts single family residences and condominiums
pursuant to the Costa-Hawkins Act, California Civil Code § 1954.52, provided they are
separately alienable from any other rental unit.2 However, a single family residence can
function as a multi-unit building when the owner rents out separate “dwelling units” to
individual tenants.3

As Hearing Officer Lambert found in her original decision, 5553 Kales Avenue is a single
family residence. The owner did rent out a separate “illegal” unit in the rear of the
residence through February 2018, but she ceased renting out that unit when the tenants
living in that unit voluntarily moved out. As of December 15, 2018, the date the
contested rent increase was to take effect, the owner was only renting out the subject
property as a single family residence. Therefore, as of December 15, 2018, the unit was
not functioning as a multi-unit building.

This case can be distinguished from the California Court of Appeals decisions the
HRRRB directed the Hearing Officer to consider. In Da Vinci Group v. San Francisco
Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Board (1992) 5 Cal.App.4th 24, the tenant
moved into a unit advertised by a previous tenant as a “live-in warehouse” and the
owner obtained a certificate of occupancy more than five years later, after spending
money to make improvements on the property.

The San Francisco Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Board found that the
units were not exempt from the Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration ‘
Ordinance Rent as “new construction” or “substantial rehabilitation.” As the decision
upholding this finding pointed out:

Da Vinci’s units were not newly constructed, nor was the building
restructured to permit new residential use. Existing residential use was
made legal by bringing the building up to code and obtaining a certificate
of occupancy. While this is a commendable undertaking, it does not bring
the premises within the Ordinance’s “new construction” exemption. (5
Cal.App.4th 30.)

Whereas, in the Da Vinci case, “existing residential use was made legal,” in the
present case, the “existing residential rental use” at the time the tenants moved in
(namely, two separate units) was never made legal. The owner in this case did not
obtain a certificate of occupancy for the rear unit. Instead, the rear unit became

2 O.M.C. § 8.22.030(A)(7).
3 Owens v. City of Oakland Housing, Residential Rent, and Relocation Board (2020) 49 Cal. App.5* 739.

000160




voluntarily vacant after February 2018, and the owner did not continue to rent it
out as a separate unit.

The case of Owens v. City of Oakland Housing, Residential Rent and Relocatlon
Board (2020) 49 Cal.App.5th 739 likewise has facts quite different from the

current one. In Owens, the owner both owned and resided in a single-family
home. He rented individual rooms in the home to three unrelated tenants. The
Hearing Officer found that: “the owner has chosen to rent rooms out separately
to a number of people, thereby transferring a single-unit dwelling into a multi-
unit dwelling.” (49 Cal.App.5th 743. ) This decision was upheld by the HRRRB, the
trial court, and the Appellate Court.

Owens denied the owner an exemption from the Oakland Rent Adjustment
Ordinance because he had in effect turned his single-family residence into a
multi-unit rental. The multi-unit rental existed at the time the original hearing in
Owens was conducted. By contrast, in this case, the owner discontinued the
rental of the rear unit after she became aware that this practice was not legal; any
multi-unit rental ceased as of March 1, 2018. The owner was renting out only a

© single-family residence to the tenants at the time the rent increase went into
effect.4 Therefore, the original Hearing Decision was correct in denying the
tenants’ petitions based on the subject property being exempt from the Oakland
Rent Adjustment Ordinance as a single family residence.

2. Is the unit exempt from the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance because it
'is a single family residence or condominium that can be sold separately?

The Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance applies to all residential rental units, and
provides limited exemptions.5 None of the exemptions are based on the fact that a unit
is solely a single family residence; it must meet one of the other exemptions. There is no
evidence to support that any of these exemptions apply to this unit.

Therefore, the unit is not exempt from the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance.

3. Is the unit exempt from the Rent Program Service fee?

Oakland Municipal Code § 8.22.500(A) provides that the rent pfogram service fee is to
be “charged against any residential rental unit that is subject to either the Rent
Adjustment Ordinance, the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance, or both.” This dwelling is
subject to the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance, and thus is not exempt from the Rent

Adjustment Program Service fee.

Therefore, the rent program service fee applies.

4 Holding that a rental property is subject to the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance even when it is no
longer being used as a multi-unit rental based on the fact that it was at one time a multi-unit rental would be
contrary to public policy, as it would discourage owners from discontinuing illegal rentals.

S0.M.C. § 8.22.350.

4

000161




ORDER

1. Petitions T18-0414 and T18-0472 are denied and L.19-0040 is granted because the
subject property is exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance pursuant to Costa-
Hawkins (California Civil Code Section 1954.52). The unit is not exempt from the
Rent Program Service fee.

2. A Certificate of Exemption will be issued upon. this Decision becoming final.

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment Program
Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed appeal using
the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be received
within twenty (20) days after service of the decision. The date of serviceis

shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the
last day to file, the appeal may be filed on the next business day.

Dated: March 4, 2021 , q
Marguerita¥Fa-Kaji
Hearing Officer
Rent Adjustment Program

5

000162




PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Numbers T18-0414, T18-0472, and L19-0040

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is.250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland,
California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa
Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

 Documents Included
Hearing Decision After Remand

Owner

Sherry Diane Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alana Grice Conner

Fried & Williams LLP

1901 Harrison Street, 13th Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

Tenants

Chester Martin and Kristen Ponger
44 Belle Avenue Apt. # A

San Rafael, CA 94901

Chester Martin and Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue
-Qakland, CA 94618

- Tenant Representative
Lisa Giampaoli
Giampaoli Law
100 Pine Street, Suite 1250
San Francisco, CA 94111
I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of
business.

000163




I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true
and correct. Executed on March 09, 2021 in Oakland, CA.

A
ONNASL
AN V.
Teresa Brown-Morris

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000164




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Lisa Giampaoli, SBN 291234
Giampaoli Law

100 Pine Street, Suite 1250
San Francisco, CA 94111
Telephone: (415) 890-6529

Attorneys for Tenants/Appellants
Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger

OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT BOARD
CITY OF OAKLAND

RE: 5553 Kales Ave.

CHESTER MARTIN & KRISTEN PONGER
Tenant-Appellants,

V.

SHERRY ZALABAK,

Landlord-Respondent.

Consolidated petitions: T18-0414, T18-0472

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF
APPEAL OF HEARING DECISION
AFTER REMAND OF TENANT-
APPELLANTS CHESTER “CHASE”
MARTIN AND KRISTEN PONGER

Hearing Date: TBD

INTRODUCTION

Tenants appeal the hearing decision after remand in the matter of their petition for

unlawful rent increase and the decision that the Subject Property was exempt from the RAP as a

single family residence at the time the rent increase was noticed. The decision after remand is

essentially the same as the original decision and fails to address any of the issues raised at appeal

nor does it comport in any meaningful way with the decision of appeal issued November 20, 2020.

The decision, like the first, still relies primarily upon the unreliable testimony of Landlord, despite

her proven lack of credibility; further, the decision fails to apply the legal principles or reasoning

of either Owens v. CITY OF OAKLAND HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT & RELOCATION BD.,

000165




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

49 Cal. App. 5th 739, or DaVinci Group v. SF Rent Board (1992) 5 Cal.App. 424, as required by
the Order on Appeal. Instead the latest decision simply dismisses the cases as “distinguishable” by
their facts without any discussion of their legal principles, or any legal analysis at all.

Additionally, the latest decision fails to even mention O.M.C. 8.22.030(B)(1)(b), i.e.
Tenant right to appeal an exemption based on fraud or mistake, which is outrageous when both the
initial decision and the decision on remand rely heavily upon landlord’s false testimony that she
removed the rear cottages from use as dwelling space. There is ample evidence available to show
she advertised those structures for residential use shortly after Tenant/Appellants vacated the
premises, including publicly available information which shows Landlord advertised and re-rented
the back cottages as “2 outdoor /lower level bedrooms and 1 full bathroom.” (See Exhibits A &
B.)

The decision after remand defies all common sense, ignores verifiable documentary
evidence and testimony submitted by Tenants, goes against the stated purpose of the Rent
Adjustment Program, and ignores the instructions of the order of appeal.

Perhaps most egregiously, the decision sets a dangerous precedent that, if not overruled,
essentially provides an instruction manual on how to circumvent both the Rent Adjustment
Program and the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance by detailing how landlords can add and
remove illegal units at will for profit, at the expense and to the detriment of existing tenants.

This appeal incorporates by reference all matter, whether written or oral, recorded or live,
submitted to and by the Rent Adjustment Board in the above referenced case numbers.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

5553 Kales Ave. (“Subject Property™) is located in the Rockridge neighborhood. The
property contains three structures: in the front is a Craftsman style cottage with one bedroom,
living room, kitchen and bathroom; in the rear a studio cottage with a living area, bathroom, and

kitchen; and a second ~100 sq. ft. rear cottage with hardwood floors, windows, a loft, baseboard

2. 000166




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

heater and an interior locking deadbolt.! In 2014 Tenant-Appellants (“Tenants”) entered into a two
year written rental agreement with Landlord-Respondent (“Landlord”) for the front cottage
(hereinafter “subject premises”) for a monthly rent of $2600.2 At the time that Tenants entered into
the agreement for the subject premises, the two rear cottages (“rear cottages”), were already being
rented to another couple as a single dwelling unit. Based on Landlord’s representation and their
own observations and research, Tenants had every reason to believe that the subject premises was
part of multi-unit property protected by rent control.> A 2% rent increase imposed on both units by
Landlord in 2017 was in line with the allowable CPI and reinforced Tenants’ understanding that
their unit was covered by the RAP.* At no time during their tenancy did Tenants have use of the
rear cottages or rear yard.> When the tenants in the rear cottages vacated in June 2017, Landlord
immediately re-rented the rear cottages to another couple.® In November 2017, Landlord asked
Tenants if they would be interested in purchasing the Subject Property, stating Tenants could rent
out the “rear cottages” for income.” In February 2018 the tenants in the rearcottages vacated.® In
March 2018, Landlord gave Tenants a letter stating her intent to sell the Subject Property with a
demand that Tenants vacate by July 1, 2018.° When Tenants protested the eviction notice,
Landlord gave Tenants a document that she mispresented as a “lease extension,” but which was

actually a document purporting to terminate Tenants/Appellants’ tenancy.!® When Tenants

1'3/5/19 Hearing Exh.1: Photos of interiors of rear cottages at 5553 Kales Ave

23/5/19 Hearing Exh. 3: Rental Agreement between Sherry Zalabak and Chester Martin & Kristen Ponger.
33/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 23:30-23:47; 56:15- 56:23.

43/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 23:47-23:55.

33/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 56: 56:34-56:40.

63/5/19 Hearing Exh. 4: July, 2017 lease agreement between Sherry & John Zalabak and Lindsay Byrd &
Isabel Avellan.

73/5/19 Hearing Exh. 9: November 14, 2017 email from Sherry Zalabak to Kristen Ponger.

83/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 55:08-55:23.

93/5/19 Hearing Exh. 10: March 28, 2018 letter from Sherry Zalabak to Kristen Ponger and Chase Martin.
103/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 46:05.-46:12

3. 000167




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

refused to sign the document, Landlord served Tenants a notice of a rent increase from $2652 to
$4500.!"! Tenants then filed petition T18-0414 for unlawful rent increase. Upon learning of the
petition, Landlord came to Tenants’ home pleading for them to rescind the petition. Tenants
agreed to rescind with the understanding that Landlord had withdrawn the rent increase notice.'?
For reasons unknown, the RAP failed to dismiss petition T18-0414.!> Within weeks of giving
notice that they had rescinded the petition, Tenants discovered the stove from the rear cottages had
been placed in the common laundry room of the Subject Property.'# Shortly thereafter tenants
received from Landlord a 60 Day Notice of change in terms of tenancy, which claimed that
Tenants lived in a single family residence and landlord was increasing the rent from $2652 to
$4500. The new notice was dated October 10, 2018, less than two weeks after the stove had been
removed from the rear cottage. Tenants filed new petition T18-0472 for unlawful rent increase.

Landlord then filed a response contending that the Subject Premises was a single family residence

exempt from the RAP under the state Costa Hawkins Act.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The first RAP hearing on Tenants’ petitions was held March 5, 2019 with hearing officer
Elan Consuela Lambert (“Lambert”). Tenants, Landlord and Landlord’s counsel were present.
Tenants did not have legal representation. Tenant Petitions T18-0414 and T18-0472 were based on
two separate rent increase notices but only the second rent increase notice was still in effect at the

time of the hearing.'>

' Tenant Petition T18-0414, Exh. A.
12.3/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 52:28-52:44.
133/5/19 RAP Hearing, Part 1: 2:28-2:40.

143/5/19 RAP Hearing recording, Part 1: 27:56-28:00) (See Also: Exh. 1, p. 3, photo of stove in laundry
room.

15 Both Tenant Petitions and Landlord responses included copies of the Rent Increase Notices, but for
reasons unknown, they were not entered into the hearing record.

4. 000168




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

A summary of the earlier hearings are provided in detail in Tenant/Appellants’ first Appeal
brief.

During the hearings it was established that Landlord had been renting out the property as a
multi-unit property for years, including throughout Tenants’ occupancy.'®!”!%1 Landlord freely
admitted that she rented out the rear cottages for residential use from the time she inherited the
Subject Property in 2010 until February 2018.%°

Landlord admitted that Tenants were not served a RAP notice upon commencement of
their tenancy.’!

Also undisputed was the fact that Landlord had served Tenants a notice to vacate so she
could sell the property.?

Throughout both hearings Tenants testified that they believed Landlord sought a 70% rent
increase to circumvent Just Cause eviction protections and force them out of the property so she
could sell it vacant for maximum profit, as she had repeatedly made clear to them she wanted to
do. Tenants also testified to their belief that Landlord had only removed the stove from the rear
cottage temporarily in order to claim it was no longer a dwelling unit and therefore exempt from
the RAP.?* Tenants provided photo evidence showing that the stove from the rear cottages was
still in the laundry room at the subject property, and that the cottages otherwise remained in the

same state as when occupied.?

16 March 5, 2019 Hearing Exhibit 1.

17 March 5, 2019 Hearing Exhibit 2.

'8 March 5, 2019 Hearing Exhibits 5 & 9.

19 March 5, 2019 Hearing Record, Part 1: 24:46-34:15.

20 March 5, 2019 Hearing Record, Part 2: 4:05-4:19.

2! March 5, 2019 Hearing Record, Part 1: 17:19-7:29.)
22March 5, 2019 Hearing Record, Part 1: 39:27-40:11; 55:08.
24 March 5, 2019 Hearing Recording, Part 1: 57:00-57:09.

25 March 5, 2019 Hearing Recording, Part 1: 56:05- 57:15.

5. 000169




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Landlord/Respondent gave inconsistent and unconvincing testimony throughout the
hearings. Landlord is a long-time Bay Area property owner and landlord who has repeatedly and
publicly demonstrated her opposition to rent control?®?7-28:2930 a5 well as knowledge of real estate
matters’!, yet she claimed that she did not know that the rear cottages were illegal until after
Tenants filed their first RAP petition (T18-0414).%?

Landlord also testified that upon learning that the rear cottages were illegal, she sought to
remove them from use as dwelling units, but she offered no credible evidence in support of her
testimony.>> After Landlord testified that she had reverted the rear cottage back to its “permitted”
use as an office, and that she had the permit at home,** Tenants provided city records showing no
such permit had ever been issued, and therefore Landlord’s testimony was false.®

Landlord also made repeated references to the former owner of the property as her
brother,*® though they were actually former lovers. While not material to the issue of rent control,

Tenants pointed out that it was further evidence that Landlord lacked credibility.?’

26 See: https://www.mercurynews.com/2016/07/14/richmond-voters-to-decide-on-rent-control-in-
november/

27 See: https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2017R 1/Downloads/CommitteeMeetingDocument/128910
28 See p. 23: https://www.ci.richmond.ca.us/DocumentCenter/View/46334/Item-H-2-_-4-18-18-
Mtg?bidld=

2 See p- 27: https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Rent Stabilization Board/Level 3_-
_General/May%2029,%202020_Special%20Board%20Meeting%20agenda%20PACKET.pdf

30 See p. 2: http://www.kert.com/DocumentCenter/View/46333/Item-H-1-_4-18-2018-Mtg?bidld=

3 See p-2: https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and Development/Level 3 -
_ZAB/2014-01-23 ZAB ATT3_404%20Vermont Appeals%20Received%2011-01-13.pdf

32 March 5, 2019 Hearing Record, Part 2: 6:55- 7:09 and 13:17-13:32.)

33 March 5, 2019 Hearing Record, Part 2: 19:28-19:48; 3/5/19 Hearing Exh. 11: Zalabak Permit
Application Worksheet.)

34 March 5, 2019 Hearing Record, Part 2: 19:37-19:49
35 April 22, 2019 Hearing Recording, 9:25-10:00

36 April 22, 2019 Hearing Recording, 17:56-18:32.

37 April 22, 2019 Hearing Recording, 2:35-22:46.

_6- 000170




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Despite providing no credible evidence that the rear cottages had been restored to non-
habitable space, Landlord nonetheless contended that by ceasing her illegal conduct of renting out
illegal and uninhabitable dwelling units, the entire property had become a single family home.*®
Landlord went so far as to falsely claim that the subject property had been used as a single family
home by Tenants, though she provided no evidence that Tenants were ever given use or access to
any portion of the rear cottages or rear yard at any time during their tenancy.*

At no time throughout the hearings did Landlord provide evidence that she had removed
the rear cottages from residential dwelling use. Nor did Landlord provide any legal authority to
support her argument that simply ceasing to rent out an illegal dwelling unit automatically divests
from rent control all other occupied units on the property.

Throughout the hearing Tenants sought from the hearing officer recognition of Landlord’s
lack of credibility. Though the hearing officer said she understood the argument Tenants were
“attempting to make,” she refused to acknowledge that Landlord’s repeated lies made all of her
testimony suspect, instead stating on the record that nothing about Landlord’s testimony
contradicted the “operative facts” of the case.* In an interesting twist, Lambert went on to state
that residential use, not the presence of a stove, is an operative fact for determination of a
residential unit.*' A statement apparently overlooked in the Decision on Remand for
determination of fraud or misrepresentation, since Landlord advertised and re-rented the rear

cottages for residential use shortly after Tenants vacated.*?

38 March 5, 2019 Hearing Recording, Part 2: 41:12-41:27.
39 March 5, 2019 Hearing Recording, Part 2: 41:51-42:19.
40 April 22, 2019 Hearing Recording 22:47-24:24.

41 April 22, 2019 Hearing Recording 31:53-32:30.

42 See: Exhibits A and B.

_7- 000171




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Despite all evidence to the contrary and the proven lack of credibility of Landlord, the
initial decision that was issued relied primarily upon Landlord’s testimony that she had removed
the illegal rear cottages from residential use.

Tenants appealed the Lambert decision for lack of substantial evidence, et al., and on
September 2020, the matter came before the full Rent Board as a matter of first impression.
During the hearing several board members expressed disbelief that a landlord could unilaterally
remove a property with its existing tenants from the protections of the Rent Adjustment Program
simply by claiming to have removed an illegal unit for which they had been collecting rent for
years. The board voted unanimously to remand the decision with an order to pay special
consideration to testimony regarding the property as a multiunit dwelling and to two California
Appellate decisision, Owens v. City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program, and DaVinci Group v.
SF Rent Board (1992) 5 Cal.App. 4" 24. Hearing officer Lambert was subsequently replaced by
hearing officer Marguerita Fa-Kaji.

The Fa-Kaji decision on remand was issued on March 4, 2021. According to the proof of
service, the decision was served via mail on March 9, 2021. The decision was virtually the same as
the initial decision issued by Lambert. The remanded decision referenced the two cases cited in the
decision of appeal order, but only to distinguish the facts of those cases from the present matter.
The decision provides no legal analysis or even an attempt to apply the legal principles discussed
at length in either decision to the matter at hand. The decision also fails to address the landlord’s
lack of evidentiary support for her claim that she had removed the rear cottages from residential
use. Instead, the decision relies entirely on the erroneous conclusions of the first decision which,
remarkably and without explanation, accepts as true Landlord’s unsubstantiated testimony that she
had removed the rear cottages, as well as misstates and misappropriates statements made by
Tenants. The most recent decision provides no legal authority or reasoning to support a

conclusion that a pre-existing, rent controlled tenancy in a multi-unit property could suddenly be

_8- 000172




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

subject to a drastic rent increase as a single family home simply because the other units on the

property were not being rented at the time the rent increase notice was issued.

L THE RAP HAS JURISDICTION TO HEAR THE APPEAL

The decision on remand was served by mail on March 9, 2021. Appellants timely filed
their appeal within twenty days pursuant to O.M.C. 8.22.120 and pursuant to the decision itself,
which states “The appeal must be received within twenty (20) days after service of the decision.”
A copy of this appeal has been served upon Landlord’s representative via email in accordance
with California Emergency Rule of Court #12.

The RAP can and must consider this appeal because “[i]n general, a party must exhaust
administrative remedies before resorting to the courts.” (Coachella Valley Mosquito and Vector
Control Dist. v. California Public Employment Relations Bd. (2005) 35 Cal.4th 1072, 1080.)
“[A]n administrative remedy is exhausted only upon ‘termination of all available, nonduplicative
administrative review procedures.”” Id. (citing to California Correctional Peace Olfficers Assn. v.
State Personnel Bd. (1995) 10 Cal.4th 1133, 1151.)

Here the RAP has, again, issued a decision for which Tenants have ample grounds to
appeal. Tenants must exhaust all administrative remedies before resorting to the courts. Tenants
must therefore be afforded the opportunity to exhaust all administrative remedies before they file
their writ to the Superior Court. This is a matter of public interest and import that has the potential

to impact thousands of Oakland tenants.

1L, GROUNDS FOR APPEAL

A. THE DECISION FAILS TO FOLLOW THE INSTRUCTIONS IN THE
ORDER OF APPEAL AND COMPLETELY DISREGARDS THE LEGAL
PRINCIPLES AND ANALYSIS OF OWENS AND DAVINCI

The decision of appeal instructed the hearing officer to consider the decisions in Owens v.

CITY OF OAKLAND HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT & RELOCATION BD., 49 Cal. App. 5th

9. 000173




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

739, and DaVinci Group v. SF Rent Board (1992) 5 Cal.App. 41 24. Yet the decision on remand
refers to both cases only to distinguish the facts from the present matter, and, unbelievably, fails to
address any of the legal principles. While the facts of both cases can be distinguished from the
present matter, the legal principles and analysis provided by the Court in both decisions is
applicable and scathingly on point.

In Owens v. CITY OF OAKLAND HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT & RELOCATION
BD., 49 Cal. App. 5th 739, a tenant in Oakland was one of several people renting individual rooms
in a single family home. The tenant filed a petition for an unlawful rent increase, and the landlord
argued that because the rooms being rented were in a single-family home that was ""alienable,
separate from the title of any other dwelling unit" the entire property was exempt under the local
rent control provisions pursuant to the Costa Hawkins Act. /d. at 745. The Court aptly noted that
the problem with the landlord’s argument was that “the plain language of the statute focuses on the
rent set for the "dwelling" or "unit". The relevant question is instead whether the "dwelling" or
"unit" separately rented by [the landlord] and for which [tenant] claims the right to establish the
amount of rent, was itself separately alienable from the title to any other dwelling or unit.” /d. The
Court found that the room being rented was not alienable separate from the rest of the house, and
therefore not exempt from the rent control ordinance.

Like the room in Owens, the rear cottages of the subject property are not separately
alienable from the title to any other dwelling unit at the subject property. They had been rented
separately from the front cottage to a series of tenants for years pursuant to rental agreements
completely separate and apart from the rental agreement for the front cottage. Yet the current
decision simply and simplistically concludes that this matter is distinguishable because unlike in
Owens, here Landlord was not renting out the rear cottages at the time the rent increase notice was

to take effect. But such a distinction is absurd and unsupported by law. Nowhere in Owens does

_10- 000174




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

the Court mention an exception where one or more units is temporarily vacant, let alone carve out
an exemption for periods of vacancy of illegal units.

In DaVinci a landlord sought a new construction exemption from rent control for a
occupied dwelling units in a warehouse that had been illegally rented as a residential dwelling for
years prior to the landlord obtaining a certificate of occupancy. The DaVinci court affirmed a Rent
Board decision denying the landlord’s petition for exemption, stating that the Ordinance’s

“explicit mandate is to protect tenants, especially from excessive rent increases”’ (emph. added),

and that “a policy which removes such protection from tenants already in occupancy is
contraindicated.” /d. at 30. When the landlord in Da Vinci argued that the new construction
exemption was meant to promote development of housing that met standards of the local housing
code, and therefore the exemption should be broadly interpreted to include newly legalized units
with pre-existing tenancies, the Court disagreed, pointing out “exemptions must be construed
narrowly, not broadly.” Id. at 31.

Here, as in Da Vinci, there is a pre-existing tenancy in a property where Landlord had been
renting out illegal units for residential use for years; there is a rent control ordinance with a stated

purpose of “providing relief to residential tenants in Oakland by limiting rent increases for

existing tenants[.]” (O.M.C. 8.22.010(C) (Emph. added.); and there is a Landlord claiming a new

status for the property as a basis for exemption. The underlying facts are strikingly similar to Da
Vinci, yet somehow the decision on remand blatantly disregards any of the analysis or legal
principles set forth in DaVinci, instead nonsensically concluding that the analysis and legal
principles do not apply because the illegal units in DaVinci were legalized, whereas the rear
cottages in this matter were not. (See: Hearing Decision on Remand, p.3.: “Whereas, in the Da
Vinci [sic] case, ‘existing residential use was made legal,” in the present case, the ‘existing
residential use’ at the time the tenants moved in (namely, two separate units) was never made

legal.”) The remanded decision goes on to state that Landlord did not continue to rent out the rear

S11- 000175




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

cottages as a separate unit after February 2018, but provides nothing further on the matter. It gives
no finding of law or legal authority at all. It just states facts that have already been ascertained,
gives the most bare bone facts of the DaVinci case, and nothing more.

While Da Vinci is distinguishable in that it deals with a new construction exemption rather
than an exemption for a single family residence, the basic tenet applies: granting an exemption
from rent control that would remove protections from pre-existing tenancies is contrary to the
purpose and intent of the law. Even more egregious, and absurd, would be granting an exemption
to a landlord that has admitted to renting out illegal units for years with no repercussions, but now
claims to have stopped, though pre-existing tenants still occupy the property. As the Da Vinci
Court so aptly recognized: “To permit landlords to rent out illegal units but to avoid the
obligations imposed by the Ordinance is contrary to the purpose and intent of the Ordinance." Da
Vinci. at 30.

In analyzing and applying legal principles, it would be wise to pay heed to the Owens’
Court, which reiterated a principle that has been stated time and again in our Courts: “[w]e will not
follow the plain meaning of the statute “when to do so would ‘frustrate[] the manifest purposes of
the legislation as a whole or [lead] to absurd results.”” but will “’interpret legislation reasonably
and ... attempt to give effect to the apparent purpose of the statute.”” Owens at 744-745. (Citations
omitted.) There is nothing in the law to suggest the legislators of the Oakland RAP or Costa
Hawkins intended for a single family home exemption to apply where a landlord has been illegally
renting out unpermitted dwelling units for years, or where the exemption would result in an
excessive rent increase to pre-existing tenants. To apply an exemption under either of those
circumstances would clearly frustrate the purpose of both law and ordinance. To apply the
exemptions where both those circumstances exist would be patently absurd.

There is simply nothing in Owens or DaVinci, nor any legal authority, which supports a

conclusion that a pre-existing tenancy protected by rent control can suddenly be divested of rent

12- 000176




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

control protections simply by landlord ceasing the rental of illegal units on the same property. Nor
does the decision on remand provide any legal authority for such a conclusion. The only thing to
be concluded from the decision on remand is that either the appellate decisions were not read in
their entirety, or the legal concepts were not comprehended. Regardless, the decision fails in every

way to consider and apply Owens or DaVinci.

B. O.M.C.8.22.120(B)(4) THE DECISION VIOLATES FEDERAL, STATE, OR
LOCAL LAW

i. There is No Exemption for Cessation of Rental of Illegal Units Under
0.M.C. 8.22.030

The decision on remand suggests that Landlord’s decision not to rent out the rear cottages
in 2018 changed the status of the subject property from that of a multi-unit property covered by
the RAP, to a single family residence not covered by the RAP. The decision cites to the Costa
Hawkins Act (California Civil Code § 1954.52) as the basis for exemption without providing any
explanation as to why or how the Costa Hawkins exemption is applicable. The RAP exemption
based on Costa Hawkins [(O.M.C. 8.22.030(A)(7)] simply says: “Dwelling units exempt pursuant
to Costa-Hawkins (California Civil Code § 1954.52).”

California Civil Code § 1954.52 does not mention anything about illegally renting out
single family dwellings as multi-unit properties. or an exemption upon cessation of the illegal
conduct. The Costa Hawkins Act states:

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, an owner of residential real property
may establish the initial and all subsequent rental rates for a dwelling or a unit
about which any of the following is true:

(1) It has a certificate of occupancy issued after February 1, 1995.

(2) 1t has already been exempt from the residential rent control ordinance of a
public entity on or before February 1, 1995, pursuant to a local exemption for
newly constructed units.

(3) (A) It is alienable separate from the title to any other dwelling unit or is a

subdivided interest in a subdivision, as specified in subdivision (b), (d), or (f) of
Section 11004.5 of the Business and Professions Code.

13- 000177




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

(B) This paragraph does not apply to either of the following:

(i) A dwelling or unit where the preceding tenancy has been terminated by the
owner by notice pursuant to Section 1946.1 or has been terminated upon a change
in the terms of the tenancy noticed pursuant to Section 827.

(ii) [paragraph on condominiums omitted]

The subject property was built long before 1995. The subject property was not newly
constructed or exempted as new construction. The subject property does not contain
condominiums. That leaves “alienable separate from the title to any other dwelling unit [...]” But
in fact, throughout Tenants’ occupancy, the property contained two dwelling units on a single
parcel pursuant to a single title. The two units are not condominiums, there is no separate deed,
and they cannot be sold separately.

The landlord claims to have “removed” the rear cottages, but in fact, she did not remove it
at all. Tenants Chase and Kristen testified that the cottages were there up until the day they
vacated. And affer they vacated, the subject property was advertised for rent with a description
and photos of the two rear structures, which were referred to in the ad as “outdoor bedrooms” or
“guest quarters.” The unit was still there, it had never been removed, and it was not alienable
separate from the title.

Oakland Planning Code §17.09.040 defines “dwelling unit” as: “...a room or suite of
rooms including only one kitchen, except as otherwise provided in Section 17.102.270, and
designed or occupied as separate living quarters for one person or family;” (emph. added.) The
unit need not be occupied, only designed as separate living quarters. The pictures posted of the
unit after Tenants moved out show a kitchen area, including a kitchen sink, countertops,
cabinets, and even a microwave. The landlord never testified to removing the bathroom, the
kitchen, or any other portion of the rear cottages. She only claimed to have stopped renting

them.

_14- 000178




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

The “rear cottages” met the definition of a dwelling unit throughout the time Tenants’ lived
at the Subject Property. Nothing in the Costa Hawkins Act, the Oakland RAP, or the Oakland
Planning Code require a dwelling unit to be rented out to qualify as a dwelling unit. Therefore
nothing in the RAP, or Costa Hawkins, creates an exemption from rent control for properties
where an illegal unit is temporarily vacant any more than it creates an exemption when there is
vacant unit in a legal duplex. Ifthe landlord wanted to benefit from a single family exemption
after years of benefitting from her illegal rentals, she had several options- provide a buyout to
Tenants, then remove the illegal unit and seek an exemption, or offer the tenants full use of the
property and allow them to sublet the rear units; or simply wait until the Tenants voluntarily
vacated. But Landlord did none of those things. She chose instead to keep the illegal unit and
further profit from it by hawking it as extra bedrooms or guest quarters even after she had ample
knowledge that the units were not permitted for any residential use and were per se unihabitable.
She chose to continue violating the law by maintaining the illegal units. And so long as those
dwelling units exist at the subject property, the subject property meets no definition of exemption.

ii. The Decision Blatantly Disregards the Purpose of the RAP

The very first stated purposed of the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance is “providing

relief to residential tenants in Oakland by limiting rent increases for existing tenants[.]” O.M.C.

8.22.010(C) (Emph. added.) The Oakland RAP was created because, among other things, the City
found that “[s]tability in their housing situation is important for individuals and families in rental
housing. In particular, tenants desire to be free from the fear of eviction motivated by a rental
property owner's desire to increase rents.” The City Council recognized the importance of safe,
stable housing; they understood that in the Bay Area, where housing is scarce, people could not
feel safe and secure under a constant threat of eviction or huge rent increases (which is often the
functional equivalent of an eviction). So they enacted the RAP to ensure that Oakland residents

could feel secure in their housing knowing that they could not be kicked out simply because the

_15- 000179




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

severe lack of housing meant the landlord could always find someone willing to pay more rent.
The purpose is clear: keep tenants in their homes by protecting them from huge rent increases.
Chase Martin and Kristen Ponger were living in San Francisco when they learned about
the subject premises for rent. Before renting it, they looked up the Oakland Rent Ordinance
because they wanted to be sure they would not be subjected to a giant rent increase. They did their
research, and based on the landlord’s representation of the property as multi unit, one of which
was already occupied, Tenants had every reason to believe they were entering into a rental
agreement for rent-controlled cottage. And they were correct. As evidenced by the landlord’s own
testimony, the statements by landlord’s attorney, the initial Lambert decision, and the most recent
decision at issue. [See March 4, 2021 decision on remand: “the ‘existing residential rental use’ at
the time the tenants moved in” was “(namely, two separate units).”’] There is no question that
Tenants moved into a multi-unit property. So four years later, when Landlord decided not to re-
rent the rear cottages, whatever her motive, Chase and Kristen were already “existing tenants” of
the property. As existing tenants in a multi-unit property that was built before 1980 and did not
meet the criteria for new construction, Chase and Kristen were supposed to be afforded the relief
of eviction protections and limited rent increases as stated in the RAP’s “purposes.” Instead they
were subjected to a demand to vacate because Landlord wanted to sell the property, and then,
when they asserted their right to Just Cause protection, they were subjected to a 70% rent increase.
When they sought help from the RAP, instead of assistance they had to endure hours of belittling
and dismissive commentary by a hearing officer who ignored the undisputed evidence Tenants
presented, and then, even after acknowledging the Landlord’s lack of credible testimony, found in
favor of the landlord anyway, stating in the decision that the landlord had testified she had
removed the rear units and therefore the property was a single family residence not subject to rent
control. No legal authority was given for the conclusion that a landlord can simply change the

status of a property from rent controlled to non-rent controlled. The decision relied on the

_16- 000180




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

property’s “legal” classification, despite the long line of RAP decisions holding that a property’s
legal real property classification is not dispositive of its rent control status. In the decision on
remand, not only did Ka-Ji rely on the same false testimony of the landlord, but the same “logic”
was applied, i.e. a landlord need only stop renting an illegal unit to revert the entire property to a
single family residence in order to be free of rent control, regardless of whether pre-existing
tenancies remain in occupancy at the property. There was no weight given to the stated purpose of
the RAP, or Tenants evidence that landlord had not removed the rear cottages, only to the
landlord’s claim that she should be rewarded for temporarily ceasing her illegal conduct.

Despite the clearly stated purpose of the RAP and the obvious qualifications for coverage,
by the RAP, the decision on remand somehow found the property qualified for exemption from
the RAP and found lawful an outrageous 70% rent increase imposed on existing Tenants. The
decision lacks both merit and logic, and calls into question the neutrality of the hearing officers.

There is simply no way to reconcile the decision with the RAP’s stated purposes.

C.  0.M.C.8.22.120(B)(5) THE DECISION IS NOT SUPPORTED BY
SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE

Hearing decisions must be supported by substantial evidence. (RAP Hearing Officer
Policies and Procedures Manual, p. 7.) “Substantial evidence means that the evidence must be of
ponderable legal significance...It must be reasonable in nature, credible, and of solid value; it must
actually be substantial proof of the essentials that the law requires in a particular case.” /d.
paraphrasing In Re Alcala, 222 Cal. App. 3d 345.

It is clear that the decision on remand is based primarily on the erroneous factual
conclusions of the first decision. Tenants provided credible testimony and submitted evidence that
was dismissed, ignored, and in some instances, not even entered into the record. Further, post-
hearing it became apparent that Landlord had lied about removing the rear cottages from

residential use, as was obviated by ads all over the internet for the property, which described ther

17- 000181




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

rear cottages as “2 lower/outside bedrooms and 1 bathroom.” Further, the landlord never testified
that she removed the rear cottages or even that she would be removing them. To the contrary,
tenants both testified that landlord had stated she was going to use the rear cottages for her office
(though she lived elsewhere). There was simply nothing in the testimony or evidence to support a
conclusion that the rear units had been, or would be, removed. The lack of substantial, or any
evidence to support the conclusions stated in either decision, are grounds enough for overturning
the decision. It certainly is sufficient for filing a writ of mandamus and having the matter

remanded to the RAP.

D.  O.M.C.8.22.030(B)(1)(B) (EXEMPTION BASED ON FRAUD OR
MISTAKE.)

Tenants submit that the Landlord’s claim for exemption was based on fraud. Landlord
claimed that the rear cottages were not legal or habitable, and therefore she had removed them
from residential use. However, after Tenants moved out, Landlord advertised the Subject
Property for rent. In the rental ads (See Exhibits A & B), she referred to the rear cottages as
“outside bedrooms” and a “guest retreat.” While this may constitute “new evidence,” the fact
that Landlord claimed she had removed the units from use as dwelling space, and then
subsequently advertised the cottages as dwelling space is evidence that the Landlord lied in the
hearing when she said she had removed the rear cottages from residential use.

Tenants have the right to contest the exemption based on Fraud or Mistake after the fact.
(Sherman v. Michelsen T16-0258.) Here it is only logical that post facto evidence be provided,
as Landlord was clearly not going to rent out the rear cottages before the RAP decision was
issued, as doing so would jeopardize her case.

CONCLUSION

Pursuant to the foregoing, there is no basis for a finding the subject property was exempt

from the RAP while Tenants were still in possession. No legal authority, or even legal analysis or

S18- 000182




I

~N N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

principles, have been cited in the decision on remand to support a conclusion that a property can
lose rent control status as a result of a landlord decision to stop breaking the law, temporarily or
permanently. Nothing in the decision supports a conclusion that the legislature intended for the
absurd result of granting a landlord an exemption from rent control simply for stopping their
illegal conduct, particularly when granting an exemption would result in rent increases to
existing tenants. In light of the stated purpose of the RAP, a decision granting a 70% rent
increase on existing tenants in a property that has been rent controlled throughout their
occupancy, is completely untenable. To come to such a conclusion defies common sense and
flies in the face of public policy.

For the reasons above, Tenants respectfully request that Landlord’s request for exemption
from the Rent Adjustment Program be denied and Tenant Petitioners’ petitions for unlawful rent
increases be granted or remanded for further consideration.

Dated: April 12, 2021

Giampaoli Law

LISA GIAMPAOLI
Attorney for Tenants/Appellants

_19- 000183




EXHIBIT A

000184



4/9/2021 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland | 1BR / 2BA Single Family Home - Caldecott Properties

EAST BAY REAL ESTATE SPECJALISTS
OAKLAND OFFICE | MORAGA OFFICE

ecott BRE# 01517082

ERTIE

Cal

Join Our Newsletter / Become a Member / Member Log In
LEASE .~ INVEST  RELOCATION
5553 KALES AVENUE | OAKLAND

CLICK TO VIEW LISTING INFORMATION
THIS PROPERTY HAS BEEN LEASED

Rent $5,100/mo

o o
Type Single Family Home
Neighborhood Rockridge
Bedrooms 1+

Bathrooms 2

Sq. Ft. 1,290

Parking Driveway/ Off Street
Date Leased MNovember 2019

= RENTAL APPLICATION

‘ REQUEST MORE INFO

DESCRIPTION

5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland California 94618
Rockridge 1++/2, 950++ SF

A charming traditional Craftsman amongst a serene
private green backdrop.

Come home to this magnificent architectural
masterpiece in the heart of Rockridge on one of
Oakland's most desirable streets and right off of
Broadway. This property is a serene refreat with
relaxing tropical nature at your fingertips. Escape
away from the hustle and bustle, yet minutes to all
the East Bay has to offer. With 1 large bedroom, 1
large bathroom and 950 square feet in the Main
house, the 100 sq. ft. Studio and separate 250 sq.
ft. Office outside offer a perfect retreat ideal for
indulging the painter or sculptor, extra storage or
perhaps a guest retreat. This home is fully fenced
and pet friendly.

Lots of Shopping just blocks away plus bars,
restaurants and grocery. Close to Rockridge Market
Hall, Trader Joe’s, fine dining and boutigue shops
on College Avenue.

Close proximity to Highlands Country Club with
tennis courts, pools and event space. Near
Claremont Club & Spa. 4 minute stroll to College
Avenue. Just a 9-minute drive to Montclair Village
with its fine dining, cafes and boutique shops. Easy
access to 24, 13, 580 and 880 freeways. Nearby
parks include Rockridge-Temescal Greenbelt, Colby
Park, Frog Park, Bushrod Park and many more.

Short 9=minute walk to Rockridge BART, many
Transbay Bus lines nearby.

CONTACT ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CALDECOTT TOOLBOX

Features include: request

i Ea

( A more info TN

3 é} * Open kitchen with refrigerator, gas range and dishwasher

% with ample storage and counter space 4
AN « Office nook/ breakfast nook off kitchen ; print-friendly save listing

+ 2 outdoor/ lower-level bedrooms and 1 full bathroom

» Spacious master bedroom send to become

* Laundry room in basement with ample storage a friend a member

* Outdoor access from kitchen, side garden perfect for

barbequing and entertaining. Owner is leaving all patio

Natasha Doktorova

https://www.caldecott.com/?page=listing_rentals&rent_list_id=937




4/9/2021 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland | 1BR / 2BA Single Family Home - Caldecott Properties

510.594.2400x221 | furniture for all decks and Artist studio
emai] Natasha » Clerestory windows and natural lighting throughout offering sghool

views of the front yard, street and neighborhood without districts
sacrificing any privacy
+ Spectacular living room with wood-burning fireplace and
tray ceiling
+ Spacious open dining area with built-in bookshelves,
original wainscoting and stunning wood trim details
* Mature landscaping

Terms:

$5,100/ Month

$6,000/ Deposit

1-2 Year Lease

Tenant pays all utilities

2+ off street parking spaces

Non-smokers only

Tenant to carry Renter's Insurance & Liability Policy

Not furnished, however if interested the owner is willing to
leave pieces

$39.95 Rental Application fee per applicant over 18 years
old.

Prospective tenants must have a 720 Fico Score and make
3x the monthly rental amount, Two years of positive landlord
rental history.

Please contact Rachael Reese by phone or text at

510.872.1225 or rachael@caldecott.com to schedule a
viewing appointment.

About Caldecott Properties | Contact Us | Site Map

000186  ,,

https://www.caldecott.com/?page=listing_rentals&rent_list_id=937



EXHIBIT B

000187



4/9/2021 5553 Kales Ave, Oakland, CA - 3 Bed, 2 Bath Single-Family Home - 28 Photos | Trulia

OFF MARKET

5553 Kales Ave

Oakland, CA 94618 Rockridge

l= 3 Beds @ 2Baths B 1,300 sqgft

e
$1,477,293 o
R
Trulia Estimate ©® \2
as of Apr 9, 2021 B e

Homes for Sale Near 5553 Kales Ave

- FOR SALE BY OWNER

= W

$708,999 1t $1,999,95 $2,195,000

k= 2bd @ 1ba A 792 sqft k= 6bd @ 4ba A 2,841 sqgft k= 3bd @ 3ba A 2,452 sqft
2618 E 20th St 2471 Cordova St 1877 Trestle Glen Rd
Meadow Brook, Oakland, CA Sausal Creek, Oakland, CA Glenview, Piedmont, CA

Local Information
https://www.trulia.com/p/cal/oakland/5553-kales-ave-oakland-ca-94618--2083928458 0 0 0 1 8 8 110



4/9/2021 5553 Kales Ave, Oakland, CA - 3 Bed, 2 Bath Single-Family Home - 28 Photos | Trulia

Map View Street View Sche
Explore the area around 5553 Kales Ave. Take a virtual walk around the neighborhood. 1Ele
1 Mic
1 Hic
Description

This property is not currently for sale or for rent on Trulia. The description and property data
below may have been provided by a third party, the homeowner or public records.

5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland California 94618 Rockridge 1

2, 950++ SF A charming traditional Craftsman amongst a serene private green backdrop. Come
home to this magnificent architectural masterpiece in the heart of Rockridge on one of Oakland's
most desirable streets and right off of Broadway. This property is a serene retreat with relaxing
tropical nature at your fingertips. Escape away from the hustle and bustle, yet minutes to all the
East Bay has to offer. With 1 large bedroom, 1 large bathroom and 950 square feet in the Main
house, the 100 sqg. ft. Studio and separate 250 sq. ft. Office outside offer a perfect retreat ideal for
indulging the painter or sculptor, extra storage or perhaps a guest retreat. This home is fully
fenced and pet friendly. This home also offers a wood burning fireplace and ample off-street
parking. Features include: Open kitchen with refrigerator, gas range and dishwasher with ample
storage and counter space Office nook/ breakfast nook off kitchen 2 outdoor/ lower-level
bedrooms and 1 full bathroom Spacious master bedroom Laundry room in basement with ample
storage Outdoor access from kitchen, side garden perfect for barbequing and entertaining.
Owner is leaving all patio furniture for all decks and Artist studio Clerestory windows and natural
lighting throughout offering views of the front yard, street and neighborhood without sacrificing
any privacy Spectacular living room with wood-burning fireplace and tray ceiling Spacious open
dining area with built-in bookshelves, original wainscoting and stunning wood trim details Mature
landscaping Lots of Shopping just blocks away plus bars, restaurants and grocery. Close to
Rockridge Market Hall, Trader Joe's, fine dining and boutique shops on College Avenue. Close
proximity to Highlands Country Club with tennis courts, pools and event space. Near Claremont
Club & Spa. 4 minute stroll to College Avenue. Just a 9-minute drive to Montclair Village with its
fine dining, cafes and boutique shops. Easy access to 24, 13, 580 and 880 freeways. Nearby parks
include Rockridge-Temescal Greenbelt, Colby Park, Frog Park, Bushrod Park and many more.
Short 3-minute walk to Rockridge BART, many Transbay Bus lines nearby. Terms: $5,100/ Month
$6,000/ Deposit

1-2 Year Lease

Trancnt nrvee Al oriliviae 0001 89 210

https://www.trulia.com/p/ca/oakland/5553-kales-ave-oakland-ca-94618--2083928458



CITY OF OAKLAND For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp.

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Oakland, CA 94612-0243

(510) 238-3721

- : CA Relay Service 711

CITY OF OAKLAND www.oaklandca.gcov/RAP

PROOF OF SCRICO

COTC: COUARC RIZURID TOSCRIZACOPZOF COURPITTOZ ORRISPOCISC PLUS ACC ADDTOCAL
DOCUMCCTSZOCD TOZ OPPOSIIT PARTIS.

> Use this PROOF OF SERVIE form to indicate the date and manner in which service took place, as well as
the person(s) served.

» Provide a copy of this PROOF OF SERVITE form to the opposing parties together with the document(s)
served.

» File the completed PROOF OF SERVICE form with the Rent Adjustment Program together with the document
you are filing and any attachments you are serving.

» Please number seCuentially all additional documents provided to the RAP.

PCTTOOSFLIDC JCOUT APROOFOF STRITI DAL BOCOISDIRID COMPLITC ACD MAC B
DSMSSID.

served a copy ofJ N
(insert name of document served)
O And Additional Documents

and (write number of attached pages) I 11111 1attached pages (not counting the Petition or
Response served or the Proof of Service) to each opposing party, whose name(s) and address(es) are
listed below, by one of the following means (check one)d

(1 a. United States mail. Cenclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package
addressed to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below and deposited the
sealed envelope with the United States Postal Service, with the postage fully prepaid.

O b Deposited it with a commercial carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first
class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid, addressed to each opposing party as
listed below.

(] c. Personal Service. (1) By Hand DeliveryTpersonally delivered the document(s) to the
person(s) at the address(es) listed belowCor (2) Cleft the document(s) at the address(es) with
some person not younger than 18 years of age.

X d. Email pursuant to California Emergency Rule of Court #12
PIRSOCSCSCRIID:

Name Alana Grice Conner
Address aconner@friedwilliams.com
City, State, Dip

City of Oakland

Rent Adjustment Program

Proof of Service Form 10.21.2020

000190




Name

Address

City, State,

Cip

Name

Address

City, State,

Tlip

Name

Address

City, State,

dip

Name

Address

City, State,

ip

Name

Address

City, State,

Dip

Name

Address

City, State,

dip

Name

Address

City, State,

Tip

o serve more than 8 people, copy this page as many times as necessary and insert in your proof of service document. @ you are

only serving one person, you can use just the first and last page.

City of Oakland

Rent Adjustment Program
Proof of Service Form 10.21.2020

000191




declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and
correct and the documents were served on 3726211 (insert date served).

OB Gammapt O OO OO

PRINO YOUR NAME
LT e e I T e e e e e e (RGP
STGNATURE DACE

City of Oakland i

Rent Adjustment Program

Proof of Serviee Form 10.21.2020

000192



CITY OF OAKLAND For date stamp.

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland, CA 94612

(510) 238-3721

APPEAL

Appellant’s Name

Chase Martin and Kristen Ponger L Owner B Tenant
Property Address (Include Unit Number)

5553 Kales Ave.

Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) Case Number

Please send all communications to Tenants' Legal Consolidated petitions: T18-0414, T18-0472

Representatlve Date Of Decision appealed

March 9, 2021  (Date of service)
Name of Representative (if any) Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices)
Lisa Giampaoli Giaml? aoli Law )
p 100 Pine Street, Suite 1250
San Francisco, CA 94111

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation.

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clearly
explain the math/clerical errors.)

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

a)

b)

Rev. 6/18/2018

(X The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions

of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.).

[ The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation,
you must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent.)

(X The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation,
you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

X The decision violates federal, state or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a detailed
statement as to what law is violated.)

X The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must explain why
the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.)

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

000193




f) (1 I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s claim. (/n
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not in dispute.)

g) [ The decision denies the Owner a fair return on my investment. (You may appeal on this ground only
when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically state why you have been
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.)

h) X Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.)

Submissions to the Board must not exceed 25 pages from each party, and they must be received by the Rent
Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within 15 days of filing the appeal. Only the first
25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A)(5).
Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of pages attached:

¢ You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties or your appeal may be dismissed. ®
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on MARCH 26 20 21 |

I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United-States-mail-or-depesited-it-with-a-commeretal-

earrter;-using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid,
addressed to each opposing party as follows: VIA EMAIL

Name ALANA GRICE CONNER

%L aconner@friedwilliams.com

City, State 7j VIA EMAIL PER CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY RULE OF COURT #12

Name

Address

City. State Zip

3/26/21
SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018

000194



IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

This appeal must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program, 250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313,
Oakland, California 94612, not later than 5:00 P.M. on the 20th calendar day after the date the decision
was mailed to you as shown on the proof of service attached to the decision. If the last day to file is a
weekend or holiday, the time to file the document is extended to the next business day.

Appeals filed late without good cause will be dismissed.

You must provide all the information required, or your appeal cannot be processed and

may be dismissed.

Any response to the appeal by the other party must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program
with a proof of service on opposing party within 35 days of filing the appeal.

The Board will not consider new claims. All claims, except jurisdiction issues, must have been
made in the petition, response, or at the hearing.

The Board will not consider new evidence at the appeal hearing without specific approval.

You must sign and date this form or your appeal will not be processed.

The entire case record is available to the Board, but sections of audio recordings must be pre-
designated to Rent Adjustment Staff.

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018

000195



CITY OF OAKLAND For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp.

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Oakland, CA 94612-0243

(510) 238-3721

: e CA Relay Service 711

CITY OF OAKLAND  www.oaklandca. gov/RAP

PROOF OF SCRICO

COTC: COUARC RIZURID TOSCRIZACOPZOF COURPITTOZ ORRISPOCISC PLUS ACC ADDTOCAL
DOCUMCCTSZOCD TOZ OPPOSIIT PARTIS.

> Use this PROOF OF SERVIE form to indicate the date and manner in which service took place, as well as
the person(s) served.

» Provide a copy of this PROOF OF SERVITE form to the opposing parties together with the document(s)
served.

» File the completed PROOF OF SERVICE form with the Rent Adjustment Program together with the document
you are filing and any attachments you are serving.

» Please number seCuentially all additional documents provided to the RAP.

PCTTOOSFLIDC JCOUT APROOFOF STRITI DAL BDCOISDIRID ICOMPLITC ACD MAC B
DSMSSID.

served a copy of[] rippestforn Petiions118,0414 and T18-0472

(insert name of document served)
O And Additional Documents

and (write number of attached pages) I 11111 1attached pages (not counting the Petition or
Response served or the Proof of Service) to each opposing party, whose name(s) and address(es) are
listed below, by one of the following means (check one)d

1 a. United States mail. Cenclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package
addressed to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below and deposited the
sealed envelope with the United States Postal Service, with the postage fully prepaid.

O b Deposited it with a commercial carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first
class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid, addressed to each opposing party as
listed below.

(] c. Personal Service. (1) By Hand DeliveryTpersonally delivered the document(s) to the
person(s) at the address(es) listed belowCor (2) Cleft the document(s) at the address(es) with
some person not younger than 18 years of age.

X d. Email pursuant to California Emergency Rule of Court #12
PIRSOCSCSCRIID:

Name Alana Grice Conner
Address aconner(@friedwilliams.com
City, State, Dip

City of Oakland

Rent Adjustment Program

Proof of Service Form 10.21.2020

000196




Name

Address

City, State,

Cip

Name

Address

City, State,

Tlip

Name

Address

City, State,

dip

Name

Address

City, State,

ip

Name

Address

City, State,

Dip

Name

Address

City, State,

dip

Name

Address

City, State,

Tip

o serve more than 8 people, copy this page as many times as necessary and insert in your proof of service document. @ you are

only serving one person, you can use just the first and last page.

City of Oakland

Rent Adjustment Program
Proof of Service Form 10.21.2020

000197



declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and
correct and the documents were served on 3726211 (insert date served).

OB Gammapt O OO OO

PRINO YOUR NAME
LT e e I T e e e e e e (RGP
STGNATURE DACE

City of Oakland i

Rent Adjustment Program

Proof of Serviee Form 10.21.2020

000198



W L W o) N Wue b

Frle.d . RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAT]
N4 _::‘.. l!';-
&Williams: OAKLAND

Altorneys at Law

Marena Perez
mperez(@friedwilliams.com

April 26, 2021

City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland, CA 94612

Re:  Response to Appeal / 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA 94618
Case Name: Martin, et. al. v. Zalabak
Consolidated Case Nos. T18-0414 & T18-0472

To Whom it May Concern:

Enclosed for filing please find Property Owner’s Response to Appeal. Proofs of Service, and
Consent to Electronic Service form for the above-referenced matter.

Please provide us with a filed stamped copy of each document for our records. Extra copies of
the Response, Proofs of Service and consent form are enclosed along with a self-addressed
stamped envelope.

Thank you.

Sincerely,
FRIED & WILLIAMS LLP

Mawenow Peresy

Marena Perez
Paralegal

Encls. [as stated]

1901 Harrison Street, 13" Floor, Oakland, CA 94612 625 Market Street, 4" Floor, San Francisco, CA 94105
Tel 510-625-0100 Fax 510-550-3621 Tel 415-421-0100 Fax 415-762-5435

www, friedwilliams.com

000199



N R S N

11
12
13
14

k LR I b ‘ : l J
Alana Grice Conner, Esq., SBN 182676
Fried & Williams LLP RENT ARJUSTIMENT PROCIRAN
1901 Harrison Street, 13" Floor CARLAND

Oakland, CA 94612
Telephone: 510-625-0100
Facsimile: 510-550-3621
aconner@friedwilliams.com

Attorney for Respondent and Owner

Sherry Zalabak
COMMUNITY AND HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
Chester “Chase™ Martin; CONSOLIDATED CASE NOS: T18-0414 &
Kristen Ponger; T18-0472
PROPERTY OWNER’S RESPONSE TO
Appellants/Tenants, | APPEAL
V.

HEARING DATE: TBD
Sherry Zalabak; TIME: 7:00 P.M.

PLACE: 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA,

Respondent/Owner. STE. 5313, OAKLAND, CA 94612

1. PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

On October 10, 2018 the Sherry Zalabak (“Respondent”) served a Costa-Hawkins rent
increase notice. While not required, the owner included a RAP notice. After two hearings, a
decision was issued on the petitions filed finding that the Rent Adjustment Program did not
have jurisdiction to hear the petitions. The Order was served by mail on June 7, 2019. A true
and correct copy of that decision is attached hereto as Exhibit A. The tenants filed and served
an Appeal on June 27, 2019. The tenants vacated on or before July 30, 2019. An appeal
hearing was held thereafter on September 10, 2020. The appeal decision was issued on
November 20, 2020, remanding to the hearing officer, with direction to re-issue the hearing
decision, considering Da Vinci Group V. San Francisco Residential Rent Stabilization and

Arbitration Board (*“Da Vinei"') and Owens v. City of Oakland Housing, Residential Rent and

|
RESPONSE TO APPEAL 000200




o« NN

O

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
2]
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Relocation Board (“Owens”). (A copy of the Appeal Decision is attached as Exhibit B). On
March 4, 2021, hearing officer Marguerita Fa-Kaji issued an order denying Petitions T18-0414
and T18-0472 and granted the subject property exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance
pursuant to Costa Hawkins. On March 26, 2021, Appellants, through their attorney, submitted
an incomplete second Appeal to the rent board and respondent’s attorney. On April 12, 2021,
Appellants submitted their appeal brief to the rent board and our office.

In the Appellants’ brief they include an unnecessary diatribe against the Owner
complaining that irrelevant facts were not considered. They attempt to characterize the Owner’s
relationship with the former owner to distract from the facts of the matter. The Appellant
dislikes the outcome reached by the hearing officer and argues that she did not did not consider
Da Vinci or Owens. And, again despite its lack of relevance wants to discuss O.M.C.
8.22.030(B)(1)(b).

II. UNDERLYING CASE FACTS

Respondent is the owner of the real property commonly known as 5553 Kales Avenue,
Oakland, CA 94618 (the “Premises”), having acquired it in October 2010 following the prior
owner’s, Stephen Lage’s death. Prior to Mr. Lage’s death, he used the detached garage as an
office space. A permit was issued on May 19, 1993 to provide heat and a new 100 AMP
electricity service to the garage for use as an office. During the latter stages of his illness, Mr.
Lage allowed his full-time caregiver to use the office as a residential studio space. Soon
thereafter, in 2010, Mr. Lage was living in the house and Respondent, who was then providing
full time care, was using the studio. After Mr. Lage passed away, Respondent rented the house,
moved out of the studio and rented the studio.

On or around November 24, 2014 Respondent rented the Premises to Chester “Chase”
Martin and Kristen Ponger (“Petitioners™). The “studio” was occupied at the time the Petitioners
moved in. In July 2018, the tenants renting the studio voluntarily moved out. Soon thereafter,
the Respondent discovered the studio did not have a separate certificate of occupancy. Since

then, the studio has not been rented separately.

RESPONSEzTO APPEAL 000201




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

The premises has three detached structures on the 2600 square foot lot. There is the 942
sq. ft. single-family residence. The second structure is the large office (formerly a garage and
previously rented as a studio) and is about 150 sq. ft. The third structure, the small office, is a 65
sq. ft. shed that has been used as a home office. The two smaller structures are located behind
the house. The large and small offices share an awning but are not connected in any other way.
A true and correct copy of an aerial map is attached hereto as Exhibit C. Appellants assert that
the separate structures are being used as separate units but there are no facts to support this
claim. The advertising presented by Appellants describe how the separate spaces could be used,
but the spaces are not advertised as separately available for rent.

The Appellants argue that neither the shed nor the office can be used for residential
purposes, but that is not the case. Instead, the property contains multiple structures but they are
all one residential dwelling. The current tenants residing at the premises can choose to utilize the
separate structures as offices or work-studios. The structures are strictly for the use of the
occupants in the premises. These structures are not separate “units” and are not being used as
such.

III. APPEAL GROUNDS
Tenants allege the following as the bases for their appeal:
1. The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22.060
2. The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board;
3. The decision is not supported by substantial evidence
IV. ARGUMENTS
Procedural Argument

The Rent Board must have jurisdiction to hear a matter. At the time the petition was
filed, the unit occupied by Appellants was a single family home, thus exempt from rent control.
Since the filing of the appeal, the Appellants have vacated the premises, adding support to the
position that the rent board no longer has jurisdiction over this matter. The rent board has

previously ruled on this issue in Essien v.Marquaerdt (T01-0197). In the Essien case, the board

RESPONSE3TO APPEAL 000202




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

determined that a rent increase was moot when the tenant moved out without paying the

increased rent and the pending appeal was dismissed.

A. The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22.060.A. & 8.22.060.C.

Oakland’s RAP Regulation 8.22.060.A requires an owner to serve a Notice of Rent
Adjustment Program on tenants occupying covered units. When Respondents first began
occupying the single family home, they were not served the RAP notice. After the tenants who
were occupying the studio moved out in December 2017, the owner ceased using the space for
residential rental use which restored the single family home status. Single family homes are
exempt from Oakland’s rent adjustment ordinance. See O.M.C. 8.22.030A.7.

The Notice to Tenants of the Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP Notice”) was not served
at the commencement of the tenancy however, this argument is irrelevant. First, Respondent
cured this deficiency by serving the RAP Notice to tenants on October 10, 2018. Second, the
property is a single family home and thus not covered by the ordinance. Third, the Appellants
never paid the increased rent. Fourth, the Appellants have vacated the premises.

B. The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board

There need not be a policy on this specific point. Use of a space that is not intended for
residential use is illegal. It is undisputed that the ordinance intended to extend rent protection to
tenants occupying illegal units. Oakland Municipal Code Section 8.22.020 states that rent
control covers “...any dwelling unit, ... used or occupied in consideration of payment of rent

with the exception of those units designated in_Section 8.22.030 A. as exempt. The City of

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program cannot encourage or condone any illegal act. Upon
discovering the studio unit was not intended for separate residential use, the Respondent ceased
such use thus restoring the single family dwelling to its exempt condition.

The instructions to consider Owens and DaVinci were followed by the hearing officer.
Appellants ask the board to consider the policies articulated by the courts in these cases and that
was done. In Owens, this board affirmed a decision that held when a owner rents out multiple
bedrooms in a single family home, the single family home is transmuted into a multi-unit

property and thus rent control applies. If that remains the case, then the reverse must be true. If

RESPONSELEFO APPEAL 000203




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

a single family home is being used as a multi-unit dwelling, when that use ceases, so does rent
control.

In DaVinci, the court found that a commercial building that had been used for residential
purposes was not exempt as either new construction because it had previously been used for
residential purposes. The court held that tenants renting illegal units were entitled to the
protections of the rent ordinance. Here, the tenants in the illegal unit voluntarily vacated and the
unit was not rented separately again.

C. The decision is not supported by substantial evidence

The appeal board applies the substantial evidence standard when considering the hearing
officer’s ruling. The board’s function is not to decide whether it would have reached the same
factual conclusions as the hearing officer. Instead the board’s task it to decide whether a
reasonable fact-finder could have come to the same conclusion based on the facts in the record.
Because the hearing officer saw the witnesses and heard what they said, she was in a better
position to decide what actually happened, who was telling the truth and how much weight to
give to all the evidence presented. The evidence presented by Respondent demonstrated that the
office unit had been previously used as a residential space, that the occupants in that space
voluntarily vacated and that she ceased using that as separate residential space.

V1. CONCLUSION

The rent board’s policies to preserve the rent control housing must be weighed against the
health and safety of tenants. The Respondent, upon discovering that the studio could not be
rented separately, ¢eased this action. The effect was to restore its character to single family
home status. Furthermore, the rent board has no jurisdiction over this matter because the unit is

exempt from rent control and because the tenants no longer occupy the premises.

Date: April 26, 2021 Fried & Williams LLP
QrauiBeislom))

By: Alana Grice Conner
Attorney for Respondent
Sherry Zalabak

RESPONSESTO APPEAL 000204




EXHIBIT A

000205



CITY orF OAKLAND

" DALZIEL BUILDING + 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 » OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034

Housing and Community Development Departiment TEL (510)238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510)238-6181
' ' ~ CA Relay Service 711
HEARING DECISION
CASE NUMBERS: T18-0414, Martin et, al. v. Zalabak
’ T18-0472, Martin et al. v. Zalabak
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA
DATES OF HEARING: March 5, 2019
: ' April 22, 2019
DATE OF DECISION: . April 30,2019
APPEARANCES: " Chester Martin, Tenant
' Kristen Ponger, Tenant
Sherry Zalabak, Owner

Alana Grice Conner, Attorney for Owner

SUMMARY OF DECISION

The Tenant’s petitions are dismissed.

INTRODUCTION

The tenant filed the initial petition on August 3, 2018, T18-0414, which contests a
rent increase effective August 1, 2108, raising thelr rent from $2,652. OO to
$4,500.00, on the following grounds:

Rent Increase Exceeds CPI or more than 10%;

No Pre-Approval of Increase; -

No Concurrent RAP Notice; | .
No RAP Notice 6 Months prior to the effective date of the increase;
Rent Increase exceeds an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. .

e @& & o o

000206



The tenant filed a second petition on November 9, 2018, T18-0472, which contests
a rent increase effective December 15, 2108, raising theu rent from $2,652.00 to
$4,500.00, on the following grounds:

Rent Increase Exceeds CPI or more than 10%,;

No Pre-Approval of Increase;

No RAP Notice 6 Months prior to the effective date of the increase;
Rent Increase exceeds an overall increase of 30% in 5 years.

The owner filed a timely response in T18-0414 and an untimely response in T18-
0472. The owner attended the liearing and was represented, The matter proceeded
to hearing on March 5, 2019. Subsequently, the undersigned re-opened the matter
for further hearing on the construction of the back unit, including but not limited to
whether the second unit is new construction under the ordinance.

ISSUE(S) PRESENTED

1. Is the subject unit exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance?

EVIDENCE

‘March §, 2019

Rental History

The tenants moved into the unit November 24,2014, for $2600.00.per month,
At the inception of their tenancy, it was a multi-unit property. The front unit and
the back unit were rented out to separate tenants, with separate leases.' ’

In January 2017, their rent was increased by the CPI, 2%, to $2652.00. They
believe the back unit was raised by the same amount. They received a notice.of
rent increase indicating the rent would be $4,500.00, effective January 3, 2019.
They have paid the uncontested portion of their rent, 2652.00 per month, pendmg
the outcome of their petition:

The tenants were ﬁrst given a RAP Notice on November 4, 2018. They live in a
house; they dispute the designation as a single-family residence. When they moved

! The owner propetly response acknowledges that the owner had an unpermitted use of the second unit.

000207



in, there was a unit in the back. Subsequently, they removed the stove from the
other unit and applied for a permit to use it as a non-residential space. The stove is
currently being stored in the basement, The tenant claims the owner will put it back
in the unit when she lists the property for sale.

In 2018, the tenants in the rear unit moved. The back unit is unoccupied, but they
do not have access to it.

The owner testified that she received the property as an inheritance in 2010. Her
property is assessed as a single-family residence.? At the time she inherited the
property, the back unit was occupied. In June 2018, she served a rent increase
notice. The petitioners filed a petition with the Rent Adjustment Program. The
owner retained counsel to respond to the petition. Subsequently, she became

aware that the studio unit was impermissible, which was confirmed with the permit
department, : :

After finding out that the space was permitted for an office, she returned the space
to non-residential use and removed the stove.’

The owner testified that she ddes have the original permit for creating the ofﬁéé_
space but did not bring it to the hearing.

The tenants argued that they rented what was by all intents and purposes a rent-
controlled unit and that the owner’s unilateral change to comply with the law was
motivated by bad faith, :

The property owner argued that by‘_the removal of the illegal unit restored the .
single-family residence to its proper use and therefore restored its status-as an

exempt unit.

April 22, 2019

The undersigned re-opened the hearing to determine if the second unit qualified as
new construction under the ordinance. At the hearing, the tenant provided
documentation from the City of Oakland, which established that there was a
second structure on the property, which was a garage in'the 1930s.*

? Exhibit A, March Hearing. This Exhibit, and all other Exhibits to which reference is made in. thls Decision, were
‘admitted into evidence, ~

3 Exhibit 11, March Hearing,

4 Exhibit A, April Hearing.

000208



The tenant testified that there was no permit to convert the garage structure to an
office. The records indicated that in 1993, the new amp circuits went out to the
garage.’

' FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Exemption

Costa-Hawkins: The Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act® provides that a dwelling |
or unit which is separately alienable from any other dwelling or unit is exempt

from local rent control, except under certain circumstances. The Oakland Rent
Adjustment Ordinance specifically states that if a unit is covered under Costa-
Hawkins, it is exempt from the Ordinance.’

Exceptions \td the Application of Costa-Hawkins:-

A single-family residence is exempt from local rent control laws unless one or
more of the following situations applies:

(1) The tendncy began before January 1, 1996

(3) The pnor tenant was evicted for no cause

(4) The prior tenant vacated after being given a notice of rent increase

(5) There were serious health, safety, fire or building code violations for

which the owner was cited, and which were not corrected for six months
- before the start of the current tenancy:

The tenants’ testimony that she initially rented a multi-unit property and that the
tenant in the back unit moved out and that the owner has not allowed subsequent
~ illegal residential use is credited. Accordingly, the subject unit has been restored to

a single-family residence. Therefore, the house is exempt from the application of
the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance. Because the subject unit is exempt from
the Ordinance, no other issues raised in the tenant petition can be addressed.

/1
I

3 Exhii)’it B, April Hearing.
6 Civil Code Section 1954.52(a)(3)
7 0.M.C. Section 8.22.030(A)(7)

o ‘ 000209



ORDER

1. Petitions T18-0414 and T18-0472 are denied.

2. The subject unit is exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance pursuant to
Civil Code §1954.52(a)(3).

3. The unit is not exempt from paymént of the Rent Adjustment Service fee.

4. A Certificate of Exemption for the subject unit will be issued when this
Decision becomes final.

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly
completed appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The
appeal must be received within twenty (20) calendar days after service of the
decision. The date of service is shown on the attached Proof of Service. If'the
Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the last day to file, the appeal may be filed on
. the next business day.

kot

Dated; May 31, 2019 Elar{ Consuella Latbedt
o Hearing Officer
‘ Rent Adjustment.Brogram

000210



PROOF OF SERVICE
" Case Number T18-0414

Tam a resident of the State of California at Jeast eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the Residential
Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, California. My business
address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of Oakland mail
collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, Sth
Floor, Oakland, California, addressed fo:

Documents Included
Hearing Decision

Owner

Sherry Zalabak

402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alana Grice Conner, Fried & Willjams LLP
1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor

QOakland, CA 94612

Tenant

Chester Martin
5553 Kales Avenue
Qakland, CA 94618

Tenant

Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avénue
Qakland, CA 94618

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described above would be
deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first class postage
thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.

- T declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and correct.
Executed on June 07,2019 in Oakland, CA. /

/ y /. /

Brittni Lothlen

QOakland Rent Adjustment Program ‘

000211



PROOE OF SERVICE
Case Number T18-0472

I am 4 resident of the State of California at least elghteen years of age. | am not a party to the Residential
Rent AdJustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, California. My business
address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, Sth Floot, Qakland, California 94612. ~

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of Oakland mail
collection receptacle for mailing on the below date ai 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plalsa, Suite 5313 Sth
Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included “
Hearing Decision

Owner

Sherry Zalabak

402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alana Grice Conner,

Fried & Williams, LLP

1901 Harrison Street 14th Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

Tenant

Chester Martin
5553 Kales Avenue
Qakland, CA 94618

Tenant

Kristen Ponger

5553 Kales Avenue
Qakland, CA 94618

I am readily familiar with the City of Qakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described above would be
deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first class postage
thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of C‘dllfomla that the above is true and correct.
Executed on June 07, 2019 in Oakland, CA. v

Brittni Lothlen

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000212



EXHIBIT B

000213



CITY or OAKLANDE

DALZIEL BUILDING « 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 » OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 84612-2034

Housing and Community Development Department TEL (;51 0) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program ) FAX (510)238-6181
3 CA Relay Service 711

HEARING DECISION AFTER REMAND

CASE NUMBERS: T18-0414, Martin et al v. Zalabak
T18-0472, Martin et al v. Zalabak
L19-0040, Zalabak v, Tenants

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 5553 Kales Avenue, Oakland, CA

DATES OF HEARING:  March 5, 2019, and April 22, 2019

DATE OF DECISION: April 30, 2019

DATE OF APPEAL September 10, 2020
HEARING: :

DATE OF APPEAL November 20; 2020
DECISION:

DATE OF REMAND March 4, 2021
DECISION: '

The tenants, Chester Martin and Kristen Ponger, filed two separate petitions contesting
a rent increase effective August 1, 2018 (T18-0414) and a rent increase effective
December 15, 2018 (T18-0472).1 Although the owner withdrew the rent increase
effective August 1, 2018, the tenants declined to withdraw their initial petition. The
petitions were consohdated and a hearing was conducted by Rent Adjustment Program
Hearing Officer £lan Lambert on March 5, 2019, and April 22, 2019, On April 30, 2019,
the Hearing Officer issued a decision denying the tenants’ petitions on the basis that the
unit was a single family residence exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance
pursuant to California Civil Code Section 1954. 52(a)(3). '

The tenants then filed an appeal, which was heard by the Housing, Residential Rent and
Relocation Board (HRRRB) on September 10, 2020. The Board remanded the case to
the Heanng Officer “with dlrectlon to re-issue the hearing decision, considering Da

! A.lthough the petition filed by the tenants in T18-0472 actually provides an éffective date of January 3, 2019, the
response filed by the owner provides an effective date of December 15, 2018,

000214



(1992) 5 Cal. App 4 24 and Qmm_s v. City of Oaldand Hougm_g,_lie_s;d_emlammt,ﬂl_
Relocation Board (2020) 49 Cal.App.5th 739, with specific consideration of the
testimony of the property as a multi-unit dwelling.”

On December 12, 2018, the owner filed a Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption
(L19-0040) regardmg the subject property. The case wag originally set for hearing on
October 21, 2019, but the hearing was continued several times. Case L19- 0040 was
ultlmately comblned with Cases T18-0414 and T18-0472 because they raise the same
issues. The combined cases were set for hearing on January 25, 2021.

On January 11, 2021, an Order Reassigning Hearing Officer and Canceling Hearing
was issued, reassigning thé joint cases to the unders‘igned Hearing Officer and stating
that the decision would be issued “based on the written evidence and testimony
previously provided, and consideration of the California Court of Appeal decisions cited
by the Oakland HRRRB.”

ISSUES

1. Is'the unit exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because it is a single family
residence or condominium that can be sold separately?

2. Is the unit exempt from the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance because it is a single
family residence or condominium that can'be sold separately?

3. Is the unit exempt from the Rent Program Service fee?

EVIDENCE

As the original Hearing Decision explamed the tenants moved into the unit in
November 2014. At the inception of their tenancy, it was a multi-unit property. The
front unit and rear unit were rented out to separate tenants, with separate leases.
Tenants Martin and Ponger lived in the front unit. On the last day of February 2018, the
tenants in the rear unit moved out voluntarily. :

The current owner acquired the property as an inheritance in 2010, The rear unit was
occupied at the time she acquired the property. After the tenants filed their initial
petition (T18-0414), the owner retained counsel and subsequently learned that the rear
unit could not legally be rented out as a separate unit. She then remaoved the stove from
that unit and discontinued renting it out as a separate residential unit after the rear unit
tenants moved out in February 2018.

/11
/11

2

1000215



1. Is the subject unit exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because
itis a single family residence or condominium that can be sold
separately?

The Rent Adjustment Ordinance exempts single family residences and condominiums
pursuant to the Costa-Hawkins Act, California Civil Code § 1954.52, provided they are
separately alienable from any other rental unit.2 However, a single family residence can
function as a multi-unit building when the owner rents out separate “dwelling units” to
individual tenants.3

-As Hearing Officer Lambert found in her original decision, 5553 Kales Avenue is a single
family residence. The owner did rent out a separate “illegal” unit in the rear-of the
residence through February 2018, but she ceased renting out that unit when the tenants
living in that unit voluntarily moved out. As of December 15, 2018, the date the
contested rent increase was to take effect, the owner was only renting out the subject
property as a single family residence. Therefore, as of December 15, 2018, the unit was
not functioning as a multi-unit building.

This case can be distinguished from the California Court of Appeals decisions the
HRRRB directed the Hearing Officer to consider. In Da Vinci Group v, San Francisco
esidential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Board (1992) 5 Cal.App.4*h 24, the tenant
moved into a unit advertised by a previous tenant as a “live-in warehouse” and the
owner obtained a certificate of occupancy more than five years later, after spending
money to make improvements on the property.

The San Francisco Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration Board found that the
units were not exempt from the Residential Rent Stabilization and Arbitration
Ordinance Rent as “hew construction” or “substantial rehabilitation.” As the decision
upholding this finding pointed out:

Da Vinci’s units were not newly constructed, nor was the building
restructured to permit new residential use. Existing residential use was
made legal by bringing the building up to code and obtaining a certificate
of occupancy. While this is a commendable undertaking, it does not bring
the premises within the Ordinance’s “new construction” exemption. (5
Cal.App.4* 30.)

Whereas, in the Da Vinci case, “existing residential use was made legal,” in the
present case, the “existing residential rental use” at the time the tenants moved in
(namely, two separate units) was never made legal. The owner in this case did not
obtain a certificate of occupancy for the rear unit. Instead, the rear unit became

z O M.C. § 8. 22 030(A)(7)
d Relocation Board (2020) 49 Cal.App.5* 739,

3

000216



voluntarily vacant after February 2018, and the owner did not continue to rent it
out as a separate unit.

The case of Owens v. City of Oakland Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation
Board (2020) 49 Cal.App.5th 739 likewise has facts quite different from the
current one. In Owens, the owner both owned and resided in a single-family
home. He rented individual rooms in the home to three unrelated tenants. The
Hearing Officer found that: “the owner has chosen to rent rooms out separately
to a number of peaple, thereby transferring a single-unit dwelling into a multi-
unit dwelling.” (49 Cal.App.5% 743.) This decision was upheld by the HRRRB, the
trial court, and the Appellate Court.

Owens denied the owner an exemption from the QOakland Rent Adjustment
Ordinance because he had in effect turned his smgle—famlly residence into a
multi-unit rental. The multi-unit rental existed at the time the original hearing in
Owens was conducted. By contrast, in this case, the owner discontinued the
rental of the rear unit after she became aware that this practice was not legal; any
multi-unit rental ceased as of March 1, 2018. The owner was renting out only a

- single-family residence to the tenants at the time the rent increase went into
effect.4 Therefore, the original Hearing Decision was cotrect in denying the
tenants’ petitions based on the subject property being exempt from the Oakland
Rent Adjustment Ordinance as a single family residence.

2. Is the unit exempt from the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance because it
'is a single family residence or condominium that can be sold separately?

The Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance applies to all residential rental units, and
provides limited exemptions.5 None of the exemptions are based on the fact that a unit
is solely a single family residence; it must meet one of the other exemptions. There is no
evidence to support that any of these exemptions apply to this unit.

Therefore, the unit is not exempt from the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance.

3. Is the unit exempt from the Rent Program Service fee?

Oakland Municipal Code § 8.22.500(A) provides that the rent pfogram service fee is to
be “charged against any residential rental unit that is subject to either the Rent
Adjustment Ordinance, the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance, or both.” This dwelling is
subject to the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance, and thus is not exempt from the Rent
Adjustment Program Service fee,

Therefore, the rent program service fee applies.

4 Holding that a rental propeity is subject to the Qakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance even when it is-no
longer being used as a multi-unit rental based on the fact that it was at one time a multi-unit rental would be
contrary to public policy, as it would discourage owners from discontinuing illegal rentals.

5 OM.C. § 8.22.350.

4

000217



ORDER

1. Petitions T18-0414 and T18-0472 are denied and L19-0040 is granted because the
subject property is exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance pursuant to Costa-
Hawkins (California Civil Code Section 1954.52). The unit is not exempt from the
Rent Program Service fee.

2. A Certificate of Exemption will be issued upon this Decision becoming final.

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment Program
Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed appeal using
the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be received
within twenty (20) days after service of the decision. The date of service is

shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the

~ last day to file, the appeal may be filed on the next business day.

A 4 .a )
Dated: March 4, 2021 {
: Marguerita¥Fa-Kaji
Hearing Officer
Rent Adjustment Program

5
000218



PROOF OF SERVICE

Case Numbers T18-0414, T18-0472, and 1.19-0040

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, -

California 94612,

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa
Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Hearing Decision After Remand

Owner

Sherry Diane Zalabak
402 Vermont Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94707

Owner Representative

Alana Grice Conner

Fried & Williams LLP

1901 Harrison Street, 13th Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

Tenants

Chester Martin and Kristen Ponger
44 Belle Avenue Apt. # A

San Rafael, CA 94901

Chester Martin and Kristen Ponger
5553 Kales Avenue
- Oakland, CA 94618

Tenant Representative
Lisa Giampaoli

Giampaoli Law

100 Pine Street, Suite 1250
San Francisco, CA 94111

]

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of

business.

000219



I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true
and correct. Executed on March 09, 2021 in Oakland, CA.

M
ST
Teresa Brown-Motris

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000220



EXHIBIT C

000221



4/21/2021 5553 Kales Ave - Google Maps

5553 Kales Ave

Google

Map data ©2021, Map data 2021 20 ft 3

5553 Kales Ave
Building

O
Directions Save Nearby Sendtoyour  Share

phone

® 5553 Kales Ave, Oakland, CA 94618

Photos

000222

https:/iwww.google.com/maps/placa/5553+Kales+Ave,+QOakland,+CA+94618/@37.8419533,-122.2482768,56m/data=13m111e314m513m411s0x80857d.... 1/2



JocuSign Envelope ID: FOSEA8C42-87CE-4188-B2CB-D9B892A79777

CITY OF OAKLAND For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp.

{// RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
/>"'" 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

\\ﬂ A\ Oakland, CA 94612-0243
(\ (510) 238-3721

CA Relay Service 711

CITY OF OAKLAND www.oaklandca.gov/RAP CONSOLIDATED CASE NOS:

3-0

NOTE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO SERVE A COPY OF YOUR PETITION OR RESPONSE (PLUS ANY ADDITIONAL
DOCUMENTS) ON THE OPPOSING PARTIES.

» Use this PROOF OF SERVICE form to indicate the date and manner in which service took place, as well as
the person(s) served.

» Provide a copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form to the opposing parties together with the document(s)
served.

> File the completed PROOF OF SERVICE form with the Rent Adjustment Program together with the document
you are filing and any attachments you are serving.

» Please number sequentially all additional documents provided to the RAP.

PETITIONS FILED WITHOUT A PROOF OF SERVICE WILL BE CONSIDERED INCOMPLETE AND MAY BE
DISMISSED.

PROPERTY OWNER'S RESPONSE TO APPEAL
| served a copy of: (CONSOLIDATED CASE NOS: T18-0414 & T18-0472)

(insert name of document served)
X And Additional Documents

and (write number of attached pages) __ 18 attached pages (not counting the Petition or
Response served or the Proof of Service) to each opposing party, whose name(s) and address(es) are
listed below, by one of the following means (check one):

& 2. United States mail. | enclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package
addressed to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below and deposited the
sealed envelope with the United States Postal Service, with the postage fully prepaid.

Q b Deposited it with a commercial carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first
class mail, with ail postage or charges fully prepaid, addressed to each opposing party as
listed below.

Q ¢ Personal Service. (1) By Hand Delivery: | personally delivered the document(s) to the
person(s) at the address(es) listed below; or (2) | left the document(s) at the address(es) with
some person not younger than 18 years of age.

B d. Email Service: See attached Proof of Service.
PERSON(S) SERVED:

Name Lisa Giampaoli

Address Giampaoli Law, 100 Pine Street, Suite 1250

City, State, Zip San Francisco, CA 94111

City of Oakland
Rent Adjustment Program
Proof of Service Form 10.21.2020

000223



DocuSign Envelope I1D: FOEA8C42-87CE-4188-B2CB-D9B892A79777

Name

Address

City, State, Zip

Name

Address

City, State, Zip

Name

Address

City, State, Zip

Name

Address

City, State, Zip

Name

Address

City, State, Zip

Name

Address

City, State, Zip

Name

Address

City, State, Zip

To serve more than 8 people, copy this page as many times as necessary and insert in your proof of service document. If you are
only serving one person, you can use just the first and last page.

City of Oakland -2-
Rent Adjustment Program
Proof of Service Form 10.21.2020

000224



DocuSign Envelope ID: FOEA8C42-87CE-4188-B2CB-D9B892A79777

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and
correct and the documents were served on 4 /26/ 2021(insert date served).

Marena Perez

PRINT YOUR NAME
DocuSigned by:

atena jii4,4k April 26, 2021
SIGNATURE ~ DATE
9F29DC3E8YEF43F...
City of Oakland 3-

Rent Adjustment Program
Proof of Service Form 10.21.2020

000225



DocuSign Envelope ID: FOSEA8C42-87CE-4188-B2CB-DSB892A79777

PROOF OF SERVICE BY EMAIL
PROOF OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

[, the undersigned, declare and state:

I am employed in the county of Oakland, California. I am over the age of eighteen years
and not a party of the within entitled cause. My business address is 1901 Harrison Street,
13 Floor, Oakland, CA 94612.

My electronic service address is: mperez@friedwilliams.com

On April 26, 2021, I emailed a true digital copy of the following documents in Martin, et.
al. v. Zalabak, City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program Consolidated Case Nos. T18-
0414 & T18-0472:

PROPERTY OWNER’S RESPONSE TO APPEAL

to:

Lisa Giampaoli
lisa@giampaolilaw.com

Attorney for Appellants/Tenants

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct, and this declaration was executed on April 26, 2021, at
Oakland, California.

DocuSigned by:
l£ arena Perez -
9F29DC3E89EFA3F...

000226



Representative or Self-Represented Party Name/Type:

Alana Grice Conner, SBN 182676

FRIED & WILLIAMS LLP

1901 Harrison Street, 13th Floor

Oakland, California 94612

Telephone: (510) 625-0100

Facsimile: (510) 550-3621

Email Address: aconner@friedwilliams.com

Representative for: Respondent/Owner
Sherry Zalabak

Case Number: Consolidated Nos.
T18-0414 &T18-0472
Case Name: Martin v. Zalabak

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland, CA 94612

Staff Analyst: Ava Silveira; Chanee
Franklin Minor

CONSENT TO ELECTRONIC SERVICE AND
NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE ADDRESS

Hearing Officer: Barbara Kong-
Brown (Appeals Hearing Officer);
Marguerita Fa-Kaji (Hearing Officer)

1. The following party or X | the representative for:
a. tenant(name)
b. X owner (name). Sherry Zalabak
C. other (name):

consents to electronic service of notices and documents in the above-captioned

case.

2. The electronic service address of the person identified in item 1 is

(specify):

aconner@friedwilliams.com; mperez@friedwilliams.com

Date:<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>